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CORPORATE PROFILE
FITHEN

Our Mission

We at BEA strive to provide best in class financial

services, always demanding the highest standard of

1 A=
AN B 7

professionalism and integrity of ourselves. With a

commitment to quality of service, we focus on satisfying
customer needs. We aim to grow, together with our
customers, our shareholders and our colleagues.
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Incorporated in 1918, The Bank of East Asia, Limited is Hong Kong’s
largest independent local bank with total consolidated assets of
HK$795.9 billion (US$102.6 billion) as of 31st December, 2014.
The Bank is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and is a
constituent stock of the Hang Seng Index.

BEA is dedicated to helping its customers grow and prosper through
the provision of a comprehensive range of commercial banking,
personal banking, wealth management, and investment services.

The Bank maintains one of the largest retail networks of any bank
in Hong Kong, with full-service branches, SupremeGold Centres for
high net-worth customers, and innovative, extended hour i-Financial
Centres conveniently located throughout the city.

In Mainland China, BEA's wholly-owned subsidiary, The Bank of East
Asia (China) Limited operates more than 125 outlets — one of the
most extensive networks of any foreign bank in China. In addition
to the BEA China network, BEA operates a rural bank in Fuping
County, Weinan City, in Shaanxi Province.

Overseas, the Bank maintains an active presence in Southeast Asia,
the United Kingdom, and the United States. Worldwide, BEA serves
customers through more than 240 outlets and offers rewarding and
challenging career opportunities to over 13,000 employees.

The BEA Group’s subsidiaries further broaden the Bank’s product
offering to meet the increasingly diverse and sophisticated needs of
a burgeoning customer base. BEA's wholly-owned subsidiaries, BEA
Life Limited and Blue Cross (Asia-Pacific) Insurance Limited, serve as
the Bank’s life insurance and general insurance arms, respectively,
and provide a comprehensive range of insurance solutions for
individual and corporate customers. A global provider of integrated
business, corporate, and investor services, Tricor Holdings Limited
helps clients build their businesses by offering outsourced expertise
in business support functions.

The BEA Group strives to be a positive, enabling force in the
communities it serves and is committed to long-term sustainable
development. The Group integrates social, environmental, ethical,
employee, and customer concerns into its business and operations
with the aim of aligning the interests of its stakeholders and the
society at large.

For more information on BEA, please visit your nearest BEA branch
or visit the Bank’s homepage at www.hkbea.com.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Total operating income

REWARBER

Profit attributable to owners of the parent
A 5B B AR R 5 A

18,232 17,253 +5.7

6,661 6,613 +0.7

Balance Sheet Strength EE& &R

Advances to customers
BEFEHK

Total consolidated assets
A BERR

Total deposits
TR

Total equity
AR R B R

443,287 405,357 +9.4

795,891 753,954 +5.6

592,582 577,900 +2.5

73,444 68,234 +7.6

Earnings Per Share and Dividends Per Share
BRBIRERRE

Basic earnings

EAREH

Dividends
Az 8

HK$2.72 HK$2.78 -2.2

HK$1.11 HK$1.11 -

Key Ratios = E b=

Loan to deposit ratio
Bt R

Impaired loan ratio

IMEERLE

Average liquidity ratio
FHRENE St

Total capital ratio

REARLL =

74.8% 70.1%

0.6% 0.4%

50.2% 47.0%

16.7% 15.9%
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY (CONTINUED)

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT
AEERAEER R

HK$ Million
BEEET

7,000
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6,613

SEMBHE (F)

6,661

05

2010 2011 2012

FIVE-YEAR COMPARISON
5FEEE;

Total equity

R SRS BT 48,643 52,044
Total deposits

52k s 425,419 478,837
Advances to customers . .
BB 295,714 315,281
Total consolidated assets

4 A R 534,193 611,402
Loan to deposit ratio o o %
B X 70% 66%
Profit attributable to

owners of the parent 4,224 4,358
] 558 A AN 52 (B AR SR A

Earnings per share

SREF HK$1.92 HK$1.96
Dividends per share

SRS HK$0.94 HK$0.94

*  Restated due to reclassification.
* FEEBFAEMELR

61,639

526,140

350,720

692,114

67%

6,056

HK$2.72

HK$1.06

2013

2014

68,234 73,444
577,900 592,582
405,357 443,287
753,954 795,891
70% 75%
6,613 6,661
HK$2.78 HK$2.72
HK$1.11 HK$1.11
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For the year 2014, The Bank of East Asia Group recorded
a record-high profit attributable to owners of the parent
of HK$6,661 million, representing an increase of HK$48
million or 0.7% compared with the HK$6,613 million
reported for 2013. Basic earnings per share stood at
HK$2.72. Return on average equity and return on average
assets were 10.1% and 0.8%, respectively.

The Board of Directors has declared a second interim
dividend of HK$0.68 per share for the year ended 31st
December, 2014, bringing the dividend for the year to
HK$1.11 per share.

The global economy weathered an uneven 2014.
While the US economy steadily improved during the
year, China’s economy grew at a slower pace and the
economies of Europe and Japan were sluggish. Slower
growth in China led to decreased spending by Mainland
tourists in Hong Kong. As a result, domestic retail sales
were weak while the unemployment rate edged slightly

higher during the year. Property prices continued to
increase, although overall market activity remained
subdued due to the government’s cooling measures.
The overall operating environment is expected to remain
challenging in 2015.

Against this uncertain backdrop, BEA will continue to
focus on capitalising on trade and investment flows
to and from China by leveraging the strength of its
operations in Hong Kong and on the Mainland, as well
as its strategic presence in markets around the world
with well-established Chinese communities. Cross-border
financing will remain a major growth engine for our
Group’s business in the coming year, and we will enhance
our product range to meet the needs of high net-worth
and corporate clients in China seeking to expand their
businesses in Hong Kong and overseas.

Our China operations will remain a key driver of business
growth and a source of new customers for the Group.
While the Central Government’s economic restructuring
programme should continue to adversely affect asset
quality and net interest margins in the Mainland’s
banking industry, we will explore new opportunities as we
continue to invest in BEA China.

In view of the highly competitive nature of the retail
banking industry in the markets we serve, differentiation
through greater customer centricity will underpin
our growth strategy. By providing the best customer
experience possible, we aim to attract and retain a
growing number of affluent customers who regard us as
their key banking partner.

Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po
Chairman & Chief Executive
FEFTBAH

FEEST
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

We will remain at the forefront of technology in our
business by enriching the content and extending the
reach of our electronic banking services. In Hong Kong,
we will continue to roll out digital branches, which will
enable us to serve our customers more efficiently while
we reduce costs.

To enhance operating efficiency and productivity, we will
take additional steps to improve work flows with the
aid of technology, merging processes across operational
units. In addition, we will continue to prudently manage
our operating expenses to further improve our cost-to-
income ratio.

BEA will capture new growth opportunities in China by
strengthening its relationships with strategic partners,
including CaixaBank of Spain and Sumitomo Mitsui
Banking Corporation of Japan, and driving new business
to our branches in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

In September 2014, we entered into a non-binding
memorandum of understanding with SMBC in relation to
a proposed subscription by SMBC of new shares in BEA.
This investment will further strengthen the relationship
between SMBC and BEA, and help ensure that BEA
has sufficient capital to meet stringent regulatory
requirements in the future. It will also provide us with
a solid foundation to pursue growth opportunities,
particularly in Mainland China.

Operating within an increasingly complex regulatory
framework, BEA has chosen to take a proactive approach
to regulatory compliance by actively engaging with
regulators to ensure that all new requirements are met
in a timely manner. To strengthen its risk culture and
governance, the Bank has enhanced control at all levels
and conducts risk and compliance training for its staff.

As a corporate citizen, we are keenly aware of our
responsibility not only to our shareholders, but also
to our customers, employees, and the community at
large. In recent years, we have made great strides in
the development of our corporate social responsibility
programme. Through The Bank of East Asia Charitable
Foundation and its charity partners, we have established
several important programmes in support of education
and social welfare including palliative care for terminally-
ill patients in residential homes in Hong Kong. On the
Mainland, the Shanghai Soong Ching Ling Foundation —
BEA Charity Fund continues to promote the advancement
of education for children in rural areas through its flagship
Firefly Project.

| am pleased to inform shareholders that the Board of
Directors appointed Mr. Adrian Li and Mr. Brian Li as
Executive Directors of the Bank, effective 2nd August,
2014. They have taken our Hong Kong and China
business units from strength to greater strength, and we
look forward to their contributions at Board level.

In closing, | would like to thank the Bank’s Board of
Directors and the Directors of our subsidiaries and
associated companies for their wise counsel and
dedication during the past year. | also extend our grateful
thanks and appreciation to our business partners,
with whom we look forward to further extending our
cooperation in the coming year. | would also like to
thank the management team and staff of BEA for their
commitment and outstanding performance. Lastly, on
behalf of my entire team, | thank our shareholders and
customers for their long-standing loyalty and confidence
in The Bank of East Asia.

David LI Kwok-po

Chairman & Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 12th February, 2015
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REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Performance

For the year 2014, the Group again achieved a record-
high profit attributable to owners of the parent of
HK$6,661 million, an increase of HK$48 million or 0.7%
compared with the HK$6,613 million earned in 2013.
Basic earnings per share were HK$2.72. Return on
average equity and return on average assets were 10.1%
and 0.8%, respectively.

Group net interest income increased by HK$391 million,
or 3.2%, in 2014 to HK$12,653 million, primarily due to
growth in advances to customers and trade bills. Net fee
and commission income rose by HK$249 million, or 6.4%,
to HK$4,146 million, while overall non-interest income
rose by 11.8% to HK$5,579 million. Operating income
increased by 5.7% to HK$18,232 million.

Total operating expenses rose by 2.8% to HK$9,849
million. Operating efficiency further improved as the cost-
to-income ratio fell from 55.5% in 2013 to 54.0% in
2014. If the business tax and surcharges applied to the
Bank’s Mainland operations are excluded from operating
expenses, the adjusted cost-to-income ratio would
decrease from 51.9% to 50.4%.

Operating profit before impairment losses rose to
HK$8,383 million, an increase of HK$713 million, or 9.3%,
when compared with 2013.

Impairment losses grew by 89.8% to HK$1,001 million,
mainly related to loans and advances.

Operating profit after impairment losses was HK$7,382
million, an increase of 3.3% or HK$239 million.

Valuation gains on investment properties decreased
to HK$228 million while profit on the sale of fixed
assets was also trimmed to HK$74 million. In addition,
the Group shared after-tax profits from associates of
HK$645 million.

After accounting for income taxes, profit after taxation
rose to HK$6,774 million, an increase of 1.0% above the
HK$6,707 million recorded in 2013.

Financial Position

Total consolidated assets of the Group stood at
HK$795,891 million at the end of 2014, an increase
of 5.6% over the HK$753,954 million at the end of
2013. Gross advances to customers rose by 9.4% to
HK$443,287 million. Total equity increased to HK$73,444
million, up 7.6%.

Total deposits from customers grew by 2.5% to
HK$548,184 million. Demand deposits and current
account balances decreased by HK$1,922 million, or
2.8%, compared with the balance at year-end 2013.
Savings deposits increased to HK$100,782 million, a rise
of 8.4%, while time deposits increased by HK$7,289
million, or 2.0%, when compared with the year-end
positions. Total deposit funds, comprising deposits from
customers and all certificates of deposit issued, grew by
2.5% to HK$592,582 million.

The loan-to-deposit ratio was 74.8% at the end of
December 2014, 4.7 percentage points higher than the
70.1% reported at the end of 2013.

RATINGS

Standard & Poor’s

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Long-term Counterparty Credit A
(local and foreign currency)

Short-term Counterparty Credit A-1
(local and foreign currency)
Outlook Stable

The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited

Long-term Counterparty Credit A
(local and foreign currency)

Short-term Counterparty Credit A-1
(local and foreign currency)
Outlook Stable

Moody’s Investor Service

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Long-term Bank Deposit A2
(local and foreign currency)

Short-term Bank Deposit Prime-1
(local and foreign currency)
Bank Financial Strength C-

(with Stable outlook)

Outlook Negative
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REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
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The Bank of East Asia, Limited RIzR{TERA T

1

“2014 Best SME's Partner Award” (for the seventh consecutive year)
- The Hong Kong General Chamber of Small and Medium Business

9

'ﬁ\f Wil G
|

2014 =

2014
5%3?_3, AwARDS
8

[2014 5/ bR REAER ] GEEF 7 FEE)
- BB BFEEEE

“Quamnet Outstanding Enterprise Award 2013 — Outstanding SME
Service Provider (Bank)”
- Quam (H.K.) Limited

(BB AR AIE013 — GRS ERB
(77)]
- BEME (55) BRAF

“2014 RMB Business Outstanding Awards — Outstanding Corporate/
Commercial Banking — Connecting China and Hong Kong Award”
(for the second consecutive year)

- Metro Finance, Metro Finance Digital, and Wen Wei Po

CARBEBEHL RE22014) — [HRHEE/BHERT —
BEIRRE | GEESE 2 FIELR)
- FHAEE BRI E R (XIER)

“Outstanding Import and Export Industry Partner Award”
- The Hong Kong Chinese Importers’ & Exporters’ Association

R AR ERH AR
- BEFELAODGE

“Best Private Bank Hong Kong” in the Greater China Awards 2014
- Private Banker International

2014 RFREREE — [ BB REMART]

- Private Banker International

“The Highest Average Spend Per Card in 2013 Premium Cards in
Hong Kong — 2nd Runner Up”, “The Highest Growth Rate in 2013
Cardholder Spending in Hong Kong — 1st Runner Up”, and “The
Highest Average Spend Per Card in 2013 in Hong Kong - 2nd
Runner Up”

- MasterCard Worldwide

[203FEEEBERSamEARTHEERE —
MEE| (2035 EREBRSTEERBAERALE
— REB| [203FEREBRHZEREMARFHEERXR
8 — i

- BEEREEAR

“Best Practice Awards 2014 in Technology Innovation”
- Best Practice Management

[EREFEBEE2014 — RIRAR
- RERBERERE

The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited 3RZE$E1T (FE) BRA T

9

BENCHMARK Wealth Management Awards 2014 “Best-in-Class for
Product & Service Innovation (Banking)” and “Outstanding Achiever
for Customer Commitment & Engagement (Banking)”

- BENCHMARK Magazine

“Best Performers 50 China”
- Global Entrepreneur Magazine

2014KHE1R) M E BB AR [Em MRS (GR17%)
— RERRR UK [RHRRE — AR RS2 EE
(SR172E) — BRI

- (F51%) Ats

[ B ERF AT 5058 ]
- (RBKDESHEE)

10

“Best Brand Building among Foreign Banks” in the 2014 Golden-
shell Award of China Programme
- 21st Century Business Herald

2014 EEEERES B ETED [RIEREERINER
11
- 21 B EHE)

1

“Brand Leadership” in the Best Practice Awards China 2014
- Best Practice Management

2014 BIREEHERETED [REREELENKE]
- RERBERERE
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12 “Best Electronic Financial Service” in the China Business News
Financial Value Ranking 2014
- China Business News

N, 20
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13 “Best Cross-border Financial Services among Foreign Banks” in the
5th Golden Tripod Awards
- National Business Daily
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- (BRIEEHE)

14 “2014 Foreign Bank of Excellent Competitiveness” in the 6th China
Financial Institutions of Excellent Competitiveness Awards
- China Business Journal

EAEFBHEF NS REEED (2014 F-HEF I
=Eicell
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Blue Cross (Asia-Pacific) Insurance Limited B+ (ZK) {REER QT

15 “The 14th Capital Outstanding Enterprise Awards — Medical and
General Insurance” (for the third consecutive year)
- CAPITAL Magazine

[ 14 EEAGHPRKIE — EHBEEE KRR
(EESE 3 FEHR)
- (BAREE)

16 “The Most Favourite Travel Insurance Company Award 2014" (for
the tenth consecutive year)
- Weekend Weekly Magazine

Credit Gain Finance Company Limited ‘BZHHKER Q7

17 “Prime Awards for Banking and Finance Corporations 2014 — The
Best Brand in Loans” (for the third consecutive year)
- MetroBox Magazine

[S&XBUOIRERR AR | GEESE 10 FELE)
- (HTRED) s

2014 #AHERITREBRBEER — REEETH
MRS | (GEAEEE 3 M%)
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18 “Capital Weekly Service Awards 2014 — Finance Service” (for the
second consecutive year)
- Capital Weekly Magazine

2014 EARSBERBAE] — [EREMBRBALE] (&
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BEA Union Investment Management Limited REBKEREEEFR AR

For the BEA Union Investment Asian Bond and Currency Fund:

19 “Best Bond Fund, Asia Pacific” (for 3 and 5-year performance)
- Lipper Fund Awards Programme 2014 Hong Kong

BFREBETNESREYES
[RETARESFES | (REBEIFRSFEEA)

20 “Asianinvestor Investment Performance Awards 2014 — Best Asian
Fixed Income, US Dollar”
- Asianinvestor

- [BHESEBFLE2014]
[Asianinvestor 1% & X IR 88152014 — &EDIMNEH
€

- (Asianinvestor)
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Economic performance remained mixed across the globe
in 2014. While the United States economy enjoyed steady
improvement, the performances of the economies of
the Mainland and Europe were disappointing. With soft
external demand, Hong Kong’s exports grew at a modest
3.2% pace in 2014.

Domestic demand and tourist spending also showed signs
of losing steam, following a strong run in recent years.
Retail sales decreased by 0.2% in 2014, year on year,
while the unemployment rate edged up slightly to 3.3%
by year-end from 3.1% at the beginning of the year.

Meanwhile, backed by solid end-user demand and the
low interest rate environment, the residential property
market rebounded. Market transactions increased by
15.6%, while prices rose by 13.3% in 2014, year on year.
Overall, Hong Kong's economy expanded at a moderate
2.4% pace, year on year, in the first three quarters.

On the Mainland, the export sector remained weak in the
face of continuing subdued demand from Europe and
a slowdown in emerging markets in 2014. Investment
growth also moderated, as China continued its shift away
from an investment-led growth model. The moderating
growth trend has adversely affected consumer spending
and the profitability of many Mainland companies.
Responding to the growing signs of distress, the People’s
Bank of China lowered lending rates by 40 basis points in
November.

While the US economy is expected to further improve in
2015, the economies of Europe and Japan will continue
to struggle.

The Chinese government is expected to maintain its
policy of restraining investment growth in order to tackle
structural problems in the economy. Nevertheless, it will
take appropriate measures to prevent any disruptive
economic slowdown. One to two interest rate reductions
are expected in 2015, and the deposit reserve ratio will
likely be reduced by a further 100 basis points. Consumer
demand will remain moderate, while exports are projected
to increase by 8%. The economy is likely to grow by 7%
in 2015, with inflation remaining low at 2.5%.

In Hong Kong, meanwhile, the gross domestic product
is forecast to grow at 2.4% for 2015, while inflation will
average 3.5%.

Looking ahead, BEA will continue to capitalise on trade
and investment flows to and from the Mainland by
leveraging its extensive China network to drive business to
its branches in key markets around the world. In addition,
the Bank will capture new business opportunities and
enhance service quality by tapping into the strengths
and expertise of its strategic partners such as CaixaBank
and Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation, who shared
their considerable knowledge in specialised financing,
technology, and customer service with BEA during the
period under review.

Business — Hong Kong

As at 31st December, 2014, the aggregate value of all
loans to customers and trade bills of BEA in Hong Kong
was 9.2% higher than at the same point in the previous
year. Debt investments increased by 14.5% during the
year, while customer deposits grew by 7.4%.

Retail Banking

BEA's personal banking operations had a fruitful year,
generating a 20.8% increase in net interest income and
a 7.5% rise in net fee and commission income. The Bank
also made significant advances in its strategy to become
the main banking partner of its customers, anchoring
them with entry products and then selling value-added
products and services to increase customer stickiness.

Growth in entry products such as mortgage loans, credit
cards, and SupremeGold and CorporatePlus accounts
was strong. As a result, retail current and savings account
balances grew, achieving a 7.6% increase in average
daily balance compared to the average for 2013. Income
from investment products and services was robust, rising
16.9% over the year. In particular, gross revenue from
unit trust sales achieved solid growth of 21.3%.
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BEA launched its revamped
website in February 2014.
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Going forward, marketing efforts will focus on increasing
product holdings and usage. Meanwhile, the Bank aims
to grow market share amongst local companies by
enhancing its business and merchant services platform,
offering banking, payroll, Mandatory Provident Fund,
and credit card merchant services through a single point
of contact.

Towards the end of 2014, BEA entered into a Sale and
Purchase Deed to acquire the mortgage loan portfolio of
PrimeCredit Limited. This move will bolster the Bank’s loan
book and bring in a significant number of new-to-bank
customers, creating further opportunities for cross-selling.

BEA continues to revitalise its network and invest in
technology in order to improve its image and enhance
the customer experience. The year under review saw
the launch of two new SupremeGold Centres at prime
locations accompanied by a major rebranding campaign,
boosting sales and account openings. The centres, at
Times Square and Harbour City, feature a revamped
design and an improved service flow.

Meanwhile, the Bank’s digital branches at the ifc mall
and Times Square have been successful, proving popular
with customers and winning a number of awards for
their innovative, customer-focussed technology. As part
of the effort to improve branch operations, the Queen’s
Road East Branch and SupremeGold Centre have been
renovated, incorporating digital devices and piloting a
straight-through, paperless branch operation model to
enhance efficiency and service delivery. BEA will continue
to upgrade its branch services with new technologies
and processes, helping the Bank to achieve its goal of
becoming the primary service provider for its clients.

Corporate and Commercial Banking

Macro conditions in China and tightened regulations
on both sides of the border have led to a difficult
environment for the Bank’s cross-border business,
which in recent years has helped to underpin growth
for corporate and commercial banking in Hong Kong.
There are growing concerns over the credit quality of
companies on the Mainland, and as a result, cross-
border lending has moderated.

BEA has weathered this storm due in part to the trust it
has earned from a pool of quality Mainland companies
over the years, allowing the Bank to cherry-pick deals
from quality borrowers with good collateral. As a result,
growth in cross-border facilities remained positive in
2014, at 11.2% year on year. Overall, the corporate loan
and trade bills portfolio grew by 5.7%, while the impaired
loan ratio was maintained at a very low level. Net interest
income came under pressure, but net fee and commission
income saw healthy growth of 13.0%.

The Bank is currently focussed on strengthening
its capabilities in commercial banking, leveraging a
strong China-Hong Kong platform to provide better
services to existing clients and build deeper, lasting
partnerships. Despite the current economic situation,
there are good prospects for business from Mainland
companies who are expanding overseas and look to
Hong Kong as a fundraising destination. As a well-
established local bank with a large presence in China
and an international network, BEA is uniquely placed
to benefit from this trend.

The Bank opened two new SupremeGold Centres in 2014 that featured a fresh new look and improved service flow.

2014%F - REBRITHARMAZOBRL BRI PO - RREFER - ARPRHEEERAORY -

SupremeGold
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BEA opened its Times Square digital branch in June 2014.
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More than 650 of BEA's corporate and personal customers attended the
Bank’s annual Economic and Market Outlook Seminar in January 2014.

201451 A » #1650 EFEAEF HEREBRITOFE [EBERTS
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In Hong Kong, competition has intensified as banks
switch focus from cross-border business to local lending,
and loan spreads have thus been driven downwards.
However, BEA saw solid loan demand from Hong Kong
property developers in 2014, and was active in arranging
bilateral loans for quality blue-chips and mid-cap
companies. Moreover, the Bank was named Best SME
Partner for the seventh consecutive year in recognition of
its dedication to small and medium sized enterprises.

Insurance and MPF Services

BEA Life Limited, the Bank’s wholly-owned life insurance
arm, achieved double-digit growth for the sixth straight
year, with new premium income increasing by 17.7%
year on year. Meanwhile, BEA's wholly-owned general
insurance arm, Blue Cross (Asia-Pacific) Insurance
Limited, saw premium income increase by 6.6% over
the period, mainly driven by an 8.0% rise in medical
insurance income.

Blue Cross remains a leading player in medical insurance,
and in 2014 launched a top-up individual medical
scheme for group medical insurance scheme members
and new plans for SMEs. The company is developing
additional new products to meet the needs of an ageing
and increasingly health-conscious population, as well as
the requirements of upcoming government healthcare
reform measures.

BEA received the “2014 Best SME’s Partner Award”
for the seventh consecutive year from the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Small and Medium Business.
RORTEEE 7 FREESER N ACEEEERE
[2014p/ MEEFIERELR] -

poRnsmEn
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7 Best SME's Award

Total membership in BEA's MPF schemes reached
603,890, with more than 86,180 new members acquired.
Assets under management amounted to HK$18.6 billion
at the end of 2014, representing growth of 8.1% year
on year. Continuous efforts to cut costs by streamlining
operations saw BEA’s fund expense ratio drop below
the MPF industry average during the year, fulfilling the
Bank’s pledge to offer a wide range of fund choices at
competitive prices.

Wealth Management

The year 2014 marked a significant milestone for BEA
as the Bank was named Best Private Bank in Hong Kong
by Private Banker International, a notable feat as BEA
only established its Private Banking arm nine years ago.
Private Banking’s AUM increased by 9.0% year on year
while net fee and commission income grew by 35.2%.
Unit trust sales remained strong, and fee income from
investment products was balanced among the major
asset types (equities, fixed income, and currency).
However, net interest income came under pressure due
to increased funding costs, despite a 15.8% increase in
the loan balance.
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Given Hong Kong’'s emergent position as China’s
wealth management hub, the Bank aims to build on
its achievements and take a leading role in the market.
To this end, Private Banking’s sales force has been
strengthened with a view to expanding its Mainland
client base, which now accounts for 28.4% of its total
AUM and around 37.6% of its income. These clients are
increasingly focussed on wealth preservation and estate
planning, and Private Banking has adopted a holistic
approach to cater to their needs, incorporating a wide
spectrum of tailored services to help them grow, manage,
and pass on their wealth effectively.

Broking Operations

The Bank’s broking operations saw a slight decline
in income in 2014, as keen competition from both
traditional and online brokers put pressure on commission
rates. A modest increase in average daily turnover of the
Stock Exchange and strong growth in interest income
derived from initial public offering stagging loans failed to
offset the decline in commissions.

BEA continued to invest in its broking business during
the period under review. In the last quarter of 2014,
the Bank upgraded its trading platform to provide more
user-friendly functions over a highly secure platform.
The introduction of new mobile applications, which are

expected to be launched in 2015, will further enhance
the Bank’s online offering. With clients becoming more
interested in participating in the A share market via
Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and the launch of
various marketing campaigns in the coming year, the
Bank is confident that it will enlarge its customer base
and increase the average income per customer.

Business — Greater China ex-Hong Kong

In 2014, China’s gross domestic product and
consumer price index increased by 7.4% and 2.0%
respectively, with the slowdown reflecting the central
government'’s continued efforts to promote economic
reform and restructuring. The possibility of deflation
has not been insignificant, compelling the authorities
to compromise their positive agenda with fiscal and
monetary interventions to manage the high level of
debt in the system and the risk of a prolonged balance
sheet recession.

Against this backdrop, BEA China has been cautious in
extending credit, preferring to work more closely with
the highest quality clients with whom it has enjoyed
the longest relationships. As at 31st December, 2014,
total loans increased by 3.4% to HK$149.0 billion while
deposits dropped by 3.2% to HK$205.1 billion compared
to the previous year.

East Asia Securities Company Limited launched
its revamped website in November 2014.
20145 1M A REFFARDFAMH2HEE
e -
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BEA held a seminar in May 2014 to discuss the latest developments and opportunities in the Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modern
Service Industry Cooperation Zone.
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BEA China launched its “Fingertip Banking” series of mobile financial products in October 2014.

2014510 B - RGBS [ERIRIT] RIIRBD S RER -

BEA China has also pivoted to work with BEA's business
units in Hong Kong and overseas to provide cross-border
and overseas banking services for Mainland clients
expanding outside of China. This has helped BEA China
to both better manage the composition of its loan book
and to earn greater fee income. As at the end of 2014,
BEA China’s outstanding amount of standby letters of
credit had increased by 106.9% year on year, concurrently
driving a 65.8% increase in fee income.

Nonetheless, BEA China has not been able to escape the
macroeconomic pressures described above. Its net interest
margin for the year fell by 13 basis points year on year to
2.20%. Going forward, affected by asymmetrical interest
rate cuts and the upward adjustment of the upper limit of
deposit rates by the PBOC, the Bank expects net interest
margins for the banking sector as a whole to remain
under pressure. BEA China will take proactive measures in
order to maintain NIMs at a profitable level.

Along similar lines, BEA China’s impaired loan ratio rose to
1.32% at the end of 2014, up from 0.49% a year earlier.
While asset quality is unlikely to improve substantially
until the economic climate has also improved, BEA
China takes comfort in the fact that impaired loans are
secured against good collateral. BEA China continues to
proactively control these loans as well as others that were
identified early as being at risk. In 2014, BEA China also
launched a new centralised credit assessment system,
which will improve the quality of data and decision-
making, and strengthen its overall risk culture.

BEA China is pleased to report on the progress of several
new initiatives. Firstly, following its early success, BEA
China has extended its pilot Supply Chain Finance scheme
to even more branches. Through the scheme, BEA China
offers comprehensive financial services to core customers
as well as their upstream and downstream counterparties.
BEA China will continue to promote the scheme in 2015,
focussing on quality customers in selected industries such
as pharmaceuticals and automobiles.

Secondly, in its retail business, BEA China continued
to develop high-yield retail loans such as micro-
financing loans, auto loans, car park loans, credit card
instalment loans, and secured and unsecured personal
loans. Preparations for the auto-finance joint venture
with Brilliance China Automotive Holdings Limited and
CaixaBank S.A. are advancing well and BEA hopes to
obtain final regulatory approval for this high potential
project in the first quarter of 2015.

In October, BEA China successfully launched its “Fingertip
Banking” series of mobile financial products, including
WeChat Banking and Mobile Phone Banking, becoming
one of the first foreign banks to tap into the mobile
banking business. BEA China also continued to build its
online Wealth Management platform with cumulative
transactions of HK$9.4 billion in 2014.

Over the next few years, BEA China aims to make its retail
business a much larger part of its operations. This would
help to diversify its asset portfolio and make even better
use of its extensive branch network.
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In 2014, BEA China was one of the
first foreign banks to open a sub-
branch in the China (Shanghai) Pilot
Free Trade Zone.
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Moreover, a nationwide deposit insurance scheme is
expected to be launched in the near future to pave the
way for deposit rate liberalisation. This would herald
a new age of competition for retail deposits, offering
both great opportunities and challenges to BEA China.
Collaborating with BEA in Hong Kong, BEA China
is confident in its ability to deliver customers on the
Mainland the same attractive and valuable banking and
financial services that have made BEA such a trusted
franchise at home.

As at the end of 2014, BEA China operated 28 branches
and 98 sub-branches in 41 cities across the country, one
of the most extensive networks of any foreign bank on
the Mainland. BEA China was also proud to be one of
the first foreign banks to open a sub-branch in the China
(Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone in 2014. BEA China will
continue to selectively expand its branch network in the
coming years to better serve its clients and to maximise
the efficiency of its platform.

BEA operates a branch and four sub-branches in Macau.
The Macau Branch registered a 38.6% rise in net profit
for 2014, its strongest performance since its establishment
in 2001. The success of BEA's efforts in Macau lies in
the Bank’s strategy of increased cross-border business
cooperation with BEA China, and a higher penetration
into the corporate and retail sectors of the local market.

In Taiwan, BEA operates two branches, one each
in Taipei and Kaohsiung. The Bank also operates
an offshore banking branch to provide RMB and
foreign currency services to offshore clients. During
the year under review, BEA Taiwan also strengthened
its cooperation with BEA China, capitalising on the
liberalisation of the RMB. Thanks to these efforts, RMB
loans outstanding in Taiwan at the end of the financial
year increased 107.4% year on year.

Business — International

BEA's international operations recorded another year of
steady growth in 2014.

Loans and advances booked by Singapore Branch grew
at a moderate rate during the year, reflecting softer credit
demand from East Asia, coupled with the effects of the
measures introduced by the Singaporean government to
cool down the property market.

With expected economic growth of between two and
four per cent for 2015 as the country celebrates its
50th anniversary, the business outlook for Singapore
is cautiously optimistic. Against the backdrop of a
slowdown in the property market, tight labour conditions,
and plummeting crude oil prices, Singapore Branch will
strengthen its relationship with commercial as well as
corporate clients, while it continues to capture business
opportunities from growing trade and investment flows
from China.

To diversify its funding sources, Singapore Branch
established a US$2 billion multi-currency Medium
Term Note Programme in 2014 and completed several
issuances.

BEA's Labuan Branch registered loan growth of 20%
in 2014, mainly from bilateral and syndication loans.
Looking ahead, the Branch will focus on expanding its
syndication loan portfolio within Asia and the bilateral
loan portfolio of local Malaysian corporates.

Meanwhile, the Bank’s operations in the United Kingdom
registered healthy loan and profit growth in 2014, mainly
due to the sustained interest in prime UK properties
by foreign investors. To support loan growth, BEA's
UK branches issued certificates of deposit to tap the
wholesale funding market.

Prime property in London will continue to attract the
attention of many foreign corporate investors, and BEA's
UK branches will expand their capability in construction
loans and corporate syndication to capture business
opportunities.
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The Bank’s operations in the US delivered solid
performance in 2014, with steady growth in loans driven
by the improving domestic economy, low interest rates,
and strong interest by foreign investors in the commercial
real estate markets in gateway cities. During the period
under review, BEA's US operations successfully expanded
their business with large Chinese corporations. In
addition, with recovery in domestic economy, the Bank’s
asset quality in the US improved further as compared to
2013.

In November 2014, BEA launched a US$3 billion
Commercial Paper Programme to tap wholesale funding
in the US. The programme will raise the Bank's profile
in the US debt capital market and help lower the Bank's
overall funding costs.

Although the US Federal Reserve ended its quantitative
easing programme in October 2014, US interest rates are
expected to remain at low levels in 2015. Coupled with
excess liquidity and fierce competition for quality assets,
interest margins in the US will continue to be squeezed.
Against this challenging backdrop, BEA's US operations
will step up efforts to develop its portfolio of quality
syndicated commercial loans.

To capitalise on increasing overseas trade and investment
activity from China, BEA's operations in Singapore, the
UK, and the US will expand business collaboration and
customer referrals with BEA China as well as lending to
large Chinese corporations.

In 2014, Credit Gain opened its fourth office in Shenzhen.
20144 » EEBBIERYIRLE 4EMER -
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Other Subsidiaries
Credit Gain Finance Company Limited

Against the highly competitive sub-prime loan market in
Hong Kong, Credit Gain achieved double digit year-on-
year growth in its loan portfolio in 2014. The Company’s
success was due in large part to its effective loan quality
control and flexible marketing strategies. Beyond Hong
Kong, the Company’s operations in China continued
to grow. A new office was opened in Shenzhen in the
second half of 2014, bringing the total number of Credit
Gain offices on the Mainland to five, with four located in
Shenzhen and one in Chongging.

Tricor Holdings Limited

Tricor Holdings recorded year-on-year growth of 19.7%
in profit before taxation, which reached a new high of
HK$340 million. In addition, for a fifth consecutive year,
Tricor reported record-high revenue of HK$1,147 million
and was an important contributor to the BEA Group’s fee
and commission income for the year under review. The
demand for Tricor's company secretarial and compliance
services and investor services continued to be strong in
Hong Kong during the second half of the year. In 2014,
Tricor Hong Kong successfully secured share registration
business from 48% of all newly-listed companies in Hong
Kong, more than any other share registration services
provider. Tricor Singapore, the Company’s second largest
office in the Asia Pacific region, also recorded strong
growth in corporate and business services during the year.
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In September 2014, Tricor Malaysia
acquired Equiniti Services Sdn Bhd.
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In March 2014, Tricor set up a joint-venture entity in Ho
Chi Minh City, Vietnam as part of its efforts to expand its
servicing network in Asia. In the second half of the year,
Tricor Malaysia entered the business of issuing house
services by acquiring Equiniti Services Sdn Bhd, which was
subsequently renamed Tricor Investor & Issuing House
Services Sdn Bhd. By offering issuing house services in
addition to share registration services, Tricor Malaysia
can offer a comprehensive suite of investor services to
companies seeking public listing in Malaysia.

As at 31st December, 2014, Tricor operated a network
covering 31 cities in 17 markets. Looking ahead, the
Company will continue to look for opportunities to
expand its network in key markets around the world.

BEA Union Investment Management Limited

BEA Union Investment Management Limited registered a
10.5% increase in AUM, year on year. This growth was
mainly due to the Company’s success in penetrating both
the retail and institutional sectors in Hong Kong and on
the Mainland.

In response to demand from retail investors, BEA Union
Investment launched the RMB Core Bond Fund in
February 2014, and introduced multi-currency share
classes (i.e. Australian dollar, New Zealand dollar, and
RMB) for some popular retail funds.

Looking ahead to 2015, BEA Union Investment aims to
broaden its product offering, apply for an RQFIl quota
to tap investment opportunities in China, and continue
to co-operate with BEA China to capture opportunities
arising from the Hong Kong-China mutual fund
recognition platform.

BEA provides leadership training
for all manager levels.

REBRITRERELABRH
BERITHIER

Our People

As of 31st December, 2014, the BEA Group employed
13,103 people:

As of 31st As of 31st

December, 2014 December, 2013

Hong Kong 5,803 5,757
Greater China ex-Hong Kong 6,051 5,773
Overseas 1,249 1,168
Total 13,103 12,698

The employment market in Hong Kong remained highly
competitive during the year under review. The Bank
focussed on recruitment of high calibre candidates
and staff retention. To maintain a competitive edge
in the industry, the Bank regularly reviewed its staff
remuneration and benefits packages. In 2014, the
Bank enhanced its major staff benefit programmes and
policies including the staff housing loan, annual leave
policy, and life insurance coverage. In June 2014, the
Bank introduced a university scholarship programme for
children of staff members of the Bank and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries.

The Bank’s Human Capital Management System, “myHR",
was further enhanced in 2014 to improve efficiency in the
workplace by enabling staff members to directly manage
many of their employee records via the system.

BEA regularly reviews its in-house training programmes
with a view to enhancing the ability and productivity of
its staff in support of the Bank’s development. Among the
new courses introduced were a series of risk management
training sessions for staff members of various grade levels.
To facilitate the roll-out of its innovative digital branches,
BEA organised training courses specially designed for
staff members of digital branches. In addition, service
leadership workshops were organised for senior branch
staff to enhance their ability to build effective service
delivery teams.
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Risk Management

The Group has established comprehensive risk
management procedures in line with the requirements set
out by the HKMA to identify, measure, monitor, control,
and report on the various types of risk that the Group
faces, including credit risk, interest rate risk, market risk,
liquidity risk and operational risk, and, where appropriate,
to allocate capital to cover those risks.

The risk management mechanisms are built around
a centralised framework and include the RIC, Crisis
Management Committee, Risk Management Committee,
specialised risk management committees — namely, Credit
Committee, Asset and Liability Management Committee
and Operational Risk Management Committee — and the
Risk Management Division. These mechanisms capture
the different risk-related management activities on a
Group basis, including the formulation of policies, risk
assessment, setting up of procedures and control limits,
and ongoing monitoring before the same are reported to
the Board. The mechanisms ensure compliance with the
Group's policies, and legal and regulatory requirements in
Hong Kong, China, and overseas. They are supplemented
by active management involvement, effective internal
controls, and comprehensive audits.

The RIC — comprising the Group’s Chairman and Chief
Executive, two INEDs, and three NEDs — assists the
Board in handling risk management issues, particularly
strategic issues. The RIC regularly reviews the Group’s
risk appetite statement covering the major risks and
submits it to the Board for approval. The related risk
levels, where appropriate, are laid down in the risk
management policies.

Certificates of Deposit, Debt Securities
Issued and Loan Capital

In 2014, BEA issued floating rate certificates of deposit
and debt securities with a face value of HK$1,020 million,
US$432 million, EUR86 million and CHF62 million; fixed
rate certificates of deposit and debt securities with a face
value of HK$2,947 million, US$1,704 million, CNY 10,903
million, GBP1,193 million, SGD140 million, EUR245
million, CHF100 million and JPY63,800 million; and zero
coupon certificates of deposit and debt securities with
a face value of HK$7,421 million, US$2,812 million,
CNY2,930 million, GBP200 million, EUR43 million,
CHF155 million and JPY2,000 million. The Group
redeemed a quantity of certificates of deposit and debt
securities amounting to HK$76,534 million equivalent
upon maturity.

At the end of December 2014, the face value of the
outstanding certificates of deposit and debt securities
issued was equivalent to HK$66,922 million, with a
carrying amount equivalent to HK$66,822 million.
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Maturity Profile of Certificates of Deposit and Debt Securities Issued
As at 31st December, 2014
(All expressed in millions of dollars)

Total Year of Maturity
Face Value 2015 2016 2017 2019
Floating Rate
HKD 2,325 1,105 920 300
usb 553 388 115 50
EUR 86 86
CHF 62 62
Fixed Rate (Note)
HKD 5,890 2,519 1,790 1,281 300
usDb 1,687 867 20 800
CNY 8,972 8,772 100 100
GBP 338 338
SGD 140 90 50
EUR 70 70
CHF 100 100
JPY 61,800 61,800
Zero Coupon
HKD 3,415 3,415
usb 1,353 1,353
CNY 1,802 1,547 255
GBP 100 100
CHF 125 125
JPY 2,000 2,000
Total Certificates of Deposit and Debt Securities
issued in HKD equivalent 66,922 53,046 4,666 8,910 300
Note:

Associated interest rate swaps have been arranged in order to manage interest rate risk from long-term certificates of deposit and debt securities
issued, if deemed necessary.

In 2014, BEA issued loan capital with a face value of US$500 million.

At the end of December 2014, the face value of the outstanding loan capital issued was equivalent to HK$17,098 million,
with a carrying amount equivalent to HK$17,335 million.

Maturity Profile of Loan Capital
As at 31st December, 2014
(All expressed in millions of dollars)

Total Year of Maturity
Face Value 2020 2022 2024
USD (Notes 1 & 2) 1,600 600 500 500
SGD (Note 3) 800 800
Total Loan Capital issued In HKD equivalent 17,098 4,653 8,568 3,877

Notes:

1. The US$500 million loan capital that matures in 2022 will be callable on 4th May, 2017.
2. The US$500 million loan capital that matures in 2024 will be callable on 20th November, 2019.
3. Callable on 13th September, 2017.

David LI Kwok-po

Chairman & Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 12th February, 2015
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DIRECTORS

Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po

GBM, GBS, OBE, JB MA Cantab. (Economics & Law), Hon. LLD
(Cantab), Hon. DSc. (Imperial), Hon. LLD (Warwick), Hon. DBA
(Edinburgh Napier), Hon. D.Hum.Litt. (Trinity, USA), Hon. LLD (Hong
Kong), Hon. DSocSc (Lingnan), Hon. DLitt (Macquarie), Hon. DSocSc
(CUHK), FCA, FCPA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIB, FHKIB, FBCS, CITP FCIArb,
Officier de I’Ordre de la Couronne, Grand Officer of the Order of
the Star of Italian Solidarity, The Order of the Rising Sun, Gold Rays
with Neck Ribbon, Commandeur dans I'Ordre National de la Légion
d'Honneur

Chairman & Chief Executive, Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and the Risk Committee, and Member of the
Remuneration Committee

Sir David, aged 75, joined the Bank in 1969. He was appointed a
Director in 1977, Chief Executive in 1981, Deputy Chairman in 1995
and Chairman in 1997. Sir David is the Chairman or a Director of
various members of the Bank Group, and he is also the Chairman
or a Member of various committees appointed by the Board.

Sir David is a Member of the Council of the Treasury Markets
Association. He is the Pro-Chancellor of the University of
Hong Kong, an Advisory Committee Member of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong S.H. Ho College, Chairman of the
ICAEW Hong Kong Chapter Advisory Board, an Honorary Fellow
of the School of Accountancy, Central University of Finance and
Economics and a Companion of the Chartered Management
Institute. He was a Member of the Legislative Council of Hong
Kong from 1985 to 2012.

Sir David is the Chairman of The Chinese Banks’ Association
Limited. He is the Honorary Chairman of The Chamber of
Hong Kong Listed Companies. Sir David is Vice President of the
Council of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, Chairman of the
Saint Joseph's College Foundation Limited and a Member of the
International Advisory Council of the Cambridge Commonwealth

=
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GBM, GBS, OBE, JP MA Cantab. (Economics &
Law), Hon. LLD (Cantab), Hon. DSc. (Imperial),
Hon. LLD (Warwick), Hon. DBA (Edinburgh
Napier), Hon. D.Hum.Litt. (Trinity, USA), Hon.
LLD (Hong Kong), Hon. DSocSc (Lingnan), Hon.
DLitt (Macquarie), Hon. DSocSc (CUHK), FCA,
FCPA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIB, FHKIB, FBCS, CITP
FCIArb, Officier de I’Ordre de la Couronne,
Grand Officer of the Order of the Star of Italian
Solidarity, The Order of the Rising Sun, Gold
Rays with Neck Ribbon, Commandeur dans
I’Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur
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Trust and Cambridge Overseas Trust. He is also an Emeritus
Trustee of the Cambridge Foundation and a Trustee Emeritus
of the Institute for Advanced Study in Princeton. Sir David is
Chairman of the Advisory Board of The Salvation Army, Hong Kong
and Macau Command, Chairman of the Executive Committee of
St. James’ Settlement and he also serves on the Hong Kong Red
Cross Advisory Board. He is a Council Member of the Employers’
Federation of Hong Kong, a Director of the David Li Kwok-po
Charitable Foundation Limited, a Founder Member and an Executive
Committee Member of the Heung Yee Kuk Foundation Limited,
Chairman of The Légion d'Honneur Club Hong Kong Chapter
Association Limited and Chairman of the Executive Committee of
The Marco Polo Society Limited.

Sir David is an Independent Non-executive Director of Guangdong
Investment Limited, The Hong Kong and China Gas Company
Limited, The Hongkong and Shanghai Hotels, Limited, PCCW
Limited, San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited, SCMP Group
Limited and Vitasoy International Holdings Limited. He is also
a Director of Hong Kong Interbank Clearing Limited. He was a
Director of CaixaBank, S.A.Nee (listed in Spain), a Non-independent
Non-executive Director of AFFIN Holdings Berhad (listed in Malaysia),
an Independent Non-executive Director of China Overseas Land &
Investment Limited and COSCO Pacific Limited.

Sir David is a Member of the Board of Trustees of the Asia Society
International Council, a Member of the Asia Business Council, a
Member of the Munich Re Greater China Advisory Board, and
Chairman Emeritus of the Asian Youth Orchestra Board. He serves
on the advisory boards of Federal Reserve Bank of New York's
International Advisory Committee and Hospital for Special Surgery.
Sir David is the Chairman of the INSEAD East Asia Council, the Non-
executive Chairman for Edelman Asia-Pacific and a Senior Adviser
of Metrobank.

Sir David is the brother of Professor Arthur LI Kwok-cheung, the
nephew of Mr. Eric LI Fook-chuen, the cousin of Mr. Aubrey LI
Kwok-sing and Mr. Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze, and the father of
Mr. Adrian David LI Man-kiu and Mr. Brian David LI Man-bun.
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Professor Arthur LI Kwok-cheung

GBS, MA, MD, M.B.B.Chir (Cantab), DSc (Hon), DLitt (Hon), Hon
DSc (Med), LLD (Hon), Hon Doc (Soka), FRCS (Eng & Edin), FRACS,
Hon FACS, Hon FRCS (Glasg & 1), Hon FRSM, Hon FPCS, Hon FCSHK,
Hon FRCP (Lond), JP

Deputy Chairman, Non-executive Director and Member of the Risk
Committee

Professor Li, aged 69, was a Director of the Bank (1995-2002) and
was re-appointed a Director in 2008 and was appointed a Deputy
Chairman in 2009.

Professor Li is a Member of the Executive Council of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (he was also a Member during 2002
to June 2007). He is also a Member of the National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.

Professor Li is an Independent Non-executive Director of Shangri-La
Asia Limited and Nature Home Holding Company Limited (formerly
known as Nature Flooring Holding Company Limited) and a Director
of CaixaBank, S.A.N° (listed in Spain). He was an Independent
Non-executive Director of The Wharf (Holdings) Limited, a Non-
Independent Non-executive Director of AFFIN Holdings Berhad (listed
in Malaysia) and a Non-executive Director of BioDiem Ltd. (delisted
from Australian Securities Exchange in November 2013).

Professor Li was the Secretary for Education and Manpower of
the Government of HKSAR (2002-June 2007). Before these
appointments, he was the Vice Chancellor of the Chinese University
of Hong Kong (1996-2002) and was the Chairman of Department
of Surgery and the Dean of Faculty of Medicine of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong.

Professor Li had held many important positions in various social
service organisations, medical associations, and educational bodies,
including the Education Commission, Committee on Science and
Technology, the Hospital Authority, the Hong Kong Medical Council,
the University Grants Committee, the College of Surgeons of Hong
Kong, and the United Christian Medical Services Board. He was a
Member of the Board of Directors of the Hong Kong Science and
Technology Parks Corporation and the Hong Kong Applied Science
and Technology Research Institute, and Vice President of the
Association of University Presidents of China. He was a Hong Kong
Affairs Adviser to China.

Professor Li is the brother of Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po,
the nephew of Mr. Eric LI Fook-chuen, the cousin of Mr. Aubrey LI
Kwok-sing and Mr. Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze, and the uncle of
Mr. Adrian David LI Man-kiu and Mr. Brian David LI Man-bun.
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Dr. Allan WONG Chi-yun

GBS, MBE, BSc, MSEE, Hon. DTech, JP

Deputy Chairman, Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee, Member of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee

Dr. Wong, aged 64, was appointed a Director in 1995 and a Deputy
Chairman in 2009. He is the Chairman and Group Chief Executive
Officer of VTech Holdings Limited. Dr. Wong is an Independent
Non-executive Director of China-Hongkong Photo Products
Holdings Ltd. and Li & Fung Ltd.

Dr. Wong holds a Bachelor of Science degree in electrical
engineering from the University of Hong Kong, a Master of Science
degree in electrical and computer engineering from the University
of Wisconsin and an honorary degree of Doctor of Technology from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Dr. Wong is the nephew of Mr. WONG Chung-hin.
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Mr. WONG Chung-hin

CBE, JP
Independent Non-executive Director and Member of the Audit
Committee

Mr. Wong, aged 81, is a solicitor. He was appointed a Director in
1977. Mr. Wong is the Consultant of PC. Woo & Co. He is also
an Independent Non-executive Director of Power Assets Holdings
Limited and Hutchison Whampoa Limited.

Mr. Wong is the uncle of Dr. Allan WONG Chi-yun.
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Mr. Aubrey LI Kwok-sing

ScB, MBA
Non-executive Director, Member of the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Risk Committee

Mr. Li, aged 65, was appointed a Director in 1995. He is Chairman
of IAM Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited (formerly known as MCL
Partners Limited) and Chairman of the Advisory Board of MCL
Financial Group Limited, both Hong Kong based investment firms.
Mr. Li possesses extensive experience in the fields of investment
banking, merchant banking and capital markets. He is also an
Independent Non-executive Director of Cafe de Coral Holdings
Limited, China Everbright International Limited, Kunlun Energy
Company Limited, Kowloon Development Co. Ltd, Pokfulam
Development Company Limited, Tai Ping Carpets International
Limited and a Director of AFFIN Bank Berhad.

Mr. Li has an ScB in Civil Engineering from Brown University and a
Master of Business Administration from Columbia University.

Mr. Li is the nephew of Mr. Eric LI Fook-chuen, the cousin of Dr. the
Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po, Professor Arthur LI Kwok-cheung and
Mr. Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze, and the uncle of Mr. Adrian David
LI Man-kiu and Mr. Brian David LI Man-bun.
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Mr. Winston LO Yau-lai

SBS, BSc, MSc

Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman of the Audit
Committee, Member of the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Risk Committee

Mr. Lo, aged 73, was appointed a Director in 2000. He is the
Executive Chairman of Vitasoy International Holdings Limited.

Mr. Lo graduated from the University of lllinois with a Bachelor of
Science degree in Food Science and gained his Master of Science
degree in Food Science from Cornell University.

Mr. Lo is a Director of Ping Ping Investment Company Ltd.

Mr. Lo is a Life Member of the Cornell University Council.
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Tan Sri Dr. KHOO Kay-peng

PSM, DPMJ, KMN, JP Hon. DLitt, Hon. LLD, Hon. Ph.D
Independent Non-executive Director, Member of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee

Tan Sri Dr. Khoo, aged 76, was appointed a Director in 2001.
Dr. Khoo is the Chairman and Chief Executive of The MUl Group,
a Malaysia-based corporation with diversified business operations
in the Asia Pacific, the United States of America (“USA") and the
United Kingdom (“UK"). He is the Chairman and Chief Executive of
Malayan United Industries Berhad and MUI Properties Berhad (both
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listed in Malaysia). Dr. Khoo is also the Chairman of Laura Ashley
Holdings plc (listed in London) and Corus Hotels Limited in UK and
Pan Malaysian Industries Berhad (delisted in Malaysia in June 2014).
He is also a Non-executive Director of SCMP Group Limited.

Dr. Khoo is a Trustee of Regent University, Virginia, USA, and a
Board Member of Northwest University, Seattle, USA. He also
serves as a Council Member of the Malaysian-British Business
Council, the Malaysia-China Business Council and the Asia Business
Council. Previously, Dr. Khoo had served as the Chairman of the
Malaysia Tourist Development Corporation (a Government Agency),
the Vice Chairman of Malayan Banking Berhad (Maybank) and a
Trustee of the National Welfare Foundation, Malaysia.
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Mr. Richard LI Tzar-kai
Non-executive Director

Mr. Li, aged 48, was appointed a Director in 2001. Mr. Li is an
Executive Director and the Chairman of PCCW Limited, one of
Asia's leading companies in Information and Communications
Technologies (ICT). He is also the Executive Chairman and an
Executive Director of HKT Limited and HKT Management Limited,
the trustee-manager of the HKT Trust. He is also the Chairman and
Chief Executive of the Pacific Century Group, an Executive Director
and the Chairman of Pacific Century Premium Developments
Limited, the Chairman and an Executive Director of Singapore-based
Pacific Century Regional Developments Limited (listed in Singapore).
Mr. Li is a Member of the Center for Strategic and International
Studies’ International Councillors’ Group in Washington, D.C., and
a Member of the Global Information Infrastructure Commission.
Mr. Li was awarded the Lifetime Achievement Award by the Cable
& Satellite Broadcasting Association of Asia in November 2011.
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Mr. Kenneth LO Chin-ming

MA, BA
Independent Non-executive Director, Member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee

Mr. Lo, aged 72, was appointed a Director in 2005. Mr. Lo is the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Industrial Bank of
Taiwan and the Chairman of EverTrust Bank (USA) and the Honorary
Chairman of the Chailease Group. He is also a Director of Boston
Life Science Venture Corp. and Taiwan Cement Corp (listed in
Taiwan). He has been with the banking and finance industry for
over 40 years and had abundant experience in securities, trust,
leasing, commercial banking, investment banking and venture
capital. He was the President of Chinatrust Commercial Bank, the
Chairman of IBT Venture Co., the Vice Chairman of China Trust
Bank (USA), the Managing Director of International Bank of Taipei
and a Director of Hua Nan Commercial Bank.

In addition to his highly recognized professional accomplishments,
Mr. Lo is also active in public service. He is the Honorary Chairman
of the Chinese National Association of Industry and Commerce,
Taiwan, the Managing Director of the Bankers Association of the
Republic of China, a Member of Asian Executive Board of the
Sloan School of Management at the Massachusetts Institute of
Technology, and a Member of the National Palace Museum Advisory
Committee and Taipei Fine Arts Museum Advisory Board. He was
the President of Asian Leasing Association, and the Supervisor of
the Bankers Association of the Republic of China.

Mr. Lo holds a B.A. in Economics from National Taiwan University
and an M.A. in Finance from the University of Alabama.
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Mr. Eric LI Fook-chuen

BScEE, MscEE, MBA, FIM

Non-executive Director, Deputy Chairman of the Nomination
Committee, Member of the Remuneration Committee and the Risk
Committee

Mr. Li, aged 85, was appointed a Director in 2006. Mr. Li is a Non-
executive Director of BEA Life Limited and Blue Cross (Asia-Pacific)
Insurance Limited, both are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank.
Mr. Li is currently the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Kowloon Dairy Limited. He is an Independent Non-executive
Director of Joyce Boutique Holdings Limited.

Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Electrical Engineering
from the University of Arkansas, U.S.A., a Master of Science
Degree in Electrical Engineering from the University of Michigan,
U.S.A., and a Master Degree in Business Administration from the
University of California, U.S.A. He is also a Fellow of the Chartered
Management Institute.

Mr. Li is the uncle of Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po, Professor
Arthur LI Kwok-cheung, Mr. Aubrey LI Kwok-sing and Mr. Stephen
Charles LI Kwok-sze, and the granduncle of Mr. Adrian David LI
Man-kiu and Mr. Brian David LI Man-bun.
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Mr. Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze

BSc (Hons.), ACA
Non-executive Director

Mr. Li, aged 55, was appointed a Director in 2006. He is a
Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Science (Hons.) Degree in
Mathematics from King's College, University of London, U.K. He
is a Director of hedge funds based in the UK and the EU and Affin
Hwang Investment Bank Berhad. He has extensive experience in
investment banking, having held senior capital markets positions
with international investment banks in London and Hong Kong.

Mr. Li is the nephew of Mr. Eric LI Fook-chuen, the cousin of Dr. the
Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po, Professor Arthur LI Kwok-cheung and
Mr. Aubrey LI Kwok-sing, and the uncle of Mr. Adrian David LI Man-
kiu and Mr. Brian David LI Man-bun.
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Mr. William DOO Wai-hoi

BSc, MSc, G.G., Chevalier de la Légion d’Honneur, JP
Independent Non-executive Director and Member of the Audit
Committee

Mr. Doo, aged 70, was appointed a Director in 2008. He is
currently the Vice-chairman and Non-executive Director of New
World Development Company Limited. He is an Executive Director
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of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited, an Independent Non-
executive Director of Shanghai Industrial Urban Development Group
Limited and the Founder and Honorary Chairman of FSE Holdings
Limited. He was the Vice-chairman of New World China Land
Limited and the Deputy Chairman of NWS Holdings Limited.

Mr. Doo is a Member of the National Committee of the Twelfth
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He is a Governor
of the Canadian Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong and the
Honorary Consul General of the Kingdom of Morocco in Hong
Kong and Macau.

Mr. Doo holds a Degree of Bachelor of Science from the University
of Toronto, Canada and a Master Degree in Science from the
University of California, U.S.A. He also holds a Diploma of
Graduate Gemologist from the Gemologist Institute of America.
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Mr. KUOK Khoon-ean

Independent Non-executive Director and Member of the
Nomination Committee

Mr. Kuok, aged 59, was appointed a Director in 2008. He is the
Chairman of Kuok (Singapore) Limited, a Director of Kerry Group
Limited and Managing Director of Kerry Holdings Limited. He is the
Chairman and Non-executive Director of PACC Offshore Services
Holdings Ltd. and an Independent Non-executive Director of Wilmar
International Limited (both companies are listed in Singapore). He
is also a Non-executive Director (Independent) of IHH Healthcare
Berhad (listed in Malaysia and Singapore).

Mr. Kuok had served as the Chairman of Shangri-La Asia Limited
from April 2008 to August 2013 and remained as a Non-executive
Director till June 2014. He was also Chairman and Executive Director
of SCMP Group Limited from January 1998 to January 2013. He
also served on the Board of The Post Publishing Public Company
Limited from April 1999 to January 2013 and was a Director of
Shangri-La Hotel Public Company Limited from April 2009 to June
2014 (both companies are listed in Thailand).

Mr. Kuok is a graduate in Economics from the Nottingham
University, U.K.
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Mr. Valiant CHEUNG Kin-piu

FCPA, FCA
Independent Non-executive Director, Member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Risk Committee

Mr. Cheung, aged 69, was appointed a Director in 2008. He
was a Partner at KPMG, a leading international accounting firm
in Hong Kong, until his retirement in 2001. He has extensive
experience in assurance and corporate finance work, particularly
in trading and manufacturing corporations in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Mr. Cheung is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Cheung is an Independent Non-executive Director of
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited, Pacific Century Premium
Developments Limited and Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited.

Mr. Cheung is currently an Independent Non-executive Director,
the Chairman of the Audit Committee and the Chairman of the
Connected Transactions Control Committee of The Bank of East
Asia (China) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank.
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Dr. Isidro FAINE CASAS

Non-executive Director and Member of the Nomination Committee
Dr. Fainé, aged 72, was appointed a Director in 2009.

Dr. Fainé is the Chairman of the Board of trustees of the Caixa
d'Estalvis i Pensions de Barcelona “la Caixa” Banking Foundationete
(formerly known as Caixa d’Estalvis i Pensions de Barcelona “la
Caixa"”) (hereinafter “la Caixa” Banking Foundation).

Dr. Fainé is the Chairman of the following companies:

(i) CaixaBank, S.AMNete is an integrated financial group and listed
on the Spanish Stock Exchange — with a banking business,
insurance activity and investments in international banks — the
leader in retail banking in Spain

(i) Criteria CaixaHolding, S.A.U.N° is a non-listed investment
company, which manages a 58.9% stake in CaixaBank, S.A.
and the rest of the "la Caixa” group shareholdings in strategic
sectors, including energy, infrastructure, services, and real estate

Dr. Fainé currently holds chairmanships and directorships in other
listed companies, where “la Caixa Group” has an interest, as
follows:

(i) First Vice Chairman of Abertis Infraestructuras, S.A. (infrastructure
manager, listed in Spain)

(i) First Vice Chairman of Telefénica, S.A. (integrated operator in
the telecommunication sector, listed in Spain)

(iii) First Vice Chairman of Repsol, S.A. (oil company, listed in Spain)

(iv) Board Member of Banco BPI, S.A. (financial and multi-specialist
group focusing on the banking business, listed in Portugal)

(v) Board Member of Suez Environnement Company, S.A. (an
expert group in water and waste management, listed in France)
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Dr. Fainé was Second Vice Chairman of Sociedad General de Aguas
de Barcelona, S.A. He also was a Director of Grupo Financiero
Inbursa, S.A.B. de C.V. (financial and banking group, listed in
Mexico) until 2011.

Dr. Fainé is a Member of the Royal Academy of Economics and
Finance and of the Royal Academy of Doctorate Holders, Chairman
of the Spanish Confederation of Savings Banks (CECA), First Vice
Chairman of the European Savings Banks Group (ESBG) and Vice
Chairman of the World Savings Banks Institute (WSBI). He is also
Chairman of the Spanish Confederation of Directors and Executives
(CEDE), the Spanish Chapter of the Club of Rome and the Circulo
Financiero. Dr. Fainé is also a Member of the Business Council for
Competitiveness (CEC).

Dr. Fainé began his professional banking career as Investment
Manager for Banco Atlantico in 1964, later becoming General
Manager of Banco de Asuncion in Paraguay in 1969. On his return
to Barcelona, he held various managerial posts in financial entities:
Human Resources Director at Banca Riva y Garcia (1973), CEO of
Banca Jover (1974) and CEO of Banco Unién (1978).

Dr. Fainé joined “la Caixa” and was appointed Deputy Executive
General Manager in 1982. He was appointed CEO in 1999 and
was further appointed Chairman of Caixa d'Estalvis i Pensions de
Barcelona “la Caixa” from June 2007 to June 2014.

Among other academic and professional qualifications, Dr. Fainé
holds a PhD in Economics, an International Senior Managers
Program certificate in Business Administration from Harvard
University, and a Diploma in Executive Management from the IESE
Business School.
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Dr. Peter LEE Ka-kit

DBA (Hon), JP
Non-executive Director

Dr. Lee, aged 51, was appointed a Director in May 2013. Dr. Lee
is @ Member of the Standing Committee of the 12th National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. He is the Vice Chairman of Henderson Land
Development Company Limited and Henderson Investment Limited,
both of which are listed public companies, as well as Henderson
Development Limited. He is also a Non-executive Director of The
Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited. He was a Non-
executive Director of Intime Department Store (Group) Company
Limited (now known as Intime Retail (Group) Company Limited).

Dr. Lee has been appointed as a Justice of the Peace by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and
awarded an Honorary University Fellowship by The University of
Hong Kong since 2009. He was awarded an Honorary Degree of
Doctor of Business Administration by Edinburgh Napier University in
July 2014. He was educated in the United Kingdom.
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Mr. Adrian David LI Man-kiu

MA (Cantab), MBA, LPC, JP
Executive Director & Deputy Chief Executive

Mr. Li, aged 41, was appointed a Director in August 2014. He first
joined the Bank in 2000 as General Manager & Head of Corporate
Banking Division. In April 2009, he was appointed Deputy Chief
Executive for Hong Kong Business, assisting the Chief Executive in
the overall management and control of the Bank Group. He serves
as a Director of several members of the Bank Group, and sits on
various board committees of the Bank and its Group members.

Mr. Li is currently an Independent Non-executive Director of Sino
Land Company Limited, Tsim Sha Tsui Properties Limited, Sino
Hotels (Holdings) Limited, China State Construction International
Holdings Limited, COSCO Pacific Limited and Shanghai Fosun
Pharmaceutical (Group) Co., Ltd (which is dual listed in Hong Kong
and Shanghai), and is a Non-executive Director of The Berkeley
Group Holdings plc (listed in London) and an Alternate Independent
Non-executive Director of San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited.
He also serves as a Member of the International Advisory Board of
Abertis Infraestructuras, S.A. (listed in Spain). He was previously an
Alternate Director of AFFIN Holdings Berhad (listed in Malaysia).

Mr. Li is @ Member of the Guangdong Provincial Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a Member of
the All-China Youth Federation, Deputy Chairman of the Beijing
Youth Federation and a Counsellor of the Hong Kong United
Youth Association. He is a Board Member of The Community
Chest of Hong Kong and a Member of the MPF Industry Schemes
Committee of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority.
Mr. Liis also an Advisory Committee Member of the Hong Kong
Baptist University’s School of Business and a Vice President of The
Hong Kong Institute of Bankers’ Council. Furthermore, he serves as
a Member of the Election Committees responsible for electing the
Chief Executive of the HKSAR and deputies of the HKSAR to the
12th National People’s Congress. He also sits on the Judging Panel
of the 2015 BAl-Infosys Finacle Global Banking Innovation Awards.

TRIB\EE

MA (Cantab), MBA, LPC, JP
HITEFFETTHAAH

FHRAECBFMNBR N2014F8 ABEE
RESE o £ 2000 F INARTT BB R
EIRTEE - HEN2009F 4 BEIH AR
THBE  TZEERTHEBES - Lk
MITHAREERNEE s BEEERER
R MEEAEBRNZHEAFNES I
BATEEERZASENEEETEHTZE

P
BEEgMNEE -

??EEEEEF%DE%EBE“_ KOHE
EEEARDF - FABEE (RE) BRA
Al PR IB%\’EIEBE A REAT
FARARIR FBEERE (fE) RHA
RAR (EEBR LS E™) 2B IEHIT
E = ' BAX The Berkeley Group Holdings plc
(ERBET) 2HEATEERBTEE R
BEHAERARZERBELIEMITES IR
= PAIE 7F £ T & 8] Abertis Infraestructuras,
SA ZBERERAZEGKE - B HEAFFIN
Holdings Berhad (fE 5 R PR E) 2 &K
B%o

FRERER/TEARBAGBEZERER
BEEZB  TEVTEXESFHASERY
BRE - IERTEFHASRTIEMNEES
FHELE MEBBELRSEE  URSE

BEFIEATEEFEIEERBNMERAEERTT
XL EERE - AKEEBIGAE
THEESREANREERBEREBRTE

EEgEIER W WREBEEERER
MITRRITRREZEREZEGEE kT
BRFAITHERET —_EE2EARKEZRS
REJBBEEGHKE - T2 2015 F Z BA-
Infosys Finacle Global Banking Innovation
Awards Z sFEBEK 8 °



50 | The Bank of East Asia, Limited | Annual Report 2014

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERGRBREEAENBEAESR (&)

Mr. Li holds a Master of Management Degree from Kellogg School
of Management, Northwestern University in the US, and a Master
of Arts Degree and Bachelor of Arts Degree in Law from the
University of Cambridge in Britain. He is a Member of The Law
Society of England and Wales, and The Law Society of Hong Kong.

Mr. Li is the son of Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po, the nephew
of Professor Arthur LI Kwok-cheung, Mr. Aubrey LI Kwok-sing and
Mr. Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze, the grandnephew of Mr. Eric LI
Fook-chuen, and the brother of Mr. Brian David LI Man-bun.

FREFAXBERILRBIEBERESRT
BEEBLTSM  RESIBAEEZREL
RELTEM - b 2RERME B BRME

)

mE}
]

/

=z

FRERTHRERLTZRT  FREREHERZ
BER - FRERERFEREEEZERE  F
BEREEZEER  URFRELEZH -

Mr. Brian David LI Man-bun

MA (Cantab), MBA, FCA, JP
Executive Director & Deputy Chief Executive

Mr. Li, aged 40, was appointed a Director in August 2014. He
joined the Bank Group in 2002. He was General Manager &
Head of Wealth Management Division of the Bank from July
2004 to March 2009. In April 2009, he was appointed Deputy
Chief Executive, primarily responsible for the Bank’'s China and
international businesses, and assisting the Chief Executive in the
overall management and control of the Bank Group. He serves as a
Director of several members of the Bank Group, and sits on various
board committees of the Bank and its Group members.

Mr. Li is currently an Independent Non-executive Director of
Towngas China Company Limited, Hopewell Highway Infrastructure
Limited and China Overseas Land & Investment Limited.

Mr. Li currently holds a number of public and honorary positions,
including being a Member of the Twelfth National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a Member of
the Advisory Committee of the Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong, Chairman of the Traffic Accident Victims Assistance
Advisory Committee of the Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“HKSARG"), a Member of the HKSARG
Small and Medium Enterprises Committee, a Member of the
HKSARG Harbourfront Commission and a Member of the HKSARG
Aviation Development Advisory Committee.
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He is a Member of the Hong Kong-Europe Business Council,
a Member of the Hong Kong-Taiwan Business Co-operation
Committee, a Committee Member of the Hong Kong Chapter,
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
(the "ICAEW"), a Member of the Inaugural Financial Consulting
Committee for Authority of Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modern
Service Industry Cooperation Zone of Shenzhen, and a Council
Member of The Hong Kong Management Association 2014/2015.

Mr. Li is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a Full Member of the Treasury Markets
Association. Mr. Li is also a Fellow of the ICAEW. He holds an MBA
from Stanford University as well as MA and BA from the University
of Cambridge.

Mr. Li is the son of Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po, the nephew
of Professor Arthur LI Kwok-cheung, Mr. Aubrey LI Kwok-sing and
Mr. Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze, the grandnephew of Mr. Eric LI
Fook-chuen, and the brother of Mr. Adrian David LI Man-kiu.

Note - Criteria CaixaHolding, S.A.U., which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of “la
Caixa” Banking Foundation, is the controlling shareholder of CaixaBank, S.A.
Each of “la Caixa” Banking Foundation, Criteria CaixaHolding, S.A.U. and
CaixaBank, S.A. is a substantial shareholder of the Bank as defined under the
Listing Rules and within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, the details of which are disclosed in the “Interest of Substantial
Shareholders and Other Persons” section of the Report of the Directors.
Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po was a director of CaixaBank, S.A. (from
September 2007 to October 2014). Professor Arthur LI Kwok-cheung is a
director of CaixaBank, S.A. since November 2014 and Dr. Isidro FAINE CASAS
is the Chairman of CaixaBank, S.A., Criteria CaixaHolding, S.A.U. and “la
Caixa” Banking Foundation. Dr. Fainé owns 0.013% interest in CaixaBank,
S.A. while he is not aware of any of his associates owning any interest in
CaixaBank, S.A. or any of its subsidiaries.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Adrian David LI Man-kiu

MA (Cantab), MBA, LPC, JP
Executive Director & Deputy Chief Executive

(Biographical details are set out on page 49)
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Mr. Brian David LI Man-bun

MA (Cantab), MBA, FCA, JP
Executive Director & Deputy Chief Executive

(Biographical details are set out on page 50)
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Mr. Samson LI Kai-cheong

FCCA, CPA, FCIS, FCS, HKSI
Deputy Chief Executive & Chief Investment Officer

Mr. Li, aged 54, joined the Bank in 1987 as Chief Internal Auditor.
He was promoted to Deputy Chief Executive & Chief Investment
Officer in April 2009. Mr. Li is primarily responsible for the Bank's
investment activities and treasury & broking operations including
treasury markets. He is also a Director of various members of the
Bank Group and a Member of various committees appointed by the
Board.

Mr. Li is a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries & Administrators,
and The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. In
addition, he is an Associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a Member of the Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute and a Member of the Listing Committee of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Samson Li received
his Professional Diploma in Accountancy from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University.
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Mr. TONG Hon-shing

BSc, ACIB, AHKIB, FCIS, FCS
Deputy Chief Executive & Chief Operating Officer

Mr. Tong, aged 55, joined the Bank in 1975. He was promoted
to Assistant General Manager in 1995 and to General Manager
in 2000. He was General Manager & Head of Personal Banking
Division from 2001 to March 2009. He was further promoted to
Deputy Chief Executive and Chief Operating Officer in April 2009.
Mr. Tong is primarily responsible for strategic planning and control,
operations support, compliance, human resources, and corporate
communications of the Bank. He is also a Director of various
members of the Bank Group and a Member of various committees
appointed by the Board. Mr. Tong is a Fellow of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries & Administrators as well as an Associate of The Hong
Kong Institute of Bankers and The Chartered Institute of Bankers.
He holds a BSc from the University of Manchester.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po
(Chairman & Chief Executive)

Mr. Adrian David LI Man-kiu
(Deputy Chief Executive)

Mr. Brian David LI Man-bun
(Deputy Chief Executive)

Non-executive Directors

Professor Arthur LI Kwok-cheung
(Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Aubrey LI Kwok-sing

Mr. Richard LI Tzar-kai

Mr. Eric LI Fook-chuen

Mr. Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze

Dr. Isidro FAINE CASAS

Dr. Peter LEE Ka-kit

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Allan WONG Chi-yun
(Deputy Chairman)

Mr. WONG Chung-hin

Mr. Winston LO Yau-lai

Tan Sri Dr. KHOO Kay-peng

Mr. Kenneth LO Chin-ming

Mr. William DOO Wai-hoi

Mr. KUOK Khoon-ean

Mr. Valiant CHEUNG Kin-piu

SENIOR ADVISORS
Mr. Joseph PANG Yuk-wing

BSSc, MBA, Hon. DSocSc, Hon. Fellow (CUHK), ACIB,

FHKIB, BBS, JP

Mr. CHAN Kay-cheung
FHKIB

Mr. CHAN Tze-ching
BBS, JP

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Adrian David LI Man-kiu
MA (Cantab), MBA, LPC, JP
Executive Director & Deputy Chief Executive

Mr. Brian David LI Man-bun
MA (Cantab), MBA, FCA, JP
Executive Director & Deputy Chief Executive

Mr. Samson LI Kai-cheong
FCCA, CPA, FCIS, FCS, HKSI
Deputy Chief Executive & Chief Investment Officer

Mr. TONG Hon-shing
BSc, ACIB, AHKIB, FCIS, FCS
Deputy Chief Executive & Chief Operating Officer

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Alson LAW Chun-tak
FCCA, FCPA, FCIS, FCS

AUDITORS

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants
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Mr. Samson LI Mr. Adrian David LI~ Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI~ Mr. Brian David LI Mr. TONG Hon-shing
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Bank of East Asia Limited and its subsidiaries are
committed to maintaining high corporate governance
standards and consider such commitment essential
in balancing the interests of shareholders, customers
and employees; and in upholding accountability and
transparency.

During the financial year ended 31st December, 2014,
the Bank has complied with all the Code Provisions set
out in the CG Code, except for Code Provision A.2.1 as
explained in section A below. The Bank has followed the
modules on CG-1 and CG-5.

The Bank has in place a corporate governance framework
which sets out a range of governance principles and
practices to direct and guide the business conducts and
affairs of the Group. The Bank will continue to review
and enhance the governance principles and practices
under the corporate governance framework to ensure
that they are in line with the relevant requirements and
the prevailing corporate governance practices.

A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board

The Bank is headed by an effective Board which assumes
responsibility for leadership and control of the Bank and
is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Bank by directing and supervising the Bank's affairs.
The Board takes into account the legitimate interests of
shareholders, customers, employees and other relevant
stakeholders and ensures that the Bank operates in a
reliable, safe manner and meets its obligations on an
ongoing basis.

The Board is responsible for providing strategic direction
and overseeing effective implementation of pre-
determined objectives by the Management'. It delegates
the day-to-day operation and administration of the Bank's
business to the Management.

Board meetings are held at least 4 times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. In addition, special Board
meetings are held when necessary. Dates of regular Board
and Committee meetings are scheduled in the prior year to
provide sufficient notice to give all Directors an opportunity
to attend. For special Board meetings, reasonable notice
is given. Board agenda is approved by the Chairman
following consultation with Directors and the Senior
Management?. All Board meetings involve the active
participation, either in person or through other electronic
means of communication, of a majority of Directors.

Minutes of the meetings of the Board and Board
Committees record in sufficient detail the matters
considered by the Board and the Board Committees,
the decisions reached, including any concerns raised by
Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and final
versions of minutes of the meetings of the Board, the AC,
the RC, the NC and the RIC are sent to all Directors or
respective Board Committee members for their comment
and record within a reasonable period after the meetings
are held.

Minutes of the meetings of the Board, the AC, the
RC and the NC are kept by the Company Secretary
whereas minutes of the meetings of RIC and other
Board Committees (as listed under the subject Board
Committees in section D on page 82) are kept by the
appointed secretary of each Committee.

T Management includes the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives and Division Heads of the Bank.

2 Senior Management includes all Deputy Chief Executives of the Bank.
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Directors’ attendance records

Attendance records of the Directors at BMs , ACMs, RCM, NCMs, RICMs and AGM held in 2014 are as follows:

Number of meetings attended/held in 2014
BM ACM RCM NCM RICM AGM
Executive Directors:
David LI Kwok-po? 4/4 N/A 1/ 4/4 4/4 11
(Chairman & Chief Executive)
Adrian David LI Man-kiu* 171 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(Deputy Chief Executive)
Brian David LI Man-bun® 171 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(Deputy Chief Executive)
Non-executive Directors:
Arthur LI Kwok-cheung® 3/4 N/A N/A N/A 2/2 11
(Deputy Chairman)
Aubrey LI Kwok-sing 4/4 N/A 2/2 3/4 4/4 11
Richard LI Tzar-kai 3/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A 0/1
Eric LI Fook-chuen 4/4 N/A 2/2 4/4 4/4 11
Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze 4/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A 0/1
Isidro FAINE CASAS 4/4 N/A N/A 4/4 N/A 171
Peter LEE Ka-kit 4/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A I7Al
Independent Non-executive Directors:
Allan WONG Chi-yun 4/4 3/3 2/2 4/4 N/A 1/1
(Deputy Chairman)
WONG Chung-hin 3/4 2/3 N/A N/A N/A 11
Winston LO Yau-lai 4/4 3/3 2/2 4/4 4/4 11
KHOO Kay-peng 4/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A 11
Thomas KWOK Ping-kwong’ 3/4 N/A 172 3/4 N/A 0/1
Kenneth LO Chin-ming 3/4 1/3 N/A 3/4 N/A 11
William DOO Wai-hoi 4/4 2/3 N/A N/A N/A 0/1
KUOK Khoon-ean 3/4 N/A N/A 3/4 N/A 1”71
Valiant CHEUNG Kin-piu® 4/4 3/3 11 N/A 4/4 171
Average attendance rate 92% 78% 93% 89% 100% 76%

Appointed as a member of the RC with effect from 2nd May, 2014.
Appointed as an ED with effect from 2nd August, 2014.
Appointed as an ED with effect from 2nd August, 2014.
Appointed as a member of the RIC on 2nd May, 2014.

© N O n AW

Appointed as a member of the RC with effect from 2nd May, 2014.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po is the Chairman &
Chief Executive of the Bank. The Board considers that
this structure will not impair the balance of power and
authority between the Board and the Management of
the Bank. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and the Chief Executive is clearly established
and set out in the job mandate of the Chairman &

Resigned as a Director of the Bank with effect from 19th December, 2014.

Chief Executive. The balance of power and authority
is ensured by the operations of the Board, which
comprises experienced and high calibre individuals and
meets regularly to discuss issues affecting operations
of the Bank. There is a strong independent element
in the composition of the Board. Out of the 18 Board
members, 8 are INEDs. The Board believes that the
current structure is conducive to strong and consistent
leadership, enabling the Bank to make and implement
decisions promptly and efficiently. The Board believes
that Sir David’s appointment to the posts of Chairman
and Chief Executive is beneficial to the business prospects
and management of the Bank.
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The Chairman ensures that all Directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at Board meetings. He promotes
a culture of openness and debate and encourages all
Directors to make a full and active contribution to the
Board’s affairs. He also takes the lead in ensuring that the
Board acts in the best interests of the Bank.

The Chairman also ensures that Directors receive, in a
timely manner, adequate information, which is accurate,
clear, complete and reliable, of the Bank.

During the year, apart from the 4 Board meetings held,
the Chairman, who is also an ED of the Bank, held a
meeting with the NED (including INEDs).

Board composition

The current Board is composed of 3 EDs, 7 NEDs and 8
INEDs. Over one-third of the Directors are INEDs. There
is a strong independent element on the Board that
ensures the independence and objectivity of the decisions
of the Board, as well as the thoroughness and impartiality
of the Board’s oversight of the Management. An updated
list of Directors, identifying their roles and functions at the
Bank, is available on the HKEx's and the Bank’s websites.

The composition of the Board is shown on page 54 under
the Corporate Information. All Directors of the Bank are
expressly identified by categories of EDs, NEDs and INEDs
in all corporate communications that disclose the names
of the Directors.

The Board has a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the Bank’s business.
Directors, who come from a variety of different
backgrounds, have a diverse range of business, banking
and professional expertise. Changes to its composition can
be managed without undue disruption. The Biographies
of Directors, including relationships with members of the
Board, Senior Management and substantial shareholders
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Bank, are shown on
page 34 to 53 under the Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management.

The Board has adopted a Board Succession and Diversity
Policy which defines succession planning and diversity
of the Board. Board appointments are based on merit
and candidates are considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

Responsibilities of Directors

Directors, both collectively and individually, are required
to fulfil fiduciary duties and duties of skill, care and
diligence to a standard commensurate with the standard
established by the Laws of Hong Kong. Every Director
is required to know his responsibilities as a Director of
the Bank and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Bank. The Terms of Reference of the
Board mandate the responsibilities of the Directors of the
Bank and also include the functions of the NEDs (including
INEDs) as specifically required under Code Provision A.6.2
of the CG Code.

INEDs and other NEDs shall make a positive
contribution to the development of the Bank’s strategy
and policies through independent, constructive and
informed comments.

The Board regularly reviews the contributions required
from a Director to perform his responsibilities to the Bank,
and whether he is spending sufficient time performing
them. It also considers whether Directors, who have
multiple board representations, are able to and have been
devoting sufficient time to discharge their responsibilities
as Directors of the Bank adequately.

The Bank has received confirmation from each current
Director that he has spent sufficient time and attention
to the affairs of the Bank during the year 2014. Directors
have also disclosed to the Bank the number and nature
of offices held in Hong Kong or overseas listed public
companies or organisations and other significant
commitments, with the identity of the public companies
or organisations and an indication of the time involved.
Directors are reminded to notify the Company Secretary
in a timely manner any change of such information.

The Bank has adopted the Directors’ Code of Conduct
and Policy on Conflict of Interests (the “Policy”) which
provides guidance to Directors to help them recognise
and deal with ethical issues including the handling of
conflict of interests and fair dealing, and help foster a
culture of honesty and accountability in the best interests
of the Group as well as the shareholders of the Bank. The
Policy also contains a compliance process which requires
declaration by a Director in respect of any (existing or
proposed) contract, arrangement, transaction or other
proposal in which the Director and/or his connected entity
(as defined in section 486 of the Companies Ordinance),
is/are directly/indirectly materially interested. A Director
shall not vote on any resolution approving any contract,
arrangement or transaction in which he and/or his
connected entity has any material interest.
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If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined
to be material, the matter shall not be dealt with by
way of circulation or by a Committee (except for an
appropriate Board Committee set up for that purpose
pursuant to a resolution passed in a Board meeting) and
a Board meeting shall be held. INEDs who, and whose
associates, have no material interest in the transaction
shall be present at such Board meeting.

The Bank has established its own code of securities
transactions to be observed by Directors and Chief
Executive, i.e. Policy on Insider Dealing — Directors
and Chief Executive (“Bank’s Policy”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in Appendix
10 — Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) of the Listing Rules.
Specific enquiries have been made on all Directors of
the Bank. All current Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the Bank’s Policy at all the applicable times
during the year ended 31st December, 2014.

The Bank has also established a Policy on Insider Dealing —
Group Personnel to be observed by the employees of the
Bank or directors or employees of the Bank’s subsidiaries,
in respect of their dealings in the securities of the Bank.

In order to assist the Directors to discharge their duties to
the Group, the Bank’s Policy on Obtaining Independent
Professional Advice by Directors sets out the procedures
to enable the Directors, upon reasonable request, to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Bank’s expense.

Directors & Officers Liability and Company Reimbursement
Insurance has been arranged to indemnify the Directors
and officers of the Group against claims made against
them jointly and severally for any wrongful act committed
or alleged to have been committed in their capacity as
directors or officers of the Group.

Induction and continuous development

A formal letter of appointment, which includes the
Director’s scope of duties and obligations, is provided to
every new Director of the Bank. The newly appointed
Director also receives an Information Package from
the Company Secretary on the first occasion of
his/her appointment. This Information Package is a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the
responsibilities and on-going obligations to be observed
by a Director. In addition, the Information Package
includes materials on the operations and business of the
Bank. The ED, Senior Management and the Company
Secretary will subsequently conduct such briefing as is
necessary, to ensure that the Directors have a proper
understanding of the operations and business of the Bank
and that they are aware of their responsibilities under the
laws and applicable regulations.

All Directors of the Bank participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Bank will keep Directors
updated on areas, including directors’ duties and
responsibilities, corporate governance and changes in
regulatory requirements, to enable them to properly
discharge their duties. The Bank is responsible for
arranging and funding suitable training for Directors.

During the year, all Directors received updated information
in relation to the following topics:.

e Summary of key changes in relation to Directors’
duties under the Companies Ordinance;

e Supervisory Policy Manuals issued by the HKMA,;

e Revised Chapter 14A in relation to connected
transactions of the Listing Rules; and

e Disclosure obligations under Part XV in relation to
Disclosure of Interests of the SFO.

Directors also attended other relevant courses,
conferences and seminars at the Bank’s expense (where
appropriate).  All current Directors provided to the Bank
a record of training they received in 2014.
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Participation by current individual Directors in continuous professional development to update and develop their skills and

knowledge in 2014 is summarised in the table below:

Directors

Regulatory Updates

Articles/Briefings/Seminars/
Conferences relevant to the Bank's
business and directors’ duties

Executive Directors:
David LI Kwok-po
(Chairman & Chief Executive)
Adrian David LI Man-kiu
(Deputy Chief Executive)
Brian David LI Man-bun
(Deputy Chief Executive)
Non-executive Directors:
Arthur LI Kwok-cheung
(Deputy Chairman)
Aubrey LI Kwok-sing
Richard LI Tzar-kai
Eric LI Fook-chuen
Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze
Isidro FAINE CASAS
Peter LEE Ka-kit
Independent Non-executive Directors:
Allan WONG Chi-yun
(Deputy Chairman)
WONG Chung-hin
Winston LO Yau-lai
KHOO Kay-peng
Kenneth LO Chin-ming
William DOO Wai-hoi
KUOK Khoon-ean
Valiant CHEUNG Kin-piu

4 4

SR~ <«
SRR~ <«

<
<

SRXXXXKXN
AU N N N N N N

Supply of and access to information

Directors are provided in a timely manner with appropriate
information that enables them to make an informed
decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities
as Directors of the Bank. To ensure that the Board is well
supported by accurate, complete and timely information,
Directors have unrestricted access to Board papers,
minutes and related materials.

Management is aware that it has an obligation to supply the
Board and Board Committees with adequate information in
a timely manner to enable them to make informed decisions.
The information supplied must be complete and reliable.
The Board and each Director have separate and independent
access to the Senior Management.

In respect of regular BMs and Board Committee meetings
and so far as practicable in all other cases, an agenda
and accompanying meeting papers are sent in full to the
Directors or respective Committee members in a timely
manner and at least 3 days before the intended date of
the meeting.

Appointments and re-election of Directors

The Bank adopts a nomination procedure in the selection
of new Directors and for the succession of appointments
to the Board. The proposed appointment will first be
reviewed by the NC, taking into account the balance of
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity on the Board.
Candidates to be selected and recommended shall meet
the relevant standards set out in the Listing Rules and CG-1.
A candidate who is to be appointed as an INED should
also meet the independence criteria set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Upon recommendation of the
NC, the proposed appointment will be reviewed and, if
thought fit, approved by the Board. According to the
requirement of the Banking Ordinance, prior approval
from the HKMA will also be obtained. Pursuant to the
Articles of Association of the Bank, Directors (including
NEDs and INEDs) are appointed for a term of not more
than approximately three years and on expiration of his
term he shall be deemed a retiring Director and eligible
for re-election. All new Directors appointed by the Board
are subject to election by shareholders of the Bank at
the first general meeting after their appointments have
become effective.
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The NC conducts annual review of the independence of
INEDs before confirming their independence status to the
Board. The relevant INEDs will abstain from participating
in the assessments of their own independence. Particular
consideration was also paid in assessing the independence
of those INEDs who have been serving on the Board for
more than 9 years and seeking re-election in the AGM.
Reasons will be given in the AGM Circular to explain why
the Board believes those INEDs are still independent and
should be re-elected.

Nomination Committee

The Bank has established a NC with specific written Terms
of Reference which deal clearly with its authorities and
duties. The Terms of Reference of the NC have included
the specific duties set out in Code provision A.5.2 of the
CG Code, with appropriate modifications where necessary.

The NC is responsible for recommending to the Board
on relevant matters relating to appointments, re-
appointment, removal and succession planning of
Directors, Chief Executive, Senior Management, Division
Heads, Chief Compliance Officer and Group Chief
Auditor of the Bank; defining succession planning and
diversity of the Board and performing evaluation of the
Board performance and Directors’ contribution to the
effectiveness of the Board.

A majority of the members of the NC are INEDs. The
Chairman of NC is David LI Kwok-po and the Deputy
Chairman is Eric LI Fook-chuen. The other members are
Allan WONG Chi-yun, Aubrey LI Kwok-sing, Isidro FAINE
CASAS, Kenneth LO Chin-ming, KUOK Khoon-ean,
Winston LO Yau-lai and KHOO Kay-peng (appointed on
9th January, 2015).

The number of meetings held by the NC and the
attendance of individual members at NCM in 2014 is
recorded on page 60.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the
NC during and for the year 2014:

e Reviewed the size, structure, composition and diversity
of the Board;

e Reviewed the Procedures for Nomination of Directors
by shareholders;

e Reviewed the Terms of Reference of the NC;
e Reviewed the Management Succession Policy;
e Reviewed the Management Succession Plans;

e Reviewed the appointments of Adrian David LI Man-
kiu and Brian David LI Man-bun as EDs and the re-
designation of Richard LI Tzar-kai as an INED;

e Reviewed the extension of employment contract for
the Chief Executive;

e Assessed the independence status of current INEDs in
particular that of WONG Chung-hin and Kenneth LO
Chin-ming who have served the Board for more than
9 years and will seek re-election at the 2015 AGM;

¢ Considered re-election of WONG Chung-hin, Kenneth
LO Chin-ming, Eric LI Fook-chuen, Valiant CHEUNG
Kin-piu, Isidro FAINE CASAS, William DOO Wai-hoi,
Adrian David LI Man-kiu and Brian David LI Man-
bun as Directors of the Bank to be proposed for
shareholders’ approval at the 2015 AGM;

e Reviewed the Board Succession and Diversity Policy
(the "Policy”) including measurable objectives for
implementing the Policy; and

e Assessed the Board performance and Directors’
contribution to the effectiveness of the Board.

The NC has made available its Terms of Reference, on the
websites of HKEx and the Bank, explaining its role and
the authorities delegated to it by the Board.

The NC is provided with sufficient resources including the
advice of independent professional firms, if necessary, to
discharge its duties.

Evaluation of the Board and Directors

During the year, the NC had undertaken an in-house
evaluation of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole
and the contributions made by each Director to the
effectiveness of the Board. The evaluation covered Board
structure and composition; Board process; responsibilities
of the Board; and duties and responsibilities of Directors.
The evaluation revealed that performance of the Board
is strong and Board process is effective during the year
2014. All Directors continue to perform effectively and
demonstrate commitment to their roles.

The NC will continue to undertake an evaluation of the
performance of the Board and Directors annually.

B. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

The level and make-up of remuneration
and disclosure — Remuneration Committee

The Bank has established an RC with specific written Terms
of Reference which deal clearly with its authority and
duties. The Terms of Reference of the RC have included
the specific duties set out in Code Provision B.1.2 of the
CG Code, with appropriate modifications where necessary.

The RC is responsible for making recommendations to the
Board regarding the Bank’s remuneration policy, and for
the formulation and review of the remuneration packages
of the Directors, Chief Executive, Senior Management and
Key Personnel of the Group.
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The basis of determining the emoluments payable by
the Bank to its Directors and senior executives is by
reference to the level of emoluments normally paid by
comparable banks and listed companies in Hong Kong
to directors and senior executives of comparable calibre
and responsibilities so as to ensure a fair and competitive
remuneration package. The Bank will also ensure that no
Director, Chief Executive or any of their associates will be
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

A majority of the members of the RC are INEDs. This
Committee is chaired by Allan WONG Chi-yun. The
other members are David LI Kwok-po (appointed on 2nd
May, 2014), Aubrey LI Kwok-sing, Winston LO Yau-lai,
Eric LI Fook-chuen, Valiant CHEUNG Kin-piu (appointed
on 2nd May, 2014) and KHOO Kay-peng (appointed on
9th January, 2015).

The number of meetings held by the RC and the
attendance of individual members at RCM in 2014 is
recorded on page 60.

The following is a summary of work performed by the RC
during and for the year 2014:

* Reviewed the Directors’ and Committee Members’ Fees;

e Reviewed the Variable Remuneration for the Chief
Executive, Senior Management and Key Personnel for
2013;

¢ Reviewed the vesting of Deferred Variable Remuneration
for the Awards of the Year 2010 to 2012;

e Considered Fourth Offer and Grant of share options
under the 2011 Scheme to eligible employees
including Chief Executive, Senior Management and
Division Heads;

e Reviewed the list of Senior Management and other
Key Personnel for 2014,

e Reviewed the Remuneration Package for the Chief
Executive, Senior Management and Key Personnel for
2014;

¢ Reviewed Annual Salary Review for 2014,

e Reviewed Annual Salary Review for 2014 for the Local
Staff of Overseas Branches and Subsidiaries;

e Reviewed the audit on the Bank’s Remuneration
System;

* Reviewed the Senior Executive Bonus Scheme;
® Reviewed the Terms of Reference of the RC; and
e Reviewed the Remuneration Policy.

The RC has made available its Terms of Reference, on the
websites of the HKEx and the Bank, explaining its role
and the authorities delegated to it by the Board.

The RC is provided with sufficient resources, including the
advice of professional firms, if necessary, to discharge its
duties.

The scales of Director’s fees, and fees for membership of the AC, NC, RC and RIC are outlined below:

Amount per annum
Before 1st July, 2014 On and after 1st July, 2014

Board of Directors:

Chairman HK$400,000 HK$460,000

Deputy Chairman HK$280,000 HK$330,000

Other Directors HK$260,000 HK$300,000
Audit Committee:

Chairman HK$180,000 HK$210,000

Other members HK$105,000 HK$120,000
Nomination Committee:

Chairman HK$66,000 HK$80,000

Deputy Chairman HK$50,000 HK$60,000

Other members HK$38,500 HK$50,000
Remuneration Committee:

Chairman HK$66,000 HK$80,000

Other members HK$38,500 HK$50,000
Risk Committee:

Chairman HK$66,000 HK$160,000

Other members HK$38,500 HK$100,000

Information relating to the remuneration of each Director for 2014 is set out in Note 19 on the accounts on page 164.
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Disclosure of Remuneration Policy

In accordance with the “Guideline on a Sound
Remuneration System” (the “Guideline”) issued by
the HKMA in March 2010, the Bank has reviewed and
revised its remuneration policy for employees of the
Group, including its overseas branches and subsidiaries.
The remuneration policy covers all categories of
employees, including the 4 described in paragraph
2.1.1 of the Guideline. The Bank’s annual review of
its remuneration policy includes a reassessment of
the principles applied in determining remuneration
packages, as well as the structure and amount of
compensation ultimately awarded.

General Principles

The remuneration policy of the Group promotes effective
risk management, and is designed to encourage employee
behaviour that supports the Group’s business objectives,
long-term financial soundness, risk tolerance, and risk
management framework.

Remuneration Structure

Employee remuneration packages may consist of a
combination of fixed and variable remuneration. The
appropriate proportion of fixed and variable remuneration
shall vary according to an employee’s seniority, role,
responsibilities, and activities within the Group, among
other things.

Fixed remuneration refers to an employee’s annual salary
(including year-end pay), while variable remuneration —
comprising cash bonus payments and/or share options —
is awarded based on the employee’s performance with a
view to better aligning incentives with risk and longer-term
value creation. Variable remuneration, which is awarded
in the form of cash bonus payments and/or share options,
is determined according to existing industry practice
and takes into account an employee’s seniority, role and
responsibilities, and the actual or potential risks that the
employee’s activities may create for the Group and the
extent to which they may affect its overall performance.

Separate bonus schemes apply to risk control personnel,
whose awards are not linked to the performances of the
business units that they oversee.

Employees’ Performance Measurements
and the Award of Variable Remuneration

The RC determines the measures and the corresponding
target levels of the Group’s performance with reference to
corporate goals and objectives at the beginning of each
financial year and when necessary.

Score-cards comprised of a set of pre-defined and
assessable criteria are used to assess the performance
of individual employees. The criteria are determined
according to the individual’s areas of responsibility, as well
as relevant financial and non-financial factors. To help
ensure a balanced evaluation, a series of compliance and
risk management ratings are also taken into account. The
major types of risks covered are market, credit, interest
rate, liquidity and operational risks. Other risks including
legal, reputation and strategic risks are closely monitored
at bank level by various risk management committees
and adjustment will be made to an individual’s variable
remuneration when appropriate. The award of variable
remuneration to an employee is based on the overall
performance of the Group, as well as the performance of
the relevant business unit, and that individual employee.
Poor performance (either financial or non-financial)
will result in a reduction or elimination of variable
remuneration. Moreover, performance in relation to non-
financial factors, including risk and compliance, forms a
significant part of the employee performance appraisal
exercise, given that poor performance in these areas can
be indicative of significant risks to the Group. Adverse
performance in non-financial factors, where appropriate,
should override outstanding financial achievements.
The overall quality of an employee’s performance — as
opposed to solely his/her financial performance - can
therefore be accurately determined as an integral part of
the assessment. This ultimately helps mitigate risk to the
Group and ensures the deployment of suitable personnel
based on competence.

Senior Executive Compensation

The RC annually reviews the remuneration packages
of the Chief Executive, Senior Management, and Key
Personnel. The Senior Management consists of the 4
Deputy Chief Executives while Key Personnel includes
13 Division Heads, the Executive Director & Chief
Executive of BEA China, and the Head of Capital Markets
& Liquidity Management Department. In determining
the remuneration packages of the Chief Executive,
Senior Management, and Key Personnel, the RC takes
into account individual performances, performances of
respective divisions and departments, and the Group’s
overall business goals and objectives. In 2014, the Bank
engaged an external consultant, Towers Watson, to
review the remuneration packages of the Division Heads
and the Executive Director & Chief Executive of BEA China
to ensure that their pay positioning and pay level best
reflect their respective scope of work and responsibilities
in comparison to similar roles in the market. The Bank
also reviewed and revised the Senior Executive Bonus
Scheme which will take effect from January 2015.

The aggregate payouts for these 20 senior executives for
2014 are shown in the table below in accordance with
the disclosure requirement 3.2.3 of the Guideline.
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Total value of remuneration in 2014

Non-deferred Deferred
Total value of remuneration awards for the current financial year (HK$ Million) (HK$ Million)

(i) Chief Executive
Fixed remuneration
e Cash-based 10.21 -
Variable remuneration
e Cash-based 7.59 5.84
¢ Share Options - 5.55

(ii) Senior Management
Fixed remuneration
e Cash-based 14.77 -
Variable remuneration
e Cash-based 9.44 2.22
¢ Share Options - 7.21

(iii) Key Personnel
Fixed remuneration
e Cash-based 35.06 -
Variable remuneration
e Cash-based 16.73 6.99
e Share Options - 4.16

Remarks:
(i) For indicative purpose only, the value of share options is calculated based on the fair value of the Bank’s shares on 27th February, 2015.

(i) No guaranteed bonuses, sign-on, or severance payments were made to the Chief Executive, Senior Management, and Key Personnel of the
Group in 2014.

Total outstanding deferred remuneration in 2014

Vested during the year 2014 Unvested as at the end of 2014

Outstanding deferred remuneration (HK$ Million) (HK$ Million)
(i) Chief Executive

e Cash-based 4.45 16.64

e Share Options 8.45 16.88
(ii) Senior Management

e Cash-based 1.66 6.42

e Share Options 11.00 21.96
(iii) Key Personnel

e Cash-based 6.35 15.93

e Share Options 4.91 10.75
Remarks:

(i) No performance adjustments were made to the unvested deferred remuneration for the Chief Executive, Senior Management, and Key
Personnel of the Group in 2014 due to their performance or any other factors.

(i) The values of share options are calculated based on the fair value on the respective Grant Dates.

(iii) The vested cash bonuses and share options relate to the 2010 variable remuneration award granted in 2011 and vested in 2014, the 2011
variable remuneration award granted in 2012 and vested in 2014 and the 2012 variable remuneration award granted in 2013 and vested
in 2014. The total number of share options granted in 2011, 2012 and 2013 are 5,950,000 shares, 5,950,000 shares and 5,650,000 shares
respectively.

(iv) The unvested cash bonuses and share options relate to the 2011, 2012 and 2013 variable remunerations.

(v) The outstanding deferred remuneration of Key Personnel in 2014 includes the vested and unvested cash bonuses and share options of 3 Key
Personnel who left the Group on 1st January, 2013 and 1st October, 2013 respectively.

Details of the remuneration payable to members of the Senior Management by band are disclosed in Note 20 on the
accounts on page 166.
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Deferral Arrangements

The award of variable remuneration to the Chief
Executive, Senior Management, and Key Personnel is
subject to deferment in such a manner as determined
by the RC. In general, the proportion of variable
remuneration which is subject to deferment will increase
in line with the seniority, scope of responsibilities, and
other relevant factors pertinent to the Chief Executive,
Senior Management, and Key Personnel.

The award of deferred remuneration is subject to
a minimum vesting period and pre-defined vesting
conditions as determined by the RC and communicated to
all relevant employees. Deferred remuneration is awarded
in such a manner so as to align employees’ incentive
awards with long-term value creation and the time
horizons of risk. The future performance (both financial
and non-financial) of the Group, relevant business units,
and individual employees, as well as the creation of value
for our shareholders, are taken into consideration when
determining vesting conditions. Vesting and payment
of deferred remuneration will be made gradually over a
period of 3 years and no faster than on a pro-rata basis.

In circumstances where it is later established that any
performance measurement for a particular year was
based on data that is later proven to have been manifestly
misstated, or it is later established that the relevant
employee has committed fraud, malfeasance, or a
violation of internal control policies, any unvested portions
(i.e. both cash bonuses and/or share option tranches that
have yet to be vested) of deferred variable remuneration
(relating to that particular year in question) should be
forgone, either in part or in whole, as determined by the
RC. In certain circumstances, claw back of vested portion
of the deferred variable remuneration of that particular

year may apply.

Future Review

As a major financial institution in Hong Kong, the
Group not only takes extensive measures to ensure that
it complies with all the relevant guidelines, rules, and
regulations, but also adopts positive steps to ensure
that ethical, social, and environmental aspects are
taken into account when determining remuneration
policies and packages.

The Group will keep abreast of the latest development
in the labour market, especially in the financial services
sector, and will review and refine its compensation and
remuneration policies whenever necessary to enable the
provision of competitive remuneration packages to ensure
the retention of talent.

C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

It is the responsibility of the Board to present a balanced,
clear and comprehensible assessment of the Bank’s
performance, position and prospects.

Management shall provide sufficient explanation and
information to the Board as will enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information presented before the Board for approval.
It provides the Board with monthly updates giving a
balanced and understandable assessment of the Bank’s
performance, position and prospects to assist the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records and preparing accounts of each
financial period, which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash
flow for that period. In preparing the accounts for the
year ended 31st December, 2014, the Directors have:

e consistently applied appropriate accounting policies;

e made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable; and

e prepared the accounts on the going concern basis.

The Bank has announced its annual and interim results
within 2 months after the end of the relevant periods,
which is earlier than the limit of three months (for annual
results) and within the limit of two months (for interim
results) as required by Rule 13.49(1) and (6) of the Listing
Rules respectively.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting
responsibilities is included in the Independent Auditor's
Report on page 120.

The Board will present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment to annual and interim reports,
other price-sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and reports
to regulators as well as to information required to be
disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

Internal controls

It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that the
Bank maintains sound and effective internal controls
to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the
Bank’s assets.

The internal control system of the Bank comprises
comprehensive policies and standards under a well-
established organisational structure. Areas of
responsibilities of each business and operational unit are
clearly defined to ensure effective checks and balances.
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The key procedures that the Board established to provide
effective internal controls are as follows:

e A distinct organisation structure exists with defined
lines of authority and control responsibilities.

e A comprehensive management accounting system
is in place to provide financial and operational
performance indicators to the management and
the relevant financial information for reporting and
disclosure purpose.

e Policies and procedures are designed for safeguarding
assets against unauthorised use or disposition; for
maintaining proper accounting records; and for
ensuring the reliability of financial information used
within the business or for publication. The procedures
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material errors, losses or fraud.

e Systems and procedures are also in place to identify,
measure, manage, control and report risks including
credit, market, operational, liquidity, interest rate,
strategic, legal and reputation risks. Exposure to
these risks is monitored by RIC, assisted by Risk
Management Committee, Credit Committee, Asset
and Liability Management Committee and Operational
Risk Management Committee. In addition, procedures
are designed to ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules and regulations.

e The AC reviews reports (including management
letter) submitted by external auditors to the Group’s
management in connection with the annual audit and
internal audit reports submitted by the Group Chief
Auditor.

e A Policy on Handling and Dissemination of Inside
Information is in place, setting out the guiding
principles, procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in a
timely manner.

e A Whistle-blowing Policy is in place, which encourages
employees to raise concerns, in confidence, with the
AC about possible improprieties in any matter related
to the Bank. The Bank treats all information received
confidentially and protects the identity and the
interests of all whistle-blowers.

The Board, through the AC, assesses the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system which covers
all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls as well as risk management
functions, on an annual basis. Pursuant to a risk-based
approach, the Group’s Internal Audit Department
conducts independent reviews of risks associated with
and controls over various operations and activities.
Significant findings on internal controls are reported to
the AC twice each year. During the year 2014, no major
issue but areas for improvement have been identified and
appropriate measures taken. The AC reports its work to
the Board on a semi-annual basis.

Audit Committee

It is the responsibility of the Board to establish formal
and transparent arrangements for considering how it
will apply the financial reporting and internal control
principles and for maintaining an appropriate relationship
with the Bank’s auditors.

The Bank has established an AC with specific written
Terms of Reference which deal clearly with its authority
and duties. The Terms of Reference of the AC have
included the duties set out in Code Provisions C.3.3,
C.3.7 and D.3.1 of the CG Code, with appropriate
modifications where necessary.

The AC is delegated by the Board with the responsibility
of monitoring and overseeing the corporate governance
functions of the Bank as set out in Code Provision D.3.1
of the CG Code.

As laid down in the Terms of Reference, the AC is
responsible for reviewing corporate governance functions,
financial controls, internal control and risk management
systems, the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
accounting and financial reporting function, annual report
and accounts, and half-year interim report.

All the members of the AC are INEDs. This Committee is
chaired by Winston LO Yau-lai. The other members are
Allan WONG Chi-yun, WONG Chung-hin, Kenneth LO
Chin-ming, William DOO Wai-hoi and Valiant CHEUNG
Kin-piu.

AC meetings are held at least 3 times a year. The
Chairman & Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives,
other Senior Executives, and the external auditors were
invited to attend these meetings. During the year, the
external auditors held meetings with the AC, without
the presence of the Chairman & Chief Executive, Deputy
Chief Executives and the other Senior Executives.

The AC is accountable to the Board and the minutes
of the ACM are kept by the Company Secretary. Draft
and final versions of minutes of the ACM will be sent
to all members of the AC for their comment and record
respectively, in both cases within a reasonable period after
the meetings.

The number of meetings held by the AC and attendance
of individual members at ACM in 2014 is recorded on
page 60.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the
AC during and for the year 2014:

e Reviewed and endorsed the policies and practices
under the Bank’'s CG Framework, including
the Corporate Governance Policy and made
recommendations to the Board, where appropriate;
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e Reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and Senior Management;

e Reviewed the policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

e Reviewed the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and Directors;

e Reviewed the status of compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report;

e Met with the external auditors to discuss the general
scope of their audit work;

e Reviewed External Auditors’ 2014 annual audit plan;

e Reviewed external auditor’'s management letter and
management’s response;

e Reviewed and approved the appointment of external
auditors for providing non-audit services to the Group;

e Reviewed the Auditors’ Independent Assurance
Reports in respect of the Bank’s financial disclosures
under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules for 2013 and six
months ended 30th June, 2014;

e Reviewed and recommended to the Board for
approval of the audit fee proposal for the Group for
2014;

e Recommended to the Board to re-appoint KPMG as
the Group’s external auditors for 2014,

e Reviewed the internal audit reports covering the
evaluation of internal controls, including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of the
staff of the Bank’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and budget;
internal control systems; and compliance with the CG
Code;

e Reviewed the Auditor’s Report regarding the internal
control systems for 2013 prepared under section
63(3A) of the Banking Ordinance;

e Reviewed the on-site examination reports of the
HKMA,

e Reviewed the Interim Report and the interim results
announcement for the six months ended 30th June
2014;

e Reviewed the audited accounts and final results
announcement for 2014;

e Reviewed and approved Group internal audit plan for
2015; and

¢ Met with the HKMA to exchange views.

All matters raised by the AC have been addressed by the
Management. The work and findings of the AC have
been reported to the Board. During the year, no issues
brought to the attention of the Management and the
Board were of sufficient importance to require disclosure
in the Annual Report.

The Board agreed with the AC’s proposal for the re-
appointment of KPMG as the Group’s external auditor
for 2015. The recommendation will be presented for the
approval of shareholders at the 2015 AGM.

No former partners of the Bank’s external auditors is
acting as a member of the AC before expiry of a period of
one year commencing the later of the date of his ceasing
to be a partner of the firm or to have any financial interest
in the firm.

The AC has made available its Terms of Reference, on the
websites of the HKEx and the Bank, explaining its role
and the authorities delegated to it by the Board.

The AC is provided with sufficient resources, including
the advice of external auditors and Internal Audit
Department, to discharge its duties.

The Bank has established the Policy on Appointment
of External Auditor for Provision of Non-Audit Services,
setting out the principles by which an external auditor may
be appointed to provide non-audit services, with a view to
ensuring the independence of the external auditor.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During 2014, the fees paid or payable to KPMG, the
Bank’s external auditor, and its associates for providing
non-audit services amounted to approximately HK$14
million, which included the following items:

e Review and consultancy services: HK$11 million;

e Services made at the request of regulators: HK$1
million;

e Taxation services: HK$1 million; and
e Other services: HK$1 million.

The fee paid or payable to KPMG for providing audit
service of the Group is HK$17 million.

Risk Committee

The Bank has established an RIC with specific written
Terms of Reference which deal clearly with its authorities
and duties. The RIC is responsible for dealing with the
Bank's risk management related issues, in particular
strategic issues, of the Group, including risk appetite, risk
management strategies, risk management framework,
risk management policies and risk profiles.
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The RIC is assisted by the Risk Management Committee
and specialised risk management committees, namely
Credit Committee, Asset and Liability Management
Committee and Operational Risk Management
Committee, to deal with daily management of risk-related
issues; and by the Crisis Management Committee to deal
with crisis management.

A majority of the members of the RIC are NEDs (including
INEDs). The Committee is chaired by David LI Kwok-po.
The other members are Arthur LI Kwok-cheung (appointed
on 2nd May, 2014), Aubrey LI Kwok-sing, Winston LO
Yau-lai, Eric LI Fook-chuen and Valiant CHEUNG Kin-piu.

The number of meetings held by the RIC and the
attendance of individual members at RICM in 2014 is
recorded on page 60.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the
RIC during and for the year 2014:

e Reviewed the Group’s Risk Appetite Statement;

e Reviewed the Group’s risk management strategies;
e Reviewed and monitored the Group’s risk profiles;

e Reviewed the Group’s risk management framework;
e Reviewed the Group Risk Management Policy;

e Reviewed the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process;

e Reviewed the stress-testing results for major risks;
e Reviewed the Group Recovery Plan;
e Reviewed the Risk Committee Report;

e Reviewed regulatory updates on risk management
related issues and considered their probable material
implications to the Group;

e Reviewed the Terms of Reference of the RIC, Crisis
Management Committee, Risk Management
Committee, Credit Committee, Asset and Liability
Management Committee and Operational Risk
Management Committee; and

e Oversaw the implementation of risk management
policies and compliance with respective statutory rules
and regulations.

The RIC has made available its Terms of Reference, on
the websites of the Bank, explaining its role and the
authorities delegated to it by the Board.

The RIC is provided with sufficient resources including the
advice of independent professional firms, if necessary, to
discharge its duties.

D. DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Board Committees

Board Committees are established to deal with matters
as sufficiently prescribed in respective terms of reference.
Apart from the AC (particulars are disclosed under section
C), the RC (particulars are disclosed under section B),
the NC (particulars are disclosed under section A), and
the RIC (particulars are disclosed under section C), the
Board has also established the following specialised
Board Committees, each of which has specific roles and
responsibilities delegated by the Board:

1. Sealing Committee is responsible for directing the
usage and custody of the Bank’s common seal;

2. Executive Committee is responsible for reviewing
all major functions and critical issues relating to the
businesses and operations of the Group;

3. Policy Committee is responsible for discussing
and formulating various strategies and policies for
managing businesses and operations of the Group;

4. Risk Management Committee is responsible for
assisting the RIC in the daily management of risk-
related issues of the Group including risk appetites,
risk profiles, regulatory updates and stress-testing;

5. Credit Committee is responsible for dealing with all
credit risk related issues of the Group;

6. Operational Risk Management Committee is
responsible for dealing with all issues related to
operational, legal and reputation risks of the Group;

7. Asset and Liability Management Committee is
responsible for dealing with all issues related to
market, interest rate, liquidity, strategic risks and
capital management of the Group;

8. Crisis Management Committee is responsible for
dealing with the Group’s management of crisis
scenarios which jeopardise or have the potential
to jeopardise the Group in its reputation, liquidity/
financial position and business continuity; and

9. Investment Committee is responsible for reviewing
and formulating investment strategies as well as
making investment decisions in respect of fixed
income, equity and equity related investments for the
Bank, and The Bank of East Asia, Limited Employees’
Provident Fund.

The Terms of Reference of AC, RC, NC, and RIC require
such Board Committees to report back to the Board on
their decisions or recommendations. Material matters will
be reported to the Board by the other Board Committees
according to their respective Terms of Reference.
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Management functions

While the Board is responsible for formulating overall
strategy to guide and monitor the performance of the
Group, the management of day-to-day operation of the
Group's businesses and implementation of the strategy
and direction set by the Board has been delegated to the
Management.

The Bank has established a Schedule of Matters Reserved
to the Board for Decision ("Schedule”) to formalise the
matters reserved for the Board's approval and delegation
of power to the Management and Board Committees.
The Schedule will be reviewed periodically to ensure that
it remains appropriate to the Bank’s needs.

E. COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for, among other
things, ensuring that Board procedures are observed, and
that the Bank’s articles of association, relevant rules and
regulations, including requirements of the Listing Rules,
Companies Ordinance and Disclosures of Interests under
the SFO, are complied with. The Company Secretary
assists the Chairman and the Board in implementing
and strengthening corporate governance practices and
processes of the Bank. All Directors have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in
ensuring efficient information flow within the Board and
Board Committees and between Directors and Senior
Management. The Company Secretary is responsible
for facilitating induction programme of new Directors
and the continuous professional development of existing
Directors. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman
of the Board and Chairmen of the Board Committees® in
the development of the agendas for the Board and Board
Committee® meetings. He also attends and prepares
minutes for Board and Board Committee® meetings.

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Bank and
reports directly to the Chairman & Chief Executive. The
Board approves the selection, appointment or dismissal of
the Company Secretary. During the year, the Company
Secretary undertook over 15 hours of professional training.

F. SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS &
INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication with Shareholders

The Bank recognises the importance of maintaining
continuous communication with shareholders and has in
place a Shareholders Communication Policy which sets

out the practices in relation to communication with the
shareholders and the investment community. Such Policy
which is published on the website of the Bank, shall be
reviewed by the AC and the Board on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness.

In order to ensure shareholders and investors have fair,
timely and simultaneous access to the Bank’s information,
the Bank through various channels, including its website
(www.hkbea.com), provide shareholders and investors
timely access and continuous disclosure of the Bank’s
announcements, financial results, and press release. The
Bank also hold press conference to present half-year and
full-year financial results to the media and analysts.

The Bank welcomes shareholders’ views and concerns
relating to the Group’s management and governance.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the
Board by addressing to the Bank’s Company Secretary at
the Bank’s registered address or email at info@hkbea.com.

General Meetings

The Board endeavours to maintain an ongoing dialogue
with shareholders and, in particular, uses the AGMs or
other general meetings which provide a useful forum
for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The
Chairman of each of the AC, NC, RC and RIC, external
auditors, Senior Management and legal advisors, are also
present to answer shareholders’ questions.

Shareholders are informed of details about the AGM
through published notices or circulars sent to all
shareholders and are requested to participate and
openly communicate their views on matters relating
to the Bank. Separate resolutions are proposed at
general meetings for each substantial issue, including
the election and re-election (as the case may be) of
individual Directors. An explanation of the detailed
procedures of conducting a poll will be provided to
shareholders at the AGM, to ensure that shareholders
are familiar with such procedures.

The Bank has provided detailed information on the
Bank’s 2014 AGM in a circular to shareholders which
included Notice of the AGM, information on the
retiring Directors who were eligible for re-election at the
2014 AGM, deletion of Memorandum of Association
and amendments to the Articles of Association and
explanatory statement on repurchase of shares. All the
resolutions were proposed on each substantially separate
issue and were voted on by poll and approved by the
shareholders of the Bank. The Bank has engaged KPMG
to act as the scrutineer for the poll voting. The results of
the poll voting were posted on the websites of HKEx and
the Bank on the same day of the 2014 AGM.

9 The Company Secretary is the appointed secretary of such Board Committees.
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The Bank’s 2015 AGM will be held on Friday, 8th May,
2015 at 11:30 a.m., the notice of which will be sent to
shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the
meeting. Please refer to the circular to shareholders
for the 2015 AGM which will be despatched to the
shareholders on or around 26th March, 2015 for
further details.

Convening of general meeting on
requisition

Subject to the Companies Ordinance, Directors of the
Bank shall on the request of shareholders of the Bank
who represent at least 5% of the total voting rights of all
the members having a right to vote at general meetings,
forthwith proceed to convene a general meeting of the
Bank. Each request must state the general nature of the
business to be dealt with at the meeting, the name and
contact details of the person making the request, must
be authenticated by the person making it and may be
sent to the Bank in hard copy form or in electronic form.
Shareholders may include the text of a resolution that
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
the meeting. The Bank will take appropriate actions and
make necessary arrangements in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Ordinance once a valid
request is received.

For further details, shareholders may refer to the
requirements as set out in the Companies Ordinance.

Nomination of Directors by Shareholders

Shareholders are allowed to propose a person other than
a retiring Director of the Bank to be elected as a Director
at a general meeting. A notice in writing shall be given
to the Company Secretary of the Bank by the shareholder
(not being the person to be proposed) entitled to attend
and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of
his/her intention to propose such person for election and
also notice in writing signed by the person to be proposed
of his willingness to be elected. Such notice must be
sent to the Company Secretary of the Bank within 7 days
after the day of despatch of the notice of the general
meeting (or such other period, being a period of not less
than 7 days, commencing no earlier than the day after
the despatch of the notice of such meeting and ending
no later than 7 days prior to the date appointed for such
meeting). The Procedures for Nomination of Directors by
Shareholders are published on the website of the Bank.

Handling and Dissemination of
Inside Information

The Bank has in place a Policy on Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information ("Policy”) which sets
out the procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information in a timely manner in
such a way so as not to place any person in a privileged
dealing position and to allow time for the market to price
the listed securities of the Bank with the latest available
information.

This Policy also provides guidelines to staff of the Bank
to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent the Bank
from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements. It
also includes appropriate internal control and reporting
systems to identify and assess potential inside information.

Dissemination of inside information of the Bank shall
be conducted by publishing the relevant information on
the websites of HKEx and the Bank, according to the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

Investors Relations

In accordance with the Shareholders Communication
Policy, the Bank maintains an open and regular dialogue
with institutional and individual shareholders, fund
managers, analysts and the media through an effective
corporate communication system which provides
transparent, regular and timely public disclosures
on the Group's latest developments and strategies
through different means. Apart from the AGMs, other
communication channels include:

e the Group’s website at www.hkbea.com;
e annual and interim reports, and press releases;
* announcements, notices and circulars;

e press conferences after the announcement of interim
and final results for media and analysts;

* meetings with analysts; and

e roadshows.

G. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions
are provided under Note 48 on the accounts. These
transactions were entered into by the Bank in the ordinary
and usual course of business and on normal commercial
terms and, if constituted connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions, are exempt from the
relevant disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

H. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Bank acknowledged that they are
responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Bank. During the year, in
strict compliance with relevant provisions, the Bank
published the 2013 Annual Report and the 2014 Interim
Report as scheduled.
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The Bank of East Asia Group is committed to integrating
environmental, social, and governance concerns into its
business and operations.

The following report highlights BEA’s major CSR
achievements during the period under review. The Group
will provide a more comprehensive review of its 2014
CSR performance in the first half of 2015 in the form of a
standalone report. All CSR reports are available via BEA'S
homepage at www.hkbea.com.

In 2014, BEA included additional Group members in the
scope of its CSR reporting, namely BEA Union Investment
Management Limited and Blue Care Medical Services
Limited. BEA also became the first bank in Hong Kong
to adopt the new fourth iteration (G4) of the Global
Reporting Initiative guidelines, which will become required
for all reports that adhere to GRI's guidelines published
after 31st December, 2015.

THE BANK OF EAST ASIA, LIMITED

Employees

To ensure that staff members are well informed about
corporate and employee issues, the Bank issues two
regular e-newsletters, namely the staff e-newsletter and
the BEA CSR e-newsletter.

During the year, more than 130 proposals were submitted
by the Bank’s staff in the “Smart Suggestion” Award
Programme. Winning suggestions were implemented or
will be implemented at the appropriate time in the future.

To help staff members develop skills for their current and
future roles within the Bank, BEA organises a wide range
of training programmes throughout the year. During
the period under review, BEA became the first bank in
Hong Kong to obtain qualification from the Hong Kong
Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualifications to conduct programmes at Qualifications
Framework Level 4. In recognition of its achievements in
developing Specification of Competency Standards-based
courses, the Bank received a Certificate of Commendation
from the Education Bureau of the Hong Kong government
in December 2014.

Recruitment and Outreach Programmes

Throughout the year, BEA helps secondary school and
university students gain work experience by holding
career talks and recruitment days in conjunction with
schools and non-governmental organisations. For a third
straight year, in July 2014, BEA joined hands with ARCH
Community Outreach to provide training on financial
products, customer service, and professionalism to a
group of secondary school students.

Community Involvement

BEA supports the communities it serves through
donations, volunteering, and other actions.

Education

BEA supports the pursuit of knowledge at every stage
of education. The Bank once again sponsored the 2014
Hong Kong Children Storytelling Competition organised
by The Boys’ and Girls" Clubs Association of Hong Kong,
providing cash prizes in Kid Master Savings Accounts to
the winners.

BEA's New York Branch invited high school students
to visit the branch for an introduction to the banking
industry and to discuss their academic interests and career
plans. In March 2014, representatives of the branch
visited Brooklyn’s Primary School #204 to introduce basic
banking concepts to fifth grade students.

To help new mothers balance breastfeeding
and work responsibilities, the Bank set up
lactation rooms in its Head Office Building
and BEA Tower in 2014.
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In 2014, the Bank introduced a scholarship programme for
university-bound children of staff members.
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In March 2014, BEA and The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology hosted a luncheon talk by Professor Ching W. Tang, I1AS
Bank of East Asia Professor at HKUST's Institute for Advanced Study.
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In November 2014, more than 70 representatives of BEA and
Tricor participated in the UNICEF Charity Run 2014.

R20145 11 B - B70 LR GRITANEENREKLMTHAE
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Health

Health remained a core focus of BEA's CSR efforts in 2014.
During the period under review, the Bank supported a
wide range of organisations including the Hong Kong
Cancer Fund, the Hong Kong Committee for UNICEF, and
the Hospital Authority Charitable Foundation.

Staff members of BEA's Los Angeles Branch participated
in the Los Angeles 5K Run in support of The Parkinson
Alliance’s Team Parkinson on 8th March. In addition, the
branch’s staff volunteered at a free health screening held
at Arcadia Methodist Hospital for low income residents in
November.

Social Welfare

A longstanding supporter of The Community Chest
of Hong Kong, BEA was actively involved in many
programmes organised by the Chest in 2014, including
The Community Chest Wheelock Swim for a Million
together with Tricor Holdings Limited. Other events
supported by BEA during the year included Changing
Young Lives Foundation’s Festival of Trees 2014, Fu Hong
Society’s 10th Charity Walkathon, Po Leung Kuk’s annual
fundraising programme, and the Senior Citizen Home
Safety Association’s 16th Secret Angel Programme.

In August 2014, staff members of BEA’s Labuan
Branch and Kuala Lumpur Representative Office visited
abandoned children living at My Father’s House Children’s
Home in Port Dickson outside Kuala Lumpur.

The London Branch was a major sponsor of the London Hong Kong

Dragon Boat Festival in June 2014. Net proceeds raised through the
event's activities were donated to charity.
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Arts & Culture

BEA sponsored a variety of arts and cultural events in
2014 including “Le French May"”, a major event on Hong
Kong's cultural calendar organised by the Association
Culturelle France — Hong Kong. BEA has supported the
event for 11 years.

Staff Volunteering

In 2014, BEA's Volunteer Team comprising more than 250
staff members recorded over 6,200 staff volunteering
hours in more than 40 charitable activities. Major projects
included:

e painting and renovation work at Cho Yiu Catholic
Primary School as part of the "World Habitat"
Campus Beautification Programme organised by
Habitat for Humanity Hong Kong;

e the donation of 150 pairs of legwarmers knitted by
more than 80 staff volunteers to the elderly living in
the Hong Kong Chinese Christian Churches Union’s
Kwun Tong Kwong Yum Home for the Aged; and

¢ the removal of invasive Mikania vines at the Mai Po
Nature Reserve organised by the World Wide Fund for
Nature on 24th May.
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BEA's Volunteer Team took part in The Community Chest
Wheelock Swim for a Million in September 2014.
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In May 2014, BEA's Volunteer Team organised a food drive to collect
dry and canned food in the Bank’s staff canteens for the People’s
Food Bank of St. James’ Settlement.
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Sharing Our Expertise

During the year under review, representatives of the
Bank shared their financial knowledge pro bono to
disadvantaged members of the community. BEA organised
two financial education workshops as part of the Hong
Kong Association of Banks’ 2014 CSR Programme for
low income families, at the Methodist Epworth Village
Community Centre in July and Hong Kong Children &
Youth Services agency in November.

Staff members of BEA's New York Branch visited the
city's Chinatown Senior Citizen Center in November
to educate elderly members of the community on
common fraud schemes and how to avoid becoming a
victim of fraudsters.

Environment

In 2014, the Bank completed the replacement of all
conventional fluorescent tubes with LED light tubes in
its branches in Hong Kong. More than 6,200 fluorescent
tubes had been replaced by the end of the project, which
will enable the Bank to reduce its energy consumption by
183,000 kWh each year. BEA also installed an automatic
tube cleaning system for the water cooled chiller in its
Head Office building during the year under review. This
will allow the Bank to save 65,200 kWh of energy each
year. By the end of December 2014, BEA had reduced
energy consumption at its two main office buildings in
Hong Kong by 2.9% year on year, well exceeding its
original target of 1.1%.

For the sixth consecutive year, members of the BEA Group
participated in “Earth Hour” organised by WWEF. For
one hour on 29th March, all non-essential lighting was
switched off in the offices and selected branches of BEA
in Hong Kong, Macau, Taipei, Singapore, Birmingham,
and Manchester; as well as those of The Bank of East
Asia (China) Limited; BEA Wealth Management Services
(Taiwan) Limited; Shaanxi Fuping BEA Rural Bank
Corporation; Blue Cross (Asia-Pacific) Insurance Limited,;
and Credit Gain Finance Company Limited.

BEA continued to carry out corporate recycling efforts
throughout the year, particularly during festive seasons.

The Bank of East Asia Charitable
Foundation Limited

In April 2014, the BEA Foundation renewed its
commitment to the development of palliative care for
elderly residents in Hong Kong suffering from terminal
illness by signing a new 3-year agreement with “la
Caixa” Foundation and The Salvation Army Hong Kong
and Macau Command. In addition to providing direct
palliative and holistic care to participating residents and
their families, Phase Il of the “Palliative Care in Residential
Care Homes for the Elderly” Programme will focus on
strengthening collaboration between residential homes
and other important entities, namely public hospitals and
the government.

Top among the design goals of the Bank’s new
office building at 33 Des Voeux Road Central was
low environmental impact. Upon completion, the
building has achieved a provisional Gold Standard
rating in accordance with The Building Environmental
Assessment Method for New Buildings.
(IMETE T 33 MM AARBEERT BIRR
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In November 2014, the BEA Foundation
launched the BEA “High Five” Club together
with St. James’ Settlement in Tai Kok Tsui.
Children from disadvantaged families
participating in the programme will receive
after-school care, homework assistance, hot
meals, and opportunities to join various arts
and recreational activities.
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For a second consecutive year, the BEA Foundation
served as title sponsor of the BEA Parent-Child
Reading Programme organised by Sheng Kung
Hui's Religious Education Resource Centre. In
view of the strong response to the previous
programme, the number of students participating
in the 2014/2015 programme has been increased
from 1,200 to 2,000.
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THE BANK OF EAST ASIA
(CHINA) LIMITED

BEA China, the Bank’s wholly-owned subsidiary on the
Mainland, continued to contribute to a wide range
of charitable causes on the Mainland during the year
under review.

Shanghai Soong Ching Ling Foundation —
BEA Charity Fund

Jointly established by BEA China and the Shanghai Soong
Ching Ling Foundation, the Shanghai Soong Ching Ling
Foundation — BEA Charity Fund is committed to improving
educational opportunities for underprivileged children in
rural areas on the Mainland.

On 10th December, 2014, BEA China and the Shanghai
Soong Ching Ling Foundation jointly held the 6th annual
Firefly Charity Night in Shanghai and raised CNY7.5
million for the Charity Fund. As at 31st December, 2014,
the Charity Fund had raised nearly CNY44 million since its
establishment in 2009.

Firefly Project

In 2014, eight new Firefly Centres were established,
bringing the total number of Firefly Centres opened
nationwide to 39 by the end of the year under review.
More than 25,000 “Firefly 60" Backpacks containing
stationery and books have been distributed to children
since the establishment of the Charity Fund. The Charity
Fund also arranged for volunteers to provide training
programmes for 120 schoolmasters and teachers in six
cities in China in July and August 2014.

Funding Plan for NGOs

In 2014, the Charity Fund continued to provide financial
support to various programmes under the Funding Plan
for NGOs, including the relocation of a school building,
the organisation of art lessons for early autistic children by
the Shanghai Qingcongquan Training Centre for Children
with Special Needs, and the provision of rehabilitation
services for children with cerebral palsy by the Shanggang
Community Health Service Centre.

BEA University Scholarship Programme

In 2014, the Charity Fund awarded scholarships to
45 outstanding students of Fudan University, Sun Yat-
sen University, and Shenzhen Tourism College of Jinan
University in need of financial aid.

Staff members of BEA and BEA China participated in a teaching programme arranged for the students of
Jianchang Hope School in Lixin County, Bozhou, Anhui Province in October 2014.

201410 A » REGBVITRRBPENE TAIELEE SN RERMSH 2R RPELHHBE -
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For the fourth year, BEA China sponsored the
performance of the Asian Youth Orchestra

in Shanghai on 9th August. The concert
enabled outstanding young musicians to gain
performance experience and helped promote
classical music in the community.
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For the second consecutive year, BEA
China held the “Bank of East Asia
Cup Financial Education School Tour”
to enhance financial literacy among
teenagers. Approximately 8,000
students from 85 secondary schools
participated in the programme.
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In September and October 2014, BEA
China’s Volunteer Team visited the elderly
at welfare centres in 16 cities around the
country as part of the “Warm the Hearts of
the Elderly” campaign.
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From March to April 2014, approximately 500 staff volunteers, family
members, and customers of BEA China participated in the Arbour Day
campaign “Tree-planting to Protect the Environment” by planting over
600 saplings in 20 cities nationwide.
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BEA China's Other Charitable Activities

Social Welfare

From February to April 2014, over 100 volunteers from
BEA China and its stakeholders took part in the “Share
the Joy Donating Books in the New Year” campaign,
delivering books, fruit, toys, and learning tools to
children of primary schools and orphanages in 15
cities nationwide. In May and June 2014, BEA China
conducted the "Get Close to Nature and Grow Healthily”
programme in celebration of Children’s Day on 1st June,
2014. Different activities including visits to aquariums and
botanical gardens were organised for underprivileged and
autistic children in 18 cities nationwide.

Poverty and Disaster Relief

In April 2014, BEA China launched a programme together
with the Shanghai Soong Ching Ling Foundation and
Hongyu Specialised Pig Farmers Cooperation in Lushan
County to help farmers recover from the devastating
earthquake that struck Ya'an City in Sichuan Province in
2013. The programme provides farmers with financial
assistance to start up pig farming businesses.

In August 2014, BEA China donated CNY300,000 to the
Yunnan Charity Federation in support of relief efforts for
victims affected by the earthquake that struck Ludian
County, Zhaotong City in Yunnan Province on 3rd August.

Staff Volunteering

In June 2014, BEA China’s Volunteer Team sold a wide
variety of consumer goods donated by staff members
in the “No More Idle Items, Be a Low-carbon Person”
campaign to raise funds for the Charity Fund to purchase
“Firefly 60" Backpacks for students in rural areas.

Macau & Taiwan

In August, nearly 30 staff members of the Macau Branch
visited Asilo de Santa Maria of Caritas Macau and
distributed moon cakes to the elderly in celebration of the
Mid-Autumn Festival. In October, staff members donated
more than 250 books to the Caritas Macau library.

Staff members in Taipei and Kaohsiung supported a
number of charitable activities organised by the Sunshine
Social Welfare Foundation in May 2014 including “Face
Equality Day” at the Taipei Zoo, which was held to
promote the importance of treating everyone fairly and
with kindness, regardless of physical appearance.
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Staff members of BEA's Taipei Branch and their family
members helped wash cars at the Sunshine Carwash
Centre, a social enterprise established by the Sunshine
Foundation to employ burn victims and those with
facial disfigurement.
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In April 2014, the Macau Branch and World Vision

of Macau Association jointly organised the “Skip a
Meal” programme to raise funds for starving children
in the world by donating amounts that would have
been used to pay for meals. Staff members also sent
warm wishes to children in Zimbabwe, Africa in “Love
Connects” greeting cards purchased from World
Vision (Macau).
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BLUE CROSS (ASIA-PACIFIC)
INSURANCE LIMITED

During the year under review, Blue Cross continued to
collaborate with the Hong Kong PHAB Association in
promoting the integration of teenagers with and without
disabilities into society. In January 2014, Blue Cross took
part in the “PHAB Walk for Integration” for the third
straight year, helping to raise funds for the Association’s
projects. In recognition of its fundraising efforts, Blue
Cross was named “gold sponsor”.

CREDIT GAIN FINANCE
COMPANY LIMITED

For the fourth consecutive year, Credit Gain worked
closely with the Evangelical Lutheran Church Social
Service-Hong Kong and the Lok Sin Tong Benevolent
Society, Kowloon to help disadvantaged members
of society. Credit Gain volunteers spent time with
underprivileged children and elderly residents of Kwai
Tsing district at events organised by ELCSS-HK during
the year. Volunteers also participated in two home visits
organised by LST in Wong Tai Sin district and distributed
food and other daily necessities to elderly residents.

In September 2014, Credit Gain volunteers
distributed food and other daily necessities
to disadvantaged elderly residents in

Wong Tai Sin district.
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TRICOR HOLDINGS LIMITED

Tricor places great importance on the health, well-being,
and career development of its staff members. Throughout
the year under review, luncheon talks were organised on
a wide range of topics including health care and personal
soft skills enhancement. To help college and university
students gain valuable working experience, Tricor also
continued to provide internships throughout the year.
In November 2014, the Company held its free annual
corporate governance seminar in Hong Kong, which was
attended by nearly 1,200 people.

In 2014, Tricor Hong Kong established a CSR committee
with broad internal representation to drive the ongoing
development of the Company’s CSR programme. In
April, Tricor Hong Kong helped organise the donation
of more than 600 books to the needy in the “Books for
Love 2014" campaign organised by Swire Properties
and BGCA. In August, Tricorians in Hong Kong donated
approximately 300 toys to The Salvation Army’s Family
Stores in Hong Kong and Macau in support of the
charity’s community programmes. Tricor Malaysia also
participated in the Locks of Hope Charity Fun Run — “Run
with a Wig, Run for Cancer” organised by the National
Cancer Society Malaysia and others in support of cancer
patients and their caregivers.

For the third straight year, Blue Cross
participated in the “Happy Teens, Full
of Fun Programme”, which provided
practical training to young job seekers
who in turn provided volunteer services
to more than 800 needy people.
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More than 70 staff members participated in Tricor Hong Kong’s first blood drive in August 2014.
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1 "President’s Award” (for the 15th consecutive year)
- The Community Chest of Hong Kong
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2 Named “Caring Company” (for the 11th consecutive year); Blue
Cross and Credit Gain were named “Caring Company” for the sixth

and fourth year, respectively
- Hong Kong Council of Social Service
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3  “Best-in-Class for Corporate Citizenship — Banking” in the

BENCHMARK Wealth Management Awards 2014
- BENCHMARK Magazine
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4  "Bronze Award” in Enterprise Category and “Certificate of Merit”
in Volunteer Team Category in the 5th Hong Kong Outstanding

Corporate Citizenship Awards
- Hong Kong Productivity Council and the Committee on the
Promotion of Civic Education
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5  “Distinguished Corporate Social Responsibility Award” in the Green

China Award Programme 2014
- Wen Wei Po, the United Nations Environment Programme
Foundation, and various environmental protection associations
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6  “Class of Excellence” Energywi$e Label in the Hong Kong Awards
for Environmental Excellence programme (for BEA's Head Office

Building and BEA Tower)
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7  "Class of Excellence” Wastewi$e Label in the HKAEE programme (for

BEA's Head Office Building and BEA Tower)

HERE [BEBRRAREMAE] Az [ S BRR ] RER
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8 Indoor Air Quality Certificate — Good Class (for BEA's Head Office)

and Excellent Class (for BEA Tower)
- Hong Kong Government’s Environmental Protection Department
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9 Certificate of Commendation for joining the Carbon Footprint

Repository for Listed Companies in Hong Kong
- Environment Bureau and Environmental Protection Department
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10 Silver Award in the Web Accessibility Recognition Scheme

- The Office of the Government Chief Information Officer and the

Equal Opportunities Commission
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11 “Distinguished Family-Friendly Employer 2013/14" and “Innovation

Award 2013/14"
- Family Council, an advisory body to the Hong Kong government
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12 Named “Manpower Developer”
- Employees Retraining Board
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13 “U Choice Award 2014 — Green Living Selection (Digital Banking
Services)”
- Metro Info Channel of Metro Broadcast

BEA China Rz

14 2013 Best Practice of Social Responsibility Award (for the third
consecutive year)
- China Banking Association
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15 “Outstanding Corporate Social Responsibility Award” in the 7th
Shanghai Public Relations Excellence Award
- Shanghai Public Relations Association
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16  “Industry Practice Award” in the China Business News - Corporate
Social Responsibility Ranking in China
- China Business News

Blue Cross E-+F

17 "2013-14 Talent-Wise Employment Charter and Inclusive
Organisations Recognition Scheme - Partnering Inclusive
Organisation”

- The Labour and Welfare Bureau in collaboration with the
Rehabilitation Advisory Committee, HKCSS, and the Hong Kong
Joint Council for People with Disabilities

Credit Gain 4EZEHE

18 “Consumer Caring Scheme — Consumer Caring Company” (for the
third consecutive year)
- GS1 Hong Kong
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19 “Caring Agency Award 2013 - One-star certificate”
- Tsuen Wan and Kwai Tsing District Co-ordinating Committee on
Elderly Services of Social Welfare Department
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20 “Caring Enterprise Award” (for the third consecutive year)
- LST
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual
report together with the audited accounts for the year
ended 31st December, 2014.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Bank of East Asia, Limited is a licensed bank
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its
registered office and principal place of business at 10 Des
Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Bank and its subsidiaries are engaged in the provision
of banking and related financial services, and business,
corporate and investor services.

ACCOUNTS

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Group for
the year ended 31st December, 2014 and the state of the
Bank’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out
in the accounts on pages 122 to 283.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Group, before
dividends, of HK$6,661 million (2013: HK$6,613 million)
has been transferred to reserves. Other movements in
reserves are set out in Note 40 on the accounts.

An interim dividend of HK$0.43 per share (2013:
HK$0.43 per share) was paid on 12th September, 2014.
The Directors have declared the payment of a second
interim dividend of HK$0.68 per share (2013: a second
interim dividend of HK$0.68 per share) in respect of the
financial year ended 31st December, 2014.

ISSUE OF DEBENTURES

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

The Directors believe that the five largest customers of
the Group accounted for less than 30% of the total of
interest income and other operating income of the Group
for the year.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year for
charitable and community purposes amounted to
approximately HK$5 million (2013: HK$19 million).

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets are set out in
Note 33 on the accounts.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, 37,716,451 ordinary shares were issued
at HK$29.051 each and 17,799,036 ordinary shares were
issued at HK$31.9105 each to shareholders who had
elected to receive new shares in lieu of cash dividend
in respect of the 2013 second interim dividend and the
2014 interim dividend respectively.

During the year, 1,827,000 ordinary shares were issued
for cash of HK$49,517,830 on the exercise of options
granted under the approved Staff Share Option Schemes.

DEALINGS IN LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE BANK

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Bank
or any or its subsidiaries, of listed securities of the Bank
during the year ended 31st December, 2014.

During the year, the following notes were issued by the Bank under its Medium Term Note (“MTN") Programmes and U.S.
Commercial Paper (“CP") Programme to raise funds for general corporate purposes:

Class Issued under

Consideration received
(HK$ equivalent)

Amount Issued
(HK$ equivalent)

Senior Notes
Subordinated Notes
CP Notes

MTN Programmes
MTN Programmes
CP Programme

26,206,174,050.00
3,878,000,000.00
1,202,360,000.00

26,177,199,979.53
3,855,602.611.00
1,201,194,903.41

Total

31,286,534,050.00 31,233,997,493.94
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DIRECTORS

The present Directors of the Bank are shown on page 54.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the terms
of office of Mr. WONG Chung-hin, Mr. Kenneth LO Chin-
ming, Mr. Eric LI Fook-chuen, Mr. Valiant CHEUNG Kin-piu
and Dr. Isidro FAINE CASAS will expire at the forthcoming
AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the 2015 AGM.

In the Bank’s circular to shareholders dated 25th March,
2014, Mr. William DOO Wai-hoi indicated that subject
to his re-election at the 2014 AGM, it was his intention
that he would continue to serve as an INED for a term
of approximately one year up to (and including) the day
immediately preceding the date of the 2015 AGM. Mr.
Doo was re-elected as a Director at the 2014 AGM.
Mr. Doo has notified the Bank that he will continue to
serve as an INED of the Bank and offer himself for re-
election at the 2015 AGM for a term of not more than
approximately three years expiring at the conclusion of
the AGM of the Bank held in the third year following
the year of his re-election.

Mr. Adrian David LI Man-kiu and Mr. Brian David LI Man-
bun were appointed EDs of the Bank on 2nd August,
2014 . They will retire under the provisions of the Articles
of Association and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the 2015 AGM.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the 2015
AGM are set out in the circular to the shareholders sent
together with this Annual Report.

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2015 AGM
has a service contract that is not determinable by the
Bank or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.

Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po is employed as the
Chief Executive of the Bank. His existing three-year term
service contract commenced in April 2012 and will expire
in March 2015. The service contract has been extended
for a further term of 3 years commencing from 1st April,
2015 and expiring on 31st March, 2018. The extension of
the term of the service contract has been endorsed by the
NC and approved by the Board.

No contracts of significance to which the Bank or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Bank had a material interest subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

None of the Directors of the Bank is interested in any
business apart from the Bank’s business that competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
Bank's business.

At no time during the year was the Bank or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or Chief Executive of the Bank or their spouses
or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Bank or any other body corporate with the exception
of the Staff Share Option Schemes, details of which
are set out in the following section under the heading
“Information on Share Options”, and Notes 2(q)(iv) and
38 on the accounts.

The Bank has received independence confirmations from
the current INEDs, namely: Dr. Allan WONG Chi-yun, Mr.
WONG Chung-hin, Mr. Winston LO Yau-lai, Dr. KHOO
Kay-peng, Mr. Kenneth LO Chin-ming, Mr. William DOO
Wai-hoi, Mr. KUOK Khoon-ean and Mr. Valiant CHEUNG
Kin-piu and considers them to be independent.

Dr. Thomas KWOK Ping-kwong tendered his resignation
as an INED of the Bank with effect from 19th December,
2014.

The Chairman received HK$460,000 (HK$400,000 per
annum prior to 1st July, 2014), each of the Deputy
Chairmen received HK$330,000 (HK$280,000 per annum
prior to 1st July, 2014) and each of the other Directors
(including the INEDs) received HK$300,000 (HK$260,000
per annum prior to 1st July, 2014), as director’s fees for
the year ended 31st December, 2014.

The fees to the Director who resigned or was appointed
during 2014 were paid in accordance with their length of
service.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Being the largest independent local bank in Hong Kong,
the Bank is committed to maintaining high corporate
governance standards. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Bank is set out in
the Corporate Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS

As at 31st December, 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors and Chief Executive of the Bank in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Bank and its associated corporations as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO (the “Register”) were as follows:

I. Long positions in ordinary shares of the Bank:

% of issued

Name Capacity and nature No. of shares Total shares
David LI Kwok-po Beneficial owner 63,472,434
Interest of spouse 1,878,757
Interest of corporation 171,069 65,522,260 2.79
Arthur LI Kwok-cheung Beneficial owner 11,042,194
Founder of discretionary trust 15,491,795  26,533,989? 1.13
Allan WONG Chi-yun Beneficial owner 393,765
Interest of spouse 136
Founder and beneficiary
of discretionary trust 14,766,471 15,160,3723 0.65
WONG Chung-hin Beneficial owner 51,491
Interest of spouse 378,544 430,0354 0.02
Aubrey LI Kwok-sing Beneficial owner 421,908
Interest of spouse 21,073
Beneficiary of discretionary trust 35,143,349
Executor of estate 1,359,384 36,945,714> 1.57
Winston LO Yau-lai - - Nil Nil
KHOO Kay-peng - - Nil Nil
Richard LI Tzar-kai Interest of corporation 1,400 1,400° 0.0001
Kenneth LO Chin-ming - - Nil Nil
Eric LI Fook-chuen Beneficial owner 4,117,430
Founder and beneficiary
of discretionary trust 24,901,408
Interest of corporation 9,411,877 38,430,7157 1.64
Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze  Beneficial owner 12,152,958
Interest of children 587,584
Beneficiary of discretionary trusts 2,522,317
Administrator of estate 1,183,200 16,446,059 0.70
William DOO Wai-hoi - - Nil Nil
KUOK Khoon-ean - - Nil Nil
Valiant CHEUNG Kin-piu - - Nil Nil
Isidro FAINE CASAS - - Nil Nil
Peter LEE Ka-kit Interest of corporation 679,000
Beneficiary of discretionary trust 1,100,000 1,779,000° 0.08
Adrian David LI Man-kiu Beneficial owner 853,501
Interest of child 6,582
Settlor/Founder of
discretionary trust 1,142,523 2,002,606 0.09
Brian David LI Man-bun Beneficial owner 1,395,200
Interest of corporation 4,322,252 5,717,452" 0.24
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Notes:

1 David LI Kwok-po was the beneficial owner of 63,472,434 shares and he was deemed to be interested in 1,878,757 shares through
the interests of his spouse, Penny POON Kam-chui. He was also deemed to be interested in 171,069 shares held by David Li Kwok-po
Charitable Foundation Limited, a charitable institution of which David LI Kwok-po is a director and the sole member.

2 Arthur LI Kwok-cheung was the beneficial owner of 11,042,194 shares. Arthur LI Kwok-cheung made a voluntary disclosure of
15,491,795 shares held by a discretionary trust of which he is the founder but has no influence on how the trustee exercises his discretion.

3 Allan WONG Chi-yun was the beneficial owner of 393,765 shares and he was deemed to be interested in 136 shares through the
interests of his spouse, Margaret KWOK Chi-wai (deceased). He was also deemed to be interested in 14,766,471 shares held by a
discretionary trust, Allan Wong 2011 Trust, of which Allan WONG Chi-yun is a founder and an eligible beneficiary.

4 WONG Chung-hin was the beneficial owner of 51,491 shares and he was deemed to be interested in 378,544 shares through the
interests of his spouse, LAM Mei-lin.

5 Aubrey LI Kwok-sing was the beneficial owner of 421,908 shares and he was deemed to be interested in 21,073 shares through the
interests of his spouse, Elizabeth WOO. He was also deemed to be interested in 1,359,384 shares held by an estate of which he is one of
the co-executors. The remaining 35,143,349 shares were held by The Fook Wo Trust, a discretionary trust in which Aubrey LI Kwok-sing
is one of the discretionary beneficiaries.

6 Richard LI Tzar-kai was deemed to be interested in 1,400 shares which were held by PineBridge Investments LLC (“PBI LLC") in its capacity
as an investment manager. PBI LLC is an indirect subsidiary of Chiltonlink Limited which is 100% owned by Richard LI Tzar-kai.

7 Eric LI Fook-chuen was the beneficial owner of 4,117,430 shares. Of the 24,901,408 shares, 17,807,082 shares were held by New Jerico
Limited and 7,094,326 shares were held by Ejeeco Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of New Jerico Limited. Eric LI Fook-chuen is the
sole director of New Jerico Limited. The only one share in New Jerico Limited is held by The New Elico Trust, of which Eric LI Fook-chuen
is the founder and a discretionary beneficiary. Eric LI Fook-chuen was also deemed to be interested in 9,411,877 shares held by The
Kowloon Dairy Limited of which he is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

8 Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze was the beneficial owner of 12,152,958 shares, and he was deemed to be interested in 587,584 shares
through the interests of his children under the age of 18. He was also deemed to be interested in 1,183,200 shares held by an estate
of which he is one of the Administrators. Of the remaining 2,522,317 shares, (i) 2,309,000 shares were held by a discretionary trust,
Settlement of Dr. Simon F. S. LI, of which Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze, his spouse and his children were beneficiaries and (i) 213,317
shares were held by a discretionary trust, Longevity Trust, of which his children were beneficiaries.

9  Of these 1,779,000 shares, 679,000 shares were owned by Golf Limited which in turn is wholly-owned by Peter LEE Ka-kit. He was also
deemed to be interested in 1,100,000 shares (“Deemed Shares”). The Deemed Shares were beneficially owned by a subsidiary of The
Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited (“HKCG") and Peter LEE Ka-kit is a discretionary beneficiary of the discretionary trusts which
indlirectly control more than one third of the voting power at the general meeting of HKCG.

10 Adrian David LI Man-kiu was the beneficial owner of 853,501 shares, and he was deemed to be interested in 6,582 shares through the
interests of his child under the age of 18. Adrian David LI Man-kiu has made a voluntary disclosure of 1,142,523 shares indirectly held by
a discretionary trust of which he was the settlor/founder but has no influence on how the trustee exercises its discretion.

11 Brian David LI Man-bun was the beneficial owner of 1,395,200 shares. He was also deemed to be interested in 3,575,490 shares held by
Belltrees Enterprises Inc. and 746,762 shares held by Triple Kingdom Limited. Both companies are wholly-owned by Brian David LI Man-bun.

Il. Long positions (in respect of equity derivatives) in underlying shares of the Bank:

Share options, being unlisted physically settled equity derivatives, to subscribe for the ordinary shares of the Bank were
granted to Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po, Mr. Adrian David LI Man-kiu and Mr. Brian David LI Man-bun pursuant
to the approved Staff Share Option Schemes. Information in relation to these share options during the year ended
31st December, 2014 was shown in the following section under the heading “Information on Share Options”.

lll. Interests in Hybrid Tier | Capital Instruments:

Allan WONG Chi-yun was the beneficial owner of the following capital instruments®et;

Issuer Type/Class of securities Amount of debentures  No. of shares
The Bank of East Asia, Limited  Subordinated Notes US$7,000,000 -
Innovate Holdings Limited Preference Shares - 7,000
The Bank of East Asia, Limited  Substitute Preference Shares (unissued) - 7,000

Note: In November 2009, the Bank issued capital instruments qualifying as hybrid tier 1 capital with a face value of US$500 million. The
capital instruments comprise 8.5% step-up subordinated notes due 2059 issued by the Bank (the “2059 Notes”) stapled with perpetual
non-cumulative step-up preference shares issued by Innovate Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank (the “Innovate
Preference Shares”). The 2059 Notes and the Innovate Preference Shares are listed as stapled units on the Singapore Stock Exchange.
The Substitute Preference Shares (being perpetual non-cumulative step-up preference shares) are created, and to be issued by the Bank
upon the occurrence of a Substitution Event (as defined in the circular to shareholders of the Bank dated 11th November, 2009) as one
of the terms of the issue of the 2059 Notes and the Innovate Preference Shares.

Save as disclosed above, no other interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Bank or
any of its associated corporations were recorded in the Register.
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INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTIONS

Information in relation to share options disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules was as follows:

(1) Movement of share options during the year ended 31st December, 2014:

Number of Share Options

Date of Outstanding

Outstanding
at 31/12/2014

Name Grant at 1/1/2014 Granted Exercised Lapsed
David LI Kwok-po 05/5/2011° 666,000™ - - -
05/5/2011° 666,000 - - -
05/5/2011° 668,000™ - - -
10/5/2012° 566,000 - 566,000¢ -
10/5/2012° 666,000 - 666,000¢ -
10/5/2012° 668,000™ - - -
03/5/2013° 666,000™ - - -
03/5/2013° 666,000 - - -
03/5/2013° 668,000™ - - -
02/5/2014¢ - 666,000™ - -
02/5/2014¢ - 666,000 - -
02/5/2014¢ - 668,000™ - -
Adrian David LI Man-kiu 06/7/20102 650,000 - - -
05/5/2011° 216,000™ - - -
05/5/2011° 216,000™ - - -
05/5/2011° 218,000™ - - -
10/5/2012° 216,000™ - - -
10/5/2012° 216,000™ - - -
10/5/2012° 218,000™ - - -
03/5/2013° 216,000™ - - -
03/5/2013° 216,000™ - - -
03/5/2013° 218,000™ - - -
02/5/2014¢ - 216,000™ - -
02/5/2014¢ - 216,000™ - -
02/5/2014¢ - 218,000 - -
Brian David LI Man-bun 06/7/2010° 650,000 - - -
05/5/2011° 216,000™ - - -
05/5/2011° 216,000™ - - -
05/5/2011° 218,000" - - -
10/5/2012° 216,000™ - - -
10/5/2012° 216,000™ - - -
10/5/2012° 218,000 - - -
03/5/2013° 216,000™ - - -
03/5/2013° 216,000™ - - -
03/5/2013° 218,000 - - -
02/5/2014¢ - 216,000™ - -
02/5/2014¢ - 216,000™ - -
02/5/2014¢ - 218,000 - -

666,000
666,000
668,000

Nil

Nil
668,000
666,000
666,000
668,000
666,000
666,000
668,000

650,000
216,000
216,000
218,000
216,000
216,000
218,000
216,000
216,000
218,000
216,000
216,000
218,000

650,000
216,000
216,000
218,000
216,000
216,000
218,000
216,000
216,000
218,000
216,000
216,000
218,000
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THE 05/5/2011° 666,000™ - - - 666,000
05/5/2011° 666,000 - - - 666,000

05/5/2011° 668,000 - - - 668,000

10/5/2012° 566,000 - 566,000¢ - =

10/5/2012° 666,000 - 666,000¢ - =

10/5/2012° 668,000 - - - 668,000

03/5/2013° 666,000™ - - - 666,000

03/5/2013° 666,000 - - - 666,000

03/5/2013° 668,000 - - - 668,000

02/5/2014¢ - 666,000 - - 666,000

02/5/2014¢ - 666,000 - - 666,000

02/5/2014¢ - 668,000 - - 668,000

FR1B 06/7/2010? 650,000 - - - 650,000
05/5/2011° 216,000™ - - - 216,000

05/5/2011° 216,000 - - - 216,000

05/5/2011° 218,000 - - - 218,000

10/5/2012° 216,000™ - - - 216,000

10/5/2012° 216,000 - - - 216,000

10/5/2012° 218,000 - - - 218,000

03/5/2013° 216,000™ - - - 216,000

03/5/2013° 216,000 - - - 216,000

03/5/2013° 218,000 - - - 218,000

02/5/2014¢ - 216,000™ - - 216,000

02/5/2014¢ - 216,0007 - - 216,000

02/5/2014¢ - 218,000™ - - 218,000

=R 06/7/2010° 650,000 - - - 650,000
05/5/2011° 216,000 - - - 216,000

05/5/2011° 216,000 - - - 216,000

05/5/2011° 218,000 - - - 218,000

10/5/2012° 216,000™ - - - 216,000

10/5/2012° 216,0007 - - - 216,000

10/5/2012° 218,000 - - - 218,000

03/5/2013° 216,000™ - - - 216,000

03/5/2013° 216,000 - - - 216,000

03/5/2013° 218,000 - - - 218,000

02/5/2014¢ - 216,000™ - - 216,000

02/5/2014¢ - 216,0007 - - 216,000

02/5/2014¢ - 218,000™ - - 218,000
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Number of Share Options

Date of Outstanding Outstanding

Name Grant at 1/1/2014 Granted Exercised Lapsed at 31/12/2014
Aggregate of other 05/5/2009? 435,000 - 435,000¢ - Nil
Employees* 06/7/2010° 2,150,000 - 10,000¢ - 2,140,000
05/5/2011° 732,000™ - - - 732,000

05/5/2011° 732,000™ - - - 732,000

05/5/2011° 736,000" - - - 736,000

10/5/2012° 732,000™ - - - 732,000

10/5/2012° 732,000™ - - - 732,000

10/5/2012° 736,000" - - - 736,000

03/5/2013° 732,000™ - - - 732,000

03/5/2013° 732,000™ - - - 732,000

03/5/2013° 736,000" - - - 736,000

02/5/2014¢ - 894,000™ - - 894,000

02/5/2014¢ - 894,000™ - - 894,000

02/5/2014¢ - 899,500" - - 899,500

Other Participants** 06/7/20102 150,000 - 150,000¢ - Nil
05/5/2011° 100,000 - - - 100,000

05/5/2011° 100,000™ - - - 100,000

05/5/2011° 100,000 - - - 100,000

10/5/2012° 100,000 - - - 100,000

10/5/2012° 100,000™ - - - 100,000

10/5/2012° 100,000™ - - - 100,000

03/5/2013° 50,000™ - - - 50,000

03/5/2013° 50,000™ - - - 50,000

03/5/2013° 50,000™ - - - 50,000

*  Employees working under employment contracts that were regarded as “Continuous Contracts” for the purpose of the Hong Kong

Employment Ordinance.

**  Other Participants refer to two former employees who ceased to be employees of the Bank in 2013. The share options were granted to them
prior to their cessation as employees of the Bank.

Notes:

a  Particulars of share options granted in years 2009 and 2010:

Exercise Price Per Share

Date of Grant Vesting Period Exercise Period HK$
05/5/2009 05/5/2009 - 04/5/2010 05/5/2010 - 05/5/2014 21.25
06/7/2010 06/7/2010 - 05/7/12011 06/7/2011 - 06/7/2015 28.49

b Particulars of share options granted in year 2011 to 2013:

Exercise Price Per Share

Date of Grant Tranche Vesting Period Exercise Period HK$
05/5/2011 T1 05/5/2011 - 04/5/2012 05/5/2012 - 05/5/2017 32.00
05/5/2011 2 05/5/2011 - 04/5/2013 05/5/2013 - 05/5/2018 32.00
05/5/2011 3 05/5/2011 — 04/5/2014 05/5/2014 — 05/5/2019 32.00
10/5/2012 T1 10/5/2012 — 09/5/2013 10/5/2013 — 10/5/2018 28.99
10/5/2012 2 10/5/2012 — 09/5/2014 10/5/2014 - 10/5/2019 28.99
10/5/2012 73 10/5/2012 — 09/5/2015 10/5/2015 - 10/5/2020 28.99
03/5/2013 T1 03/5/2013 — 02/5/2014 03/5/2014 — 03/5/2019 31.40
03/5/2013 2 03/5/2013 — 02/5/2015 03/5/2015 — 03/5/2020 31.40
03/5/2013 73 03/5/2013 — 02/5/2016 03/5/2016 — 03/5/2021 31.40

c  Share options granted in year 2014:

(i) Particulars:

Exercise Price Per Share

Date of Grant Tranche Vesting Period Exercise Period HK$
02/5/2014 T1 02/5/2014 - 01/5/2015 02/5/2015 - 02/5/2020 32.50
02/5/2014 2 02/5/2014 - 01/5/2016 02/5/2016 - 02/5/2021 32.50
02/5/2014 73 02/5/2014 - 01/5/2017 02/5/2017 - 02/5/2022 32.50
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(ii) The closing price of the shares of the Bank on 30th April, 2014 (being the business day immediately preceding 2nd May, 2014 on
which the options were granted) was HK$31.95.

(iii) Fair value of share options granted during the year ended 31st December, 2014 and the assumptions are set out in Note 38 on the
accounts.

d  The annual weighted average (“AWA”") closing price of the shares of the Bank immediately before the date on which the Options were
exercised during the year ended 31st December, 2014:

Exercise Price Per Share AWA Closing Price
Date of Grant Tranche No. of Options Exercised HK$ HK$
05/5/2009 - 435,000 21.25 31.54
06/7/2010 - 160,000 28.49 33.22
10/5/2012 T1 566,000 28.99 32.85
10/5/2012 2 666,000 28.99 33.25

(2) No share options were cancelled during the year ended 31st December, 2014.

(3) The accounting policy adopted for share options is set out in Note 2(qg)(iv) on the accounts.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December, 2014, none of the Directors or Chief Executive of the Bank or their spouses
or children under 18 years of age were granted or exercised any right to subscribe for any equity or debt securities of the
Bank or any of its associated corporations.

INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The following is a summary of the 2011 Scheme disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules:

1.

Purpose of the 2011 Scheme:

(@ The 2011 Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
that eligible persons had made or may make to the Group.

(b) The 2011 Scheme will provide the eligible persons with an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Bank
with the view to motivating the eligible persons to optimise their performance and efficiency for the benefit of
the Group.

Participants of the 2011 Scheme:

The Board may at its discretion grant options to any employees including Executive Directors and Chief Executive of
the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue under the 2011 Scheme and % of issued shares at 31st December, 2014:

The total number of shares available for issue under the 2011 Scheme is 102,251,616 ordinary shares representing
4.36% of the issued shares at 31st December, 2014.

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the 2011 Scheme:

No options may be granted to any eligible persons, which if exercised in full would result in the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the share options already granted or to be granted to such eligible person
under the 2011 Scheme or any other schemes (which are subject to regulation under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules)
of the Bank (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options) in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such new grant exceeding 1% of the issued share capital as at the date of such new grant. Any grant of
further options above this limit shall be subject to certain requirements as stipulated in the rules of the 2011 Scheme.

The period within which the shares must be taken up under an option:

Beginning on the vesting date of such options, the date on which such option is vested and becomes exercisable,
and ending on the fifth anniversary of the vesting date thereof, except as provided otherwise in the rules of the 2011
Scheme.

The minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised:

From the Date of Grant of such options up to the day immediately before the vesting date thereof.
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7. The amount payable on application or acceptance of the option and the period within which payments or
calls must or may be made or loans for such purposes must be paid:

N/A

8. The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the Directors and being not less than the highest of:

(@) the closing price of the Bank’s ordinary shares in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of

grant of the relevant options; and

(b) an amount equivalent to the average closing price of the Bank’s ordinary shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant options.

9. Vesting of Options:

Save as provided otherwise in the rules of the 2011 Scheme, an option granted under the 2011 Scheme shall be

vested and become exercisable as follows:

(@  not more than one third of the option shall be vested and become exercisable on the first anniversary of the

Date of Grant;

(b)  not more than one third of the option shall be vested and become exercisable on the second anniversary of the

Date of Grant; and

(©)  the remaining balance of the option shall be vested and become exercisable on the third anniversary of the Date

of Grant.

10. The remaining life of the 2011 Scheme:

The Scheme Period will end on 18th April, 2016.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS

As at 31st December, 2014, the interests or short positions of substantial shareholders and other persons in the shares
and underlying shares of the Bank as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO (the

“Register”) were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Bank:

Name

Capacity and nature

No. of shares

% of issued
share capital

CaixaBank, S.A.

Criteria CaixaHolding, S.A., Sociedad Unipersonal
Fundacion Bancaria Caixa d'Estalvis i Pensions de

Barcelona “la Caixa”
Guoco Management Company Limited
Guoco Group Limited
GuolLine Overseas Limited
Guoline Capital Assets Limited
Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad
HL Holdings Sdn Bhd
QUEK Leng Chan
Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte. Ltd.
Davos Investment Holdings Private Limited
KWEK Leng Kee
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation
Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc.

Beneficial owner
Interest of corporation
Interest of corporation

Beneficial owner

Interest of corporation
Interest of corporation
Interest of corporation
Interest of corporation
Interest of corporation
Interest of corporation
Interest of corporation
Interest of corporation
Interest of corporation
Beneficial owner

Interest of Corporation

422,842,385!
422,842,385'
422,842,385'

339,766,793%3
339,766,793%
339,766,793%
339,766,7932
339,766,793%3
339,766,7932
339,766,793%
339,766,7933
339,766,7933
339,766,793°
211,553,938°
211,553,938°

18.02
18.02
18.02

15.024
15.02
15.024
15.024
15.02
15.02
15.02
15.02
15.02
15.02
9.50
9.50
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Notes:

1

As at 31st December, 2014, Fundacion Bancaria Caixa d’Estalvis i Pensions de Barcelona “la Caixa” owned a 100% interest in Criteria
CaixaHolding, S.A., Sociedad Unipersonal which held a controlling interest in CaixaBank, S.A. Fundacion Bancaria Caixa d’Estalvis i
Pensions de Barcelona “la Caixa” and Criteria CaixaHolding, S.A. Sociedad Unipersonal were deemed to be interested in the 422,842,385
shares of the Bank held by CaixaBank, S.A.

The Bank had been notified that the shareholdings of the above 3 corporations had been increased such that, as at 31st December,
2014, they stood at 438,453,985 shares (equivalent to approximately 18.68% of the issued shares of the Bank as at 31st December,
2014). Such increases in shareholdings were not required to be disclosed under Part XV of the SFO.

The references to 339,766,793 shares of the Bank in Notes 2 and 3 relate to the same block of shares. Guoco Management Company
Limited was the beneficial owner of 339,766,793 shares (equivalent to approximately 15.02% of the issued shares of the Bank at the
time of disclosure, i.e. 26th June, 2013, pursuant to Part XV of the SFO). Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad was deemed to be
interested in the 339,766,793 shares held by Guoco Management Company Limited by virtue of its 100% interest in GuoLine Capital
Assets Limited which owned a 100% interest in GuoLine Overseas Limited. GuoLine Overseas Limited held a 74.10% interest in Guoco
Group Limited which in turn owned a 100% interest in Guoco Management Company Limited. GuoLine Capital Assets Limited, GuoLine
Overseas Limited and Guoco Group Limited were all deemed to be interested in the 339,766,793 shares held by Guoco Management
Company Limited.

Quek Leng Chan was deemed to be interested in the 339,766,793 shares held by Guoco Management Company Limited by virtue of his
100% interest in HL Holdings Sdn Bhd (“HLH"). Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad was 49.27% owned by Quek Leng Chan as to
2.424% under his personal name, 46.534% via HLH which was wholly-owned by him and 0.311% via Newton (L) Limited.

The references to 339,766,793 shares of the Bank in Notes 2 and 3 relate to the same block of shares. Hong Leong Company (Malaysia)
Berhad was 34.69% held by Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte. Ltd. which was in turn 33.59% held by Davos Investment Holdings
Private Limited. Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte. Ltd. and Davos Investment Holdings Private Limited were deemed to be interested
in the 339,766,793 shares (equivalent to approximately 15.02% of the issued shares of the Bank at the time of disclosure, i.e. 26th June,
2013, pursuant to Part XV of the SFO) held by Guoco Management Company Limited by virtue of their interests in Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad.

KWEK Leng Kee was deemed to be interested in the 339,766,793 shares held by Guoco Management Company Limited by virtue of his
41.92% interest in Davos Investment Holdings Private Limited.

GuolLine Overseas Limited and GuolLine Capital Assets Limited are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad
and Guoco Management Company Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guoco Group Limited. With the filing of the substantial
shareholder notices by Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad and Guoco Group Limited, GuolLine Overseas Limited, GuoLine Capital
Assets Limited and Guoco Management Company Limited do not need to file their respective substantial shareholder notices under the
“wholly-owned group exemption” as provided in the SFO.

Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc. owned a 100% interest in Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation. Sumitomo Mitsui Financial
Group, Inc. was deemed to be interested in the 211,553,938 shares of the Bank held by Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation.

The Bank had been notified that the shareholdings of the above two corporations had been increased such that, as at 31st December,
2014, they stood at 227,404,614 shares (equivalent to approximately 9.69% of the issued shares of the Bank as at 31st December,
2014). Such increases in shareholdings were not required to be disclosed under Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, no other interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Bank were recorded
in the Register.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this Report, the Bank has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Bank and within the knowledge of the Directors.

COMPLIANCE

The financial statements for the financial year ended 31st December, 2014 comply fully with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.

AUDITORS

A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Bank is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board
David LI Kwok-po

Chairman & Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 12th February, 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

KkPMG

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE BANK OF EAST ASIA, LIMITED

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Bank of East Asia, Limited (“the Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group”) set out on pages 122 to 283, which comprise the consolidated and the Bank’s statements of financial position as at 31st
December, 2014, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 80 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622), and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank and of the Group as
at 31st December, 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 12th February, 2015
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
Felhax

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 BZ2014F 12 531 HIEFE

Interest income FEMBA 4 27,732 25,179
Interest expense FEZ 5 (15,079) (12,917)
Net interest income FHIEUA 12,653 12,262
Fee and commission income MR & RASIA 6 5,023 4,779
Fee and commission expense RSB K&z (877) (882)
Net fee and commission income MR E RASWAFE 4,146 3,897
Net trading profits RS FEE 7 892 878
Net result from financial instruments EEARBERN

designated at fair value through RRAFEESRHTE

profit or loss H)FRE 8 (130) (387)
Net hedging profit/(loss) R,/ (B8 )54 9 3 (22)
Other operating income Hh g A 10 668 625
Non-interest income FEFI B 5,579 4,991
Operating income FAIN 18,232 17,253
Operating expenses EET 11 (9,849) (9,583)
Operating profit before impairment losses RINBRIRE IR 2K 2 482 A 8,383 7,670
Impairment losses on loans and advances BERRBFORERK 12 (990) (458)
Write back of impairment losses on

held-to-maturity investments BRI SR EREBKEE 29 3 =
Impairment losses on available-for-sale

financial assets AEHESREERERLX (14) (69)
Impairment losses VERIERETS (1,001) (527)
Operating profit after impairment losses BIIRRERKE ZEEHF 7,382 7,143
Net loss on sale of held-to-maturity investments &2 5| Ei1& & 2 B8 (2) =
Net profit on sale of available-for-sale HERHEESHEE

financial assets Pz vy 13 101 80
Net (loss)/profit on disposal of subsidiaries/ HERBAR,HE QT

associates 23 (E18),/H A () 27
Net profit on disposal of fixed assets HEBEEEZFnil 14 74 164
Valuation gains on investment properties EEREMERT 33 228 388
Share of profits less losses of associates FEAR B 2N B R 18 645 684
Profit for the year before taxation FEERNBRFADNGF 8,424 8,486
Income tax FfsHt 15 (1,650) (1,779)
Profit for the year after taxation FEARF &R 6,774 6,707
Attributable to: ARER

Owners of the parent REBME 6,661 6,613

Non-controlling interests R 13 94
Profit after taxation KR 1% 5 A 6,774 6,707

Basic
Diluted

BEA
8

18
18

2.72
2.72

2.78
2.78

F1308283B s BAMGHwE 2 —HD - A
BB FEE R EN FARITRREZRSFED
SR IEET

The notes on pages 130 to 283 form part of these financial statements. Details of dividends
payable to equity shareholders of the Bank attributable to the profit for the year are set out in
Note 17.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FEZEBER

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 B FE2014F 12531 HILFE

Net Profit S 6,774 6,707
Other comprehensive income for the year FAREMEEE
(after taxation and reclassification (BBRB RO BERHRRE) -
adjustments):
Item that will not be reclassified to income ~ FE[EE Uiz
statement: #IER -
Premises: T
— unrealised surplus on revaluation of —EHTTHFTEAR
premises RELZBH 40() 2 670
— exchange differences —ERES 40() (3) 2
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to  JA%% A sE#2 I U R &
income statement: HIEE :
Premises: T -
— deferred taxes —RERE 40(c) 1 L
Available-for-sale investment revaluation A ERER
reserve: EffFEE
— fair value changes recognised to/(from) —5t A (R B RER
equity HATEEZE 40(h) 915 (46)
— fair value changes reclassified from/(to) o EVAC NI &)
income statement: NTEEES
— on impairment and amortisation — A R 40(h) 8 84
- on disposal —HE 40(h) (79) (142)
— deferred taxes —IRFERIA 40(h) (164) 71
— exchange differences —ERERE 40(h) 2 M
Share of changes in equity of associates FE(RES & D B R R 2 E) 40() (9 (18)
Exchange differences on other reserves HihREEMEENEL =58 40(d) (80) 64
Exchange differences on translation of: BT EEEME R =5 -
— accounts of overseas branches, —BINTT - B RF R
subsidiaries and associates B A B ROBRIE (909) 105
Other comprehensive income Hi 2 mEikzs (316) 790
Total comprehensive income ZHEETE 6,458 7,497
Total comprehensive income attributable to: ~ 2E W AEAGRER
Owners of the parent REERRR 6,350 7,403
Non-controlling interests R 108 94
6,458 7,497

The notes on pages 130 to 283 form part of these financial statements.

F130F283B 2B AMBHRERZ —H5 °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
HREMBRAE

As at 31st December, 2014 20144 12 531 H

ASSETS BE
Cash and balances with banks and other B RIERITNEAM S RIS
financial institutions BT 22 70,358 68,777
Placements with banks and other financial TERIT R E fh & B
institutions EYE= 23 50,769 57,372
Trade bills COES 24 60,675 59,932
Trading assets RIPBEE 25 2,885 5,331
Financial assets designated at fair value BT ABBESUREATEE
through profit or loss memEE 26 8,713 11,606
Positive fair value of derivatives PMETIAMEATEE 44(b)(ii) 3,537 3,625
Advances to customers and other accounts B Kk H{thBR1E 27 482,140 448,255
Available-for-sale financial assets R ESHEE 28 86,816 71,589
Held-to-maturity investments BEIHIRE 29 6,747 5,048
Investments in associates HENRIRE 31 6,083 4,779
Fixed assets BEEE 33 13,117 13,530
— Investment properties —REME 4,544 4,400
— Other property and equipment —HiE Rt 8,573 9,130
Goodwill and intangible assets AENEFEE 32 3,955 3,990
Deferred tax assets RERIBEE 35(b) 9 120
Total Assets BEESR 795,891 753,954
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES MR & A E
Deposits and balances of banks and other R17 R E A S BB N TE R
financial institutions PN 0 33,323 28,923
Deposits from customers BEPER 548,184 534,971
Trading liabilities RHAREE 36(a) 21 1
Negative fair value of derivatives METIAMNARATEE 44(b)(ii) 4,823 4,545
Certificates of deposit issued DRITERE 44,398 42,929
— At fair value through profit or loss —BEBEN R AT EE 14,444 8,509
- At amortised cost — B AR R 29,954 34,420
Current taxation INEATIE 35(a) 1,172 1,353
Debt securities issued EETEBES 22,424 4,728
— At fair value through profit or loss —RABRNREATERE 7,595 150
— At amortised cost — SRR R 14,829 4,578
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIESE 35(b) 686 647
Other accounts and provisions Hoith BRTE [ S 36(b) 50,081 53,981
Loan capital — at amortised cost BEER—BiER A 37 17,335 13,632
Total Liabilities aERE 722,447 685,720
Capital and reserves BA R
Share capital - nominal value AR —ZmE - 5,724
Other statutory capital reserves HiEEBAGEE - 17,770
Share capital and other statutory capital PR 2 B At AT B A
reserves B 39, 40(a) 25,217 23,494
Other reserves Hib 40 43,663 40,188
Total equity attributable to owners of the FENAEER RS
parent ok 68,880 63,682
Non-controlling interests SRR IR 41 4,564 4,552
Total Equity IR R 73,444 68,234
Total Equity and Liabilities IR R & A E AR 795,891 753,954
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 12th February, 2015. BEEMN2015F2 A 12 Bk REREEM -
Chairman and Chief Executive David LI Kwok-po FERITBARS ZTEHE
Directors Allan WONG Chi-yun EE M
WONG Chung-hin HE®E
Winston LO Yau-lai ERE

The notes on pages 130 to 283 form part of these financial statements. #£130%22838 2 M BAMGHEK 2 —55 ©
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

M35k &

As at 31st December, 2014 2014412531 H

ASSETS
Cash and balances with banks and other

4%
Re REFTNA MBS

financial institutions H&ETF 26,952 22,212
Placements with banks and other financial ESRTT R E A & Rl iR

institutions H 7R 23 8,031 13,399
Trade bills BIEE 24 51,609 52,739
Trading assets ROFREE 25 1,642 1,925
Financial assets designated at fair value EEARBERURMATER

through profit or loss NEMEE 26 8,287 11,199
Positive fair value of derivatives PTETEMNEATEER 44(b)ii) 2,440 1,729
Advances to customers and other accounts EERR R HMERE 27 299,967 266,925
Amounts due from subsidiaries ENGIDE 34 22,690 24,124
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE 28 60,175 47,330
Held-to-maturity investments BEHHIRE 29 3,474 3,940
Investments in subsidiaries MEBRREE 30 17,315 15,270
Investments in associates SN EIRE 37 3,203 2,505
Fixed assets BEE&E 33 7,675 7,609

— Investment properties —REME 3,957 3,738

— Other property and equipment —HhERRE 3,718 3,871
Goodwill and intangible assets BEREFEE 32 1,460 1,460
Deferred tax assets ELEHBEE 35(b) 74 101
Total Assets BEEE 514,994 472,467
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES R R R EE
Deposits and balances of banks and other RITRE M S B ATER

financial institutions PNES 21,988 23,507
Deposits from customers BEEER 342,979 323,114
Trading liabilities RHBEEE 36(a) 21 1
Negative fair value of derivatives TETEMBATER 44(b)(ii) 3,758 2,766
Certificates of deposit issued BEBITERE 45,353 45,129

— At fair value through profit or loss —BBBRRNARBRATER 14,444 8,509

— At amortised cost — B RN 30,909 36,620
Amounts due to subsidiaries REBABZIE 34 1,803 3,108
Current taxation ANERRITE 35(a) 960 1,097
Debt securities issued EETERES 21,173 3,448

— At fair value through profit or loss —AREENRBATEE 7,595 150

— At amortised cost — BB R 13,578 3,298
Deferred tax liabilities EEREAE 35(b) 580 596
Other accounts and provisions HABRIA 36(b) 6,169 6,330
Loan capital EEER 37 21,848 18,110

— At fair value through profit or loss —BRBEENRBATEE 4,513 4,478

— At amortised cost — B SRR 17,335 13,632
Total Liabilities BfERRE 466,632 427,216
Capital and reserves BARGRE

Share capital — nominal value RN —ZmE - 5,724

Other statutory capital reserves HithyATE B AR E - 17,770
Share capital and other statutory capital BN R Ep A E B A

reserves ffe 39, 40(a) 25,217 23,494
Other reserves HifxdE 40 23,145 21,757
Total equity attributable to owners of BN R

the Bank Fek] 48,362 45,251
Total Equity and Liabilities IR s R B B4R 514,994 472,467

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 12th February, 2015.

Chairman and Chief Executive
Directors

David LI Kwok-po
Allan WONG Chi-yun
WONG Chung-hin
Winston LO Yau-lai

The notes on pages 130 to 283 form part of these financial statements.

BEEN2015F2 A 12 B ERIRERS -

FEHRITRARE EEHE
EZ B
EEE
BERE

F130%283B 2 WiBAMBHRERZ —H5 °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
HeERERR

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 BZ2014F 12 531 HIEFE

At 1st January, 2014 R014E1 818 5124 17,770 69 2814 978 1,642 200 13811 3710 16,778 63,682 455 68234
Changes in equity EaEy
Profit for the year ERMEH - - - - - - - - - 6,661 6,661 M3 67
Other comprehensive
income Ap2ENE - - - (904) 682 - - - (89) - (31 5 (1)

Total comprehensive
income FEUEEE - - - (904) 682 - - - (89) 6,661 6,350 108 6458

Shares issued in lieu

of dhidend WRREEHRE 1,664 - - - - - - - - - 66 - 1ok
Shares issued under

Staff Share Option REESTRHE

Schemes BIHRG 50 - - - - - - - - - 50 - 50
Shares isued expense HRAXH - - - - - - @ - - - @ - @
Equity settled share- R ERR LT

based transaction 25 - - b} - - - - - - - u - u
Transfer #E 9 - ©) - - - 30 5 619 (702) - - -
Dividends declared

or approved EENBER

during the year Tk RERS - - - - - - - - - (2888)  (2888) (%) (2.984)
Transition to no-par BEE

value regime on H201453A3R

3rd March, 2014 LEERESE

(Note 39) (H39) 170 (17,770 - - - - - - - - - - -

At 315t December, 2014 R2014512A317 25217 - 84 1,970 1,660 1,642 28 13,930 4300 19,849 68,880 4564 73444
* Other reserves include statutory reserve and other reserves. * BfbfEE EIET G REMGE

The notes on pages 130 to 283 form part of these financial statements. #£13022838 2 M BAMGIHREK 2 —55 ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
ReEREHXR(E)

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B FE2013F 1231 HILFE

At Tst January, 2013 201351818 5,568 16,083 135 2,769 1,012 976 130 13823 2611 14,046 57,153 4486 61,639
Changes in equity Engy
Profit for the year EEREF - - - - - - - - - 6,613 6,613 9 6707
Other comprehensive
income 2 AN = = = 105 (34) 673 = = 46 = 790 - 790

Total comprehensive
income FEUGERE = = 2 105 (34) 673 - - 4 6,613 7,403 9 7497

Shares isstied in lieu of

dividend RSB THRA 144 1,550 - - - - - - - - 1,694 - 6%
Shares issued under

Staff Share Option REES AR

Schemes Bl 12 106 - - = = = - - - 8 - 118
Equity settled share- AR RRB(ER S

based transaction 25 = - 2 - - - - - - - 4 B ]
Tnsfer P . N @ - - m 5113 (17 - - -
Dividends declared or

apovedduingthe  EEAEEAT

et HERERE _ - - - - = - - - (2,707) (2,707) e @m)

Purchase of interests
in businesses from BEEz 3

non-controling REZEA
interests investors AEER - - - - - - - - - - - 3 3
Exchange adjustments BB - - - - - - - - - - - 3 3
At 315t December, 2013 20138128318 5724 17,770 69 2874 978 1,642 200 13877 3770 16,778 63,682 455 68234
*  Other reserves include statutory reserve and other reserves. * B EIET G REMFE

The notes on pages 130 to 283 form part of these financial statements. %13022838 2 M BAMBIHK 2 —&5 °
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HEHERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 EZ2014F 12 531 AIFFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES REERTER
Profit for the year before taxation F AR A 8,424 8,486
Adjustments for: HE
Charge for impairment losses on loans
and advances ERRBFURERAS 12 990 458
Charge for impairment allowances
on held-to-maturity investments and BEREHREMIENE SR
available-for-sale financial assets BEREEESH 1 69
Share of profits less losses of associates FE(RESE A RLE AR EE (645) (684)
Net loss on sale of held-to-maturity
investments HERZREEE 2 FEE 2 =
Net profit on sale of available-for-sale HEAHEESHERE
financial assets F A (101) (80)
Net loss/(profit) on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT MEERNEZ
and associates FE1E/ Cafl) 4 27)
Net profit on disposal of fixed assets HeERFEEZ T (74) (164)
Interest expense on certificates of deposit ERTEREREEELFE
and loan capital issued ] 1,855 1,579
Depreciation on fixed assets BEEENE 11,33 664 670
Dividend income from available-for-sale
financial assets AtHESREEREKA (28) (43)
Amortisation of intangible assets B EAEEH 11 32 32
Amortisation of premium/discount on
certificates of deposit and loan capital BRTEREREEE KR
issued B AT 218 132
Revaluation gains on certificates of deposit ~ BfFEEITERBEREEEAR
and loan capital issued 27| (5) (487)
Valuation gains on investment properties EEREMERT 33 (228) (388)
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses ~ JAR% (7 AEREES & B 24 21
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE CHANGES
IN WORKING CAPITAL EEESRHANLEER 11,143 9,574
(Increase)/decrease in operating assets: REEREE (1) /R
Cash and balances with banks with original ~ RZEARR A31E AL FHIE S
maturity beyond three months REMIRITIFREVEETF 926 (5,178)
Placements with banks and other financial
institutions with original maturity beyond — REZAHARR A31E A A _FHIIRTT
three months REAME BEETR (10,544) 10,390
Trade bills B525 (735) (4,191)
Trading assets RIFABEE 2,420 (1,092)
Financial assets designated at fair value B ARBERIARRAT
through profit or loss BENTREE 2,893 3,563
Positive fair value of derivatives PTETAMERATER 88 (500)
Advances to customers BEFEEN (38,559) (55,000)
Advances to banks and other financial
institutions RITRE M S BEERR (50) 141
Held-to-maturity debt securities BEIBREEES (1,319) (623)
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESHEE (17,789) (12,087)
Other accounts and accrued interest HhBRIE K e T 2 3,829 (6,591)
Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities: WEEEE /Of)5E
Deposits and balances of banks and RITRE M & B FR
other financial institutions KA 4,400 (1,674)
Deposits from customers BEER 13,213 36,201
Trading liabilities RH5HABARE 10 (10)
Negative fair value of derivatives MTETANEBRATERE 278 739
Other accounts and provisions HibBRIE R (4,139) 8,684
Exchange adjustments b 5 % (962) 728
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM OPERATIONS &= EEH &7 HFE (34,897) (16,926)
Income tax paid BRFEH
Hong Kong profits tax paid BERNBEBNER (919) (537)
Outside Hong Kong profits tax paid BEEIFIEE (982) (767)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES FRSE%£K T8 2 HEFHE (36,798) (18,230)

The notes on pages 130 to 283 form part of these financial statements.

F130%2838 2 Wik BAM S ®HETR Z —H5 °
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
LeRanak(E)

For the year ended 31st December, 2014 B Z2014F 12 31 HILFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED

Dividends received from associates Lt UNG ds) 172 151
Dividends received from available-for-sale LB ] i AR

equity securities EHRE 28 43
Purchase of equity securities BB AN RE & (1,985) (1,293)
Proceeds from sale of equity securities HERDBEFEIIE 1,780 1,336
Purchase of fixed assets BABREEE (305) (750)
Purchase of investment properties BAREYE (44) (154)

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets HEBTEEEMSRA 130 591

Purchase of shareholding in associates FEUNE NG (1,139) (71)

Proceeds from disposal of an associate HE—MBE AR MERE - 160

Purchase of subsidiaries EAKBAR 45(a) (23) =

Purchase of interests in business from MRS IR EERA

non-controlling interests investors SE - 33

NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED (AR REREEE 2

FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFH (1,386) 46
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEED

Ordinary dividends paid SRR S (991) (747)

Distribution to Hybrid Tier 1 issue KETREE—MEARTA

holders BHAHA (330) (330)

Issue of ordinary share capital BATE B A 50 118

Issue of certificates of deposit BITERGE 67,798 68,516

Issue of debt securities BITERES 26,426 4,002

Issue of loan capital BIIEEER 3,863 -

Redemption of certificates of deposit issued ~ BEE 2 #1777 K5 (66,414) (53,274)

Redemption of debt securities issued BB B TEBES (8,621) (8,173)

Interest paid on loan capital IREEERFIE (755) (752)

Interest paid on certificates of deposit issued {2 BE{TERE A 2 (620) (537)

Interest paid on debt securities issued FRERTERESFIS (243) (370)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES RERMETES2HEFE 20,163 8,453
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRERALERF

CASH EQUIVALENTS AR (18,021) (9,731)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MAIRZEERERARSE

AT 1ST JANUARY 1HE 45(b) 90,007 99,738
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R12A31BZE &R

AT 31ST DECEMBER ZLRHELER 45(b) 71,986 90,007
Cash flows from operating RE &SRB

activities included: RenseiE

Interest received FEMA 27,469 25,131

Interest paid FEZH 14,357 12,698

Dividend received B BIA 7 78

The notes on pages 130 to 283 form part of these financial statements.

F1302283E Z MEBAMBIMAZ —# 5 °



130 | The Bank of East Asia, Limited | Annual Report 2014

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MEBREME

1. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES EE 7
The Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are engaged in the provision of RIREMBAR(AEE DN EEXB R
banking and related financial services, and business, corporate and investor RERTREANSERY URER - &
services. ERKEERR

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES EEE5TEER

(a) Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
HKFRS, which collective term includes all applicable individual HKFRS, HKAS
and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable requirements of the Companies Ordinance, which for this financial
year and the comparative period continue to be those of the predecessor Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional and saving
arrangements for Part 9 of the new Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts
and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRS that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Bank. Note 3 provides information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

(b) Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements

The financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2014 comprise the
Group and the Group's interest in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the

historical cost except that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair

value as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

— financial instruments classified as trading, designated at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale (Note 2(f)(ii));

— derivative financial instruments (Notes 2(f)(ii), (vi) and 2(g)); and

— investment properties (Note 2(h)(ii)).
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The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Details of judgements made by management in the application of HKFRS that
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in Note 51.

Basis of Consolidation

These consolidated financial statements cover the consolidated position of the
Bank and all subsidiaries unless otherwise stated and the Group’s interest in
associates. For information required to be reported in accordance with the Banking
(Disclosures) Rules, the basis of consolidation is set out in the Notes (1) and (2) in
the Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information.

(i) Subsidiaries and Non-controlling interests

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Bank and all its subsidiaries made up to 31st December each year. Subsidiaries
are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
When assessing whether the group has power, only substantive rights (held by
the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Bank, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests which would
result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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(i)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Bank. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated income statement and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of the net
profit and total comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and equity shareholders of the Bank.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (Note 2(f))
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate (Note 2(c)(ii)).

In the Bank's statement of financial position, its investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses, if any (Note 2(k)).

Associates

The consolidated financial statements include the attributable share of the
results and reserves of associates based on financial statements prepared at
dates not earlier than three months prior to 31st December, 2014. An associate
is @ company in which the Group or the Bank has significant influence, but not
control or joint control, over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method unless it is classified as held-for-sale.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
associate’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group's share of the associate’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (Note 2(j) and 2(k)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the associates and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, whereas the Group'’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the associate’s other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associates,
the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. For
these purposes, the Group's interest in the associate is the carrying amount
of the investment under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
associates, except when unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that associate, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former associate at the date when significant influence is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset (Note 2(f)).

The Bank accounts for the results of associates to the extent of dividends
received. Investments in associates are stated in the Bank’s statement of
financial position at cost less any impairment losses (Note 2(k)).

An associate is considered material if it is material to either income statement
or statement of financial position of the Group in two consecutive years.

(d) Translation of Foreign Currencies
Foreign currencies transactions during the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated into Hong Kong dollars using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value through profit or loss
and derivative financial instruments are included in gains less losses from trading
securities or financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss.
All other exchange differences relating to monetary items are presented as gains
less losses from dealing in foreign currencies in the income statement. Differences
arising on translation of available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity.
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The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Items of statement of financial position, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or after 1st January, 2005,
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in
the exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign operation
acquired before 1st January, 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to the
income statement when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

(e) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Provided it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
the income statement as follows:

(i) Interest income
Interest income for all interest-bearing financial instruments is recognised in
the income statement on an accruals basis using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset and of allocating the interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but
does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and
points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or
discounts.

For impaired loans, the accrual of interest income based on the original terms
of the loan is discontinued, but any increase in the present value of impaired
loans due to the passage of time is reported as interest income.

(i) Net income from financial instruments designated at fair value through profit
or loss and net trading income

Net income from financial instruments designated at fair value through profit
or loss and net trading income comprises all gains and losses from changes
in fair value (net of accrued coupon) of such financial assets and financial
liabilities, together with foreign exchange differences and dividend income
attributable to those financial instruments.
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(iii) Fee and commission income

(iv)

(vi)

Fee and commission income is recognised in the income statement when the
corresponding service is provided, except where the fee is charged to cover the
costs of a continuing service to, or risk borne for, the customer, or is interest in
nature. In these cases, the fee is recognised as income in the accounting period
in which the costs or risk is incurred and is accounted for as interest income.

Origination or commitment fees received/paid by the Group which result in
the creation or acquisition of a financial asset are deferred and recognised as
an adjustment to the effective interest rate. If the commitment expires without
the Group making a loan, the fee is recognised as revenue on a straight-line
basis over the commitment period.

Finance income from finance leases

Finance income implicit in finance leases is recognised as interest income
over the period of the lease so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of return of the outstanding net investment in the leases for each
accounting period.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income received under operating leases is recognised as other operating
income in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to
be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in
the income statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals receivable are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is established unconditionally. Dividend
income from listed investments is recognised when the share price of the
investment is quoted ex-dividend.

(f) Financial Instruments

i

)

Initial recognition

The Group classifies its financial instruments into different categories at
inception, depending on the purpose for which the assets were acquired or the
liabilities were incurred. The categories are: fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial
assets and other financial liabilities.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, which normally will
be equal to the transaction price plus, in case of a financial asset or financial
liability not held at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset or issue of the
financial liability. Transaction costs on financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are expensed immediately.

(iii)

(iv

(v)

(vi)
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The Group recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A regular way
purchase or sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, available
for sales or held to maturity and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss or debts issued are recognised using trade date accounting. Other
financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised using settlement date
accounting. From these date, any gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities measured at fair value are
recorded.

Categorisation

Fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets and financial liabilities held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition, but excludes those investments in equity instruments that do not
have a quoted market price and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Trading financial instruments are financial assets or financial liabilities which
are acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of trading, or are part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.
Derivatives are recognised initially, and are subsequently remeasured, at fair
value, and classified as assets when their fair value is positive, or as liabilities
when their fair value is negative. Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting (Note 2(g)) are accounted for as trading instruments.

Financial instruments are designated at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition when:

— the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported internally on
a fair value basis;

— the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch
which would otherwise arise;

— the asset or liability contains an embedded derivative that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required under the
contract; or

— the separation of the embedded derivatives from the financial instrument is
not prohibited.

Financial assets and financial liabilities under this category are carried at fair
value. Changes in the fair value are included in the income statement in
the period in which they arise. Upon disposal or repurchase, the difference
between the net sale proceeds or the net payment and the carrying value is
included in the income statement.
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Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market, other than
(a) those that the Group intends to sell immediately or in the near term, which
will be classified as held for trading; (b) those that the Group, upon initial
recognition, designates as at fair value through profit or loss or as available-for-
sale; or (c) those where the Group may not recover substantially all of its initial
investment, other than because of credit deterioration, which will be classified
as available-for-sale. Loans and receivables mainly comprise placements with
banks and other financial institutions, trade bills and loans and advances to
customers.

Securities classified as loans and receivables typically comprise securities issued
by the same customers with whom the Group has a lending relationship that
are not quoted in an active market. Investment decisions for credit substitute
securities are subject to the same credit approval processes as loans, and the
Group bears the same customer risk as it does for loans extended to those
customers. Additionally the yield and maturity terms are generally directly
negotiated by the Group with the issuer. These securities include commercial
paper, short term debentures and preference shares issued by the borrower.

Loans and receivables and securities classified as loans and receivables are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less impairment
losses, if any (Note 2(k)).

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments and fixed maturity which the Group has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity, other than (a) those that the
Group, upon initial recognition, designates as at fair value through profit or
loss or available-for-sale; and (b) those that meet the definition of loans and
receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less impairment losses, if any (Note 2(k)).

If, as a result of a change in intention or ability, it is no longer appropriate to
classify an investment as held-to-maturity, it shall be reclassified as available-
for-sale and remeasured at fair value.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified in any of the other three
categories above. They include financial assets intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time, but which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or changes in the market environment.

Available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair value. Unrealised gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity, except for
impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary items
such as debt securities which are recognised in the income statement.
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(iii

=

=

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted market price in
an active market and whose fair value cannot be measured reliably, and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity securities are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any (Note 2(k)).

When the available-for-sale financial assets are sold, gains or losses on disposal
include the difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying value,
and the accumulated fair value adjustments which are previously recognised
in other comprehensive income shall be reclassified from equity to the income
statement.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, other than trading liabilities and those designated at fair
value through profit or loss, are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted market prices
at the end of the reporting period without any deduction for estimated future
selling costs.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a quoted market price on
a recognised stock exchange or a price from a broker/dealer for non-exchange-
traded financial instruments or if the market for it is not active, the fair value of
the instrument is estimated using valuation techniques that provide a reliable
estimate of prices which could be obtained in actual market transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash flows
are based on management’s best estimates and the discount rate used is a
market rate at the end of the reporting period applicable for an instrument
with similar terms and conditions. Where other pricing models are used, inputs
are based on market data at the end of the reporting period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to receive
the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or where the financial asset,
together with substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, have been
transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

The Group uses the weighted average or first-in first-out method, where
appropriate, to determine realised gains and losses to be recognised in the
income statement on derecognition.

(iii)

(iv)
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(v) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position only where there is a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(vi) Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument
that includes both the derivative and a host contract with the effect that
some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar
to a stand-alone derivative. The embedded derivatives are separated from
the host contract and accounted for as a derivative when (a) the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to
the host contract; and (b) the hybrid (combined) instrument is not measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.

When the embedded derivative is separated, the host contract is accounted for
in accordance with note (ii) above.

(9) Hedging

Hedge accounting recognises the offsetting effects on the income statement of
changes in the fair values of the hedging instrument and the hedged item. The
Group assesses and documents whether the financial instruments that are used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash
flows of hedged items attributable to the hedged risks both at hedge inception
and on an ongoing basis. The Group discontinues prospectively hedge accounting
when (a) the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised; (b) the
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting; or (c) the Group revokes
the designation.

(i) Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the
variability in cash flows of a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable
forecast transaction, or the foreign currency risk of a committed future
transaction, the effective part of any gain or loss on remeasurement of
the derivative financial instrument to fair value is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the hedging
reserve. The ineffective portion of any gain or loss is recognised immediately in
the income statement.

If the hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition
of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the associated gain or loss
is reclassified from equity to be included in the initial cost or other carrying
amount of the non-financial asset or liability. If a hedge of a forecast
transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a financial asset or
a financial liability, the associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to
the income statement in the same period or periods during which the asset
acquired or liability assumed affects the income statement (such as when
interest income or expense is recognised).

BA RS $R AR MY AL (4R

(v) HiH
RAERLLERNBIHER S B RSN
FEEE  AAREEEAENSES
B eMEENSBRAGEETAKE - I
AR R A LAFERFIR ©

BRAPTETA

BATETEABR —EEA(ER)AT
BEWAKRE D 2 TABEITETAR
—EEH TAREZEEATANR
e EERBEU-RBUMNITET
B o B@ZBRAITE T AER TR
R EE S NI IEREREN - R(b)JE
B(EB)ATARLFRAFEENER
BAFEREZPHRRERARER - BRA
TETAREFENDRLIZITETE
N

(vi

ERATET AW FERE - TR
B R AR

(9) ¥

@A R R E R L T AR ST
FHRAFEEZSMAERSRANEEZR
EREBRENTE - NOTET ARBIIES
T AR NERE - ANEE & TG M
REHHZ SR T ARTHRE HE
BMEANAFEEZPIBERIAR - B
()ZBEE R TARMKEHE - KIEHTT
# (OZEFRHTBENTREHEFHENE
R RORNKEFUREHIEE - AEEEF
IR RS

(i) REeRBEHM
ETESRM T ANIEEE MO BREE
ZRENTHEERESRE  X2EFT
BERANEFIRS  HEEHEAKRRZ S
ZINERRR - EARERE S MR
BRXEFFETEERTAERATE
BEeEHEtEERE AR - KRR
R R ET R EAD R R o MER
ko ey AN BB RIS B e K

AP EFT R S MERAERBIES
BEEYFEHMAE  HAMZAEH
BREZEN D BEL EEEZEERE
EXBENTIIERAREMREER -
N SR —IRTAR R 5 1 AR AR R
CREEREBARE  HAMZAEH
EREREN S BELAARBDHERE
BAREXGIRAEMZEZ R 2K
SR (NEERBM WAL H)



140 | The Bank of East Asia, Limited | Annual Report 2014

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B R ¥R AR BT RE (4R

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinuep) = E &5 BUER @)

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the preceding two policy
statements, the associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to the income
statement in the same period or periods during which the hedged forecast
transaction affects the income statement. When a hedging instrument expires
or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the Group revokes designation of the
hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to
occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains in equity until the
transaction occurs and is recognised in accordance with the above policy. If
the hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, the cumulative
unrealised gain or loss is reclassified from equity to the income statement
immediately.

Fair value hedges

A fair value hedge seeks to offset risks of changes in the fair value of
recognised asset or liability that will give rise to a gain or loss being recognised
in the income statement.

The hedging instrument is measured at fair value, with fair value changes
recognised in the income statement. The carrying amount of the hedged item
is adjusted by the amount of the changes in fair value of hedging instrument
attributable to the risk being hedged. This adjustment is recognised in the
income statement to offset the effect of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, the
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, or the Group revokes
designation of the hedge relationship, any adjustment up to that point, to a
hedged item for which the effective interest method is used, is amortised to
the income statement as part of the recalculated effective interest rate of the
item over its remaining life.

(iii) Hedge effectiveness testing

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Group carries out prospective
effectiveness testing to demonstrate that it expects the hedge to be highly
effective at the inception of the hedge and throughout its life. Actual
effectiveness (retrospective effectiveness) is also demonstrated on an ongoing
basis.

The documentation of each hedging relationship sets out how the
effectiveness of the hedge is assessed. The method which the Group adopts
for assessing hedge effectiveness will depend on its risk management strategy.

For fair value hedge relationships, the Group utilises the cumulative dollar
offset method or regressive analysis as effectiveness testing methodologies. For
cash flow hedge relationship, the Group utilises the change in variable cash
flow method or the cumulative dollar offset method using the hypothetical
derivative approach.
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For prospective effectiveness, the hedging instrument must be expected to
be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows
attributable to the hedged risk during the period for which the hedge is
designated. For actual effectiveness, the changes in fair value or cash flows
must offset each other in the range of 80 per cent to 125 per cent for the
hedge to be deemed effective.

(h) Properties

@)

(ii)

Bank premises are stated in the statement of financial position at cost or at
Directors’ valuation, by reference to an independent professional valuation,
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss (Note 2(k)).

When a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged to the income
statement, to the extent that it exceeds the amount held in the bank premises
revaluation reserve in respect of that same asset immediately prior to the
revaluation; and when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be credited to the
income statement, to the extent that a deficit on revaluation in respect of that
same asset had previously been charged to the income statement.

In preparing these financial statements, advantage has been taken of the
transitional provisions set out in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 “Property, Plant
and Equipment” issued by the HKICPA, with the effect that bank premises
have not been revalued to fair value at the end of the reporting period.

Investment properties are properties which are held either to earn rental
income or for capital appreciation or for both. Investment properties are
stated at fair value. Investment properties are valued semi-annually by
external independent valuation companies, having an appropriate recognised
professional qualification and recent experience in the location and category of
property being valued. No allowance has been made in the valuations for any
charges, mortgages or amounts owing on the properties nor any expenses or
taxation which may be incurred in effecting a sale.

Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is recognised in the income
statement. Rental income from investment property is accounted for as
described in Note 2(e).

When a bank property is transferred to investment property following a
change in its use, any differences arising at the date of transfer between the
carrying amount of the bank property immediately prior to transfer and its fair
value is recognised as a revaluation of bank premises as described in Note 2(h)

(i).

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as bank
premises and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
subsequent accounting purposes.

A property interest under an operating lease is classified and accounted for as
an investment property when the Group holds it to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Any such property interest under an operating lease
classified as an investment property is carried at fair value. Lease payments are
accounted for as described in Note 2()).
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)

)

(iii) Profit or loss on disposal of bank premises and investment properties is
determined as the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement upon disposal.
Any surplus that is included in the bank premises revaluation reserve related to
the bank premises disposed is transferred to the general reserve.

Amortisation and Depreciation

(i) Bank premises
Freehold land is not amortised. Leasehold land held for own use under an
operating lease, the fair value of which cannot be measured separately from
the fair value of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is
accounted for as being held under a finance lease. Leasehold land is amortised
on a straight line basis over the remaining term of the lease. Buildings are
depreciated on a straight line basis at rates calculated to write off the cost
or valuation of each building over its estimated useful life of 50 years or the
remaining lease period of the land on which it is situated, whichever is the
shorter.

Investment properties are not depreciated.

(i) Other fixed assets
Other fixed assets are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, which is calculated on a
straight line basis to write off the assets over their estimated useful lives from
4 to 20 years.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill arising
on a business combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups
of cash generating units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment (Note 2(k)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit, or an associate during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the
profit and loss on disposal.

Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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(k) Impairment of Assets
At each end of the reporting period, the carrying amount of the Group's assets
are reviewed to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
If internal and external sources of information indicate such evidence exists,
the carrying amount is reduced to the estimated recoverable amount and an
impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

(0}

Loans and receivables

The impairment losses of loans and receivables are measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets). Receivables with a short duration are not discounted if the effect of
discounting is immaterial.

The total allowance for impairment losses consists of two components:
individual impairment allowances, and collective impairment allowances.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included
in a collective assessment of impairment.

The individual impairment allowance is based upon management’s best
estimate of the present value of the cash flows which are expected to be
received discounted at the original effective interest rate. In estimating these
cash flows, management makes judgements about the borrower’s financial
situation and the net realisable value of any underlying collateral or guarantees
in favour of the Group. Each impaired asset is assessed on its own merits.

In assessing the need for collective impairment allowances, management
considers factors such as credit quality, portfolio size, concentrations, and
economic factors. In order to estimate the required allowance, the Group
makes assumptions both to define the way the Group models inherent losses
and to determine the required input parameters, based on historical experience
and current economic conditions.

The accuracy of the impairment allowances the Group makes depends on
how well the Group can estimate future cash flows for individually assessed
impairment allowances and the model assumptions and parameters used in
determining collective impairment allowances. While this necessarily involves
judgment, the Group believes that the impairment allowances on loans and
advances to customers are reasonable and supportable.
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(i)

(iii

=

All loans and receivables are reviewed and analysed periodically. Any
subsequent changes to the amounts and timing of the expected future cash
flows compared to the prior estimates that can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the write-down, will result in a change in the impairment
allowances on loans and receivables and will be charged or credited to the
income statement. A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the loans
and receivables’ carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Where there is no reasonable prospect of recovery, the loan and the related
interest receivables are written off.

Loans and receivables with renegotiated terms are loans that have been
restructured due to deterioration in the borrower’s financial position and
where the Group has made concessions that it would not otherwise consider.
Renegotiated loans and receivables are subject to ongoing monitoring to
determine whether they remain impaired or past due.

Held-to-maturity investments

Impairment on held-to-maturity investments is considered at both an individual
and collective level. The individual impairment allowance is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at asset’s original effective interest
rate, where the effect of discounting is material.

All significant assets found not to be individually impaired are then collectively
assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified.
Assets that are not individually significant are then collectively assessed
for impairment by grouping together financial assets with similar risk
characteristics.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through the income
statement. A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Available-for-sale financial assets

When there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale financial asset is
impaired, the cumulative loss that had been recognised in the fair value reserve
is reclassified to the income statement. The amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in the income statement is the difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset previously recognised in the income
statement.
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For unquoted available-for-sale equity securities that are carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the equity securities and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset,
where the effect of discounting is material.

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement in respect of available-
for-sale equity securities are not reversed through the income statement. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt securities are reversed
if the subsequent increase in fair value can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment
losses in such circumstances are recognised in the income statement.

Other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each end of
the reporting period to identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

property and equipment (other than properties carried at revalued
amounts);

— investments in subsidiaries and associates;

— goodwill; and

— intangible assets

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether
or not there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

(iv)
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Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement whenever the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs to sell, if measureable, or value
in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the income statement in the
year in which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of
the first six months of the year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it
would at the end of the year (Note 2(k)(i) to (iv)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of goodwill,
available-for-sale equity securities and unquoted equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or
a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the year to which the interim period relates. Consequently, if
the fair value of an available-for-sale equity security increases in the remainder
of the annual period, or in any other period subsequently, the increase is
recognised in other comprehensive income and not the income statement.
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(I) Leased Assets

Leases of assets under which the lessee assumes substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Leases of assets under which
the lessor has not transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
operating leases.

(i) Assets held under finance leases
The amounts due from lessees in respect of finance leases are recorded in the
statement of financial position as advances to customers at the amounts of net
investment which represent the total rentals receivable under finance leases
less unearned income. Revenue arising from finance leases is recognised in
accordance with the Group's revenue recognition policies, as set out in Note
2(e).

(i) Assets held for use in operating leases

Where the Group leases out assets under operating leases, the leased assets
are included in the statement of financial position according to their nature
and, where applicable, are depreciated in accordance with the Group's
depreciation policies, as set out in Note 2(i) except where the asset is
classified as an investment property. Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in Note 2(k). Revenue arising
from operating leases is recognised in accordance with the Group's revenue
recognition policies, as set out in Note 2(e).

(iii

=

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to the income statement in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in the income
statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to the income statement in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

(m)Repossession of Assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Group may take possession of
the collateral assets through court proceedings or voluntary delivery of possession
by the borrowers. In accordance with the Group'’s accounting policy set out in Note
2(k), impairment allowances for impaired loans and advances are maintained after
taking into account the net realisable value of the collateral assets, usually resulting
in a partial write-off of the loans and advances against impairment allowances.
Repossessed assets are reported under other assets if it is highly probable that their
carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the assets are available for sale in their present condition.
Related loans and advances are then written off.

Repossessed assets are recorded at the lower of the amount of the related loans
and advances and fair value less costs to sell at the date of exchange. They are not
depreciated or amortised.

Impairment losses on initial classification and on subsequent remeasurement are
recognised in the income statement.
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(n) Income Tax

0

(iii

=

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised in the income statement except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary
differences respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing deductible temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not deductible for
tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

@)

(ii)

(iii)

(n) FREHL

AERMEH RN RELEDIREE
A EREE o BRZH R E R 2 E R
B RS S WM AEE 2 KE
SRR ERERANSEIN - REBIER
EEREREENAENEB T AKRRR
A o

AR ERFEERBTUMARRE B
RABEMRFEAR FEARBHEAE
R AR - X E BIFAEFER
FENTRIBEERIBE -

EERBERERABRRANRERE
MEERBERAREEHNEZEM
5 B E A B AT 1T e REER T 1) By 1 22
£ RERIEAECEBEAREANTIA
RIS o

BTETERNPISMERIN - FIBIELE
T8 B 18 K R R A BB JE AR Bl et A 7 IA
EHOMELERBEES THR - ARE
JEERT 4 ) P SR R AT 2 A 2
RS\ BEERBREE R BRERE
ZERBEREZRNED  BREE
EABNFA—HEHERERTER -
AR FEFHERBAZ A R 2 BRIt
REOYES THRARZELENIEE
EEENHEAMAKEKEF - HEE
ERBEHEREANRERIEEZRE
BXFRREANBIERB R EE MR
JEFRIABERER - AR EBNE B
BHRERERTER  UREFEXS
Fe PO R 2 18 o At S P o 78 7 8 s
BHAREER -

EBRRPIMERT » THRRBELEREE
EREENEREZEBE TR
BE - IR ERRATZ RS RER
BoaMEBEERBE(ETEHEAHDN
—#5) - RAEBRENBR RN G
Z82  RERBEZEMS - EAKET
iz = RE R WS 2 REA R
BTG : MpA HREEMS
BrIEZERER R RAILAED -



RERITEMRAT | 2014 F 3, | 149

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in Note 2(h)(ii), the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale of
those assets at their carrying value at the reporting date unless the property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the property
over time, rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each end of the
reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are
recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

=

(iv) Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are
presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities if the Bank or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional

conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Bank or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(o) Insurance Reserves and Provisions for Outstanding Claims
Insurance reserves, except those attributable to long term business, represent the
proportion of retained premiums written in the year relating to the period of risk
from 1st January in the following year to the subsequent date of expiry of policies
which is carried forward as a provision for unearned premiums and calculated on a
daily basis.

The insurance reserve for long term business is ascertained by actuarial valuation.
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Full provision is made for the estimated cost of claims notified but not settled
at the end of the reporting period and for the estimated cost of claims incurred
but not reported by that date, after deducting the amounts due from reinsurers.
Provision has also been made for the estimated cost of servicing claims notified
but not settled at the end of the reporting period and to meet expenses on claims
incurred but not reported at the end of the reporting period.

These reserves and provisions are classified as other accounts and provisions.

(p) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group or the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditures
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(q) Employee Benefits

(i) Salaries, bonuses and leave benefits
Employee entitlements to salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave
passage and the cost to the Group of non-monetary benefits are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of
the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are recognised when
the absences occur.

(i) Performance-related bonus plan
Liabilities for performance-related bonus plan, which are due wholly within
twelve months after the end of the reporting period, are recognised when
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Retirement benefits

(iii

=

Retirement benefits are provided to eligible staff of the Group. Hong Kong
employees enjoy retirement benefits under either the Mandatory Provident
Fund Exempted ORSO Scheme (“MPFEOS”) or the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme ("MPFS”). Both are defined contribution schemes. The employer’s
monthly contributions to both schemes are at a maximum of 10% of each
employee’s monthly salary.

(p)
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The pension schemes covering all the Group’s PRC and overseas employees are
defined contribution schemes at various funding rates, and are in accordance
with local practices and regulations.

The cost of all these schemes is charged to the income statement for the
period concerned and the assets of all these schemes are held separately from
those of the Group. Under the MPFEQS, the employer’s contribution is not
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Under the MPFS, the employer’s
contribution is reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

Share based payments
The option exercise price is equal to the higher of:

(@) the closing price of the Bank’s shares in the Stock Exchange's daily
guotation sheet on the date of grant of the relevant options; and

(b) an amount equivalent to the average closing price of the Bank’s shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant options.

When the options are exercised, equity is increased by the amount of the
proceeds received. The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an expense in the income statement with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at the
grant date using the trinomial model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to those
share options, the total estimated fair value of the share options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability that the options will
vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is expected to vest
is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged or credited to the income statement for the year of the
review unless the original expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share
options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to capital reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Bank’s shares.

The equity amount is recognised in capital reserve until either the option is
exercised and new shares alloted (when it is transferred to share capital) or the
option expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

(iv
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinuep) = E &5 BUER @)

(r) Related Parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related
to the Group if:

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the
Group's parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means
that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate
or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii

=

Both entities are joint venture of the same third party.

=

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an

associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees
of either the Group or an entity related to the Group.

=

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

() EBEAL
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Segment Reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the
financial statements, are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines
of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise
balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date of acquisition
including cash, balances with banks and other financial institutions, treasury bills,
other eligible bills and certificates of deposit that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(u) Deposits, Debt Securities Issued and Subordinated Liabilities

Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities are the Group's sources
of debt funding.

The Group classifies capital instruments as financial liabilities or equity instruments
in accordance with the substance of the contractual terms of the instruments.
The Group's redeemable preference shares bear non-discretionary coupons and
are redeemable by the holder, and are therefore included within subordinated
liabilities.

Subsequent to initial recognition deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated
liabilities are measured at their amortised cost using the effective interest method,
except where the Group designates liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES &5t R 2 &

(s)
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(u)
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The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRS and one new
Interpretation that are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Bank:

— Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27, Investment entities

— Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

— Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial
assets
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— Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedge
accounting

— HK(FRIC) 21, Levies

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the new or
amended HKFRS are discussed below:

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27, Investment
entities

The amendments provide consolidation relief to those parents which qualify to be
an investment entity as defined in the amended HKFRS 10. Investment entities are
required to measure their subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss. These
amendments do not have an impact on these financial statements as the Bank
does not qualify to be an investment entity.

Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the offsetting criteria in HKAS 32. The
amendments do not have an impact on these financial statements as they are
consistent with the policies already adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures for non-
financial assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 modify the disclosure requirements for impaired
non-financial assets. Among them, the amendments expand the disclosures
required for an impaired asset or CGU whose recoverable amount is based on
fair value less costs of disposal. The amendments do not have an impact on these
financial statements as the Group has no impaired non-financial assets.

Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of derivatives and continuation
of hedge accounting

The amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting
when novation of a derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets certain
criteria. The amendments do not have an impact on these financial statements as
the Group has not novated any of its derivatives.

HK(IFRIC) 21, Levies

The Interpretation provides guidance on when a liability to pay a levy imposed by
a government should be recognised. The amendments do not have an impact on
these financial statements as the guidance is consistent with the Group’s existing
accounting policies.
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Securities classified as held-to-maturity or
available-for-sale

RV e RNt
B

— listed — |Efim 883 692

— unlisted —3EEm 1,490 1,116
Trading assets RHALEE

~ listed —km 8 16

— unlisted —JEm 116 241
Interest rate swaps FlE=EED 2,002 1,670
Financial assets designated at fair value through EBEABBIEFZARMATER

profit or loss TRBE

- listed —km 256 401

- unlisted —3EEm 175 184
Loans, deposits with banks and B ERTNEGSRIEED

financial institutions, and trade bills T REFEE 22,802 20,859

27,732 25,179

Included above is interest income accrued on impaired financial assets of HK$133
million (2013: HK$88 million) which includes interest income on unwinding of
discount on loan impairment losses of HK$20 million (2013: HK$14 million) (Note

27(b)) for the year ended 31st December, 2014.

. INTEREST EXPENSE F &2 H

N EBEEE2014F12A31B L FERES
B A ER AR S5%1 33870 (20134 8
#8,80087T) + HR BIERMEZUREEBXK
ZITHEF] B WA AN 2,0008 7T (20134 -
7E#1,4008 7T) (FF3E27(b)) °

Customer deposits, deposits of banks and other
financial institutions and certificates of deposit
issued which are stated at amortised cost

Debt securities issued

Subordinated notes carried at amortised cost

Interest rate swaps

Financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss

Other borrowings

BBERATIEROESHR
FITREA S MRBOTRR
BHIHHE

B EITEL RS
R T BRROIR B R R
FEEHEH

EERBBRRURRATEE
SRTA
HefER

11,692 10,019
333 272
mm 751

2,018 1,736
258 138
7 1

15,079 12,917
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6. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME BREER{FHESUA

Fee and commission income arises from the following services:

RE THIRSH MRS & RASHEA

Corporate services 2R 1,132 1,064
Loans, overdrafts and guarantees B3 By RER 946 970
Credit cards (HiRS 905 902
Trade finance BEomE 576 458
Other retail banking services HZERITRSG 447 417
Securities and brokerage B Mg 357 345
Trust and other fiduciary activities EREREMRIEER 182 202
Others HAth 478 421
Total fee and commission income RS E LA WAL 5,023 4,779
of which: Hrh
Net fee income, other than amounts included in RIERFER AL NIETEABR

determining the effective interest rate, BRARBATEEEZ

arising from financial assets or financial liabilities CREENBEMEEZ

that are not held for trading nor designated FIRISBRA (T RIERE

at fair value through profit or loss STEARFIE £5H) 4,168 3,916
Fee income PRASE A 5,023 4,779
Fee expenses REEZ M (855) (863)

7. NET TRADING PROFITS R 5@ H| /558

Profit on dealing in foreign currencies HNE B E A 1,584 287
Profit on trading securities R HREERRF 139 38
Net (loss)/gain on derivatives PTETAFE(EE),ahl (874) 518
Dividend income from listed trading securities R PRz EMEHFOREBA 43 B

892 878
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8. NET RESULT FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS IEEABBIEZUNMATLEEERIANERR

Revaluation gain on debis issued EHEETEBRT 40 16
Profit on sale of debts issued HEBBITEBEH 5 4
Net loss on sale of other financial assets HERMSREEFER (3 91)
Revaluation loss on other financial assets EhEMeREESE (172) (316)

(130) (387)

e

NET HEDGING PROFIT/(LOSS) ¥#&F  (E518) B8

Fair value hedges ATLEEE S
— Net gain on hedged items attributable — A ERAEDIR B 2 R
to the hedged risk EERFEEF 9 299
— Net loss on hedging instruments —REEP TAMEERE (93) (321)
3 (22)
There was insignificant ineffectiveness recognised in the Group’s income statement R2014F 20134 - BB S MENFREEL
arising from cash flow hedge for the year 2014 and 2013. EEAEERSRANER BRI ETE

KHJ

10.OTHER OPERATING INCOME Hfthi&& Uk A

Dividend income from available-for-sale

financial assets AEHESMEERBKA

- listed —Ekm 11 8

— unlisted —J LM 17 35
Rental from safe deposit boxes RigaiES KA 80 77
Net revenue from insurance activities S TN 323 277
Rental income on properties VESIEEALIUN 149 127
Others Hity 88 101

668 625
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11.OPERATING EXPENSES #&#& % H

Contributions to defined contribution plan*

ERHERABR T

- Hong Kong —&HB 152 146
— Outside Hong Kong —BEAGN 363 315
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses ARG D AEMES B 24 21
Salaries and other staff costs He REMBETIHA 4,945 4,816
Total staff costs B IR ANEZE 5,484 5,298
Premises and equipment expenses excluding TREMENMERF
depreciation ]
- Rental of premises —ERS 671 652
- Maintenance, repairs and others —RE - BIEREM 570 585
Total premises and equipment expenses TEETERNYERRET L
excluding depreciation k) 1,241 1,237
Depreciation on fixed assets (Note 33) BEEENE(H1733) 664 670
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 32(b)) EREERE(H7320)) 32 32
Other operating expenses Hirgs e
~ Stamp duty, overseas and PRC business taxes, —ENFERL ~ MEINR AR E AR LA
and value added taxes R RIEER 727 680
- Legal and professional fees —ERREBERBE 414 375
- Communications, stationery and printing — B - XEKRENR 340 316
— Advertising expenses —EEE 261 264
- Business promotions and business travel — R E R A ke 206 203
— Card related expenses —BBERRIH 102 101
— Insurance expenses —RRE 37 29
- Audit fee 2 Gl EA 17 15
— Membership fees -@8% 17 15
— Administration expenses of corporate services — I ERBOTHE 15 14
- Bank charges — R E 10 10
- Donations —B/ 5 19
- Bank licence —RITIERE 4 4
— Others —Hftb 273 301
Total other operating expenses Hife % HBgE 2,428 2,346
Total operating expenses** R e~ 9,849 9,583
* Forfeited contributions totalling HK$15 million (2013: HK$13 million) were utilised to * FERRUL T B, 5008 7T (20134F -

*k

reduce the Group's contribution during the year. There were no forfeited contributions
available for reducing future contributions at the year end (2013: Nil).

Included in operating expenses are direct operating expenses of HK$32 million (2013:
HK$39 million) in respect of investment properties which generated rental income during
the year.

*k

B 1,3008 7T ) B #% F 1 2 7K 25 [
FA o G AR A A (] #5844 T B A FE R A
Bz (20134 « f7) »

FRAEE S EIEMEHED Kas i RE
YFEFEZE LS - 2B REH3,200
BT (20134 : JE#3,90087T)
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12.IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON LOANS AND ADVANCES BREBIZBEIE %

H |

Net charge for impairment losses on loans and ERRBFORAERR
advances X
Individual impairment loss [ERIVEAIEEEES
— new provisions — B 927 492
— releases — Bl (118) (70)
— recoveries — gl (224) (106)
585 316
Collective impairment loss BEREERX
— new provisions (Note 27(b)) — B (F270)) 405 142
Net charge to income statement KGR 990 458

13.NET PROFIT ON SALE OF AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
HEAHREEERMERE 2 Fnf

Net revaluation gain transferred from reserves RREERNEERAFE
(Note 40(h)) (Hizt40(h)) 79 142
Profit/(loss) arising in current year FERNEENZF(EE) 22 (62)
101 80

14.NET PROFIT ON DISPOSAL OF FIXED ASSETS HERBEEE 2 FimHl

Net profit on disposal of investment properties HERENEZFmr -

Net profit on disposal of bank premises, furniture, HETTHE ~ &R EEREEZ
fixtures and equipment FA A 74 80

74 164
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15.INCOME TAX Fri8%i

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

(a) FEWFBERAMBIALE :

Current tax — Hong Kong (Note 35(a)) INERTRIE — &S (5235(a))

Tax for the year AEERHIE 777 691
Under-provision in respect of prior years AEEEBTR 35 17
812 708

REHE BB AN

Current tax — outside Hong Kong

Tax for the year AERHIEA 942 1,009
Write back of over-provision in respect of prior years {4 & B {38 7 47 2 B (21) (51)
921 958

Deferred tax (Note 35(b)) EERIB(HI235(b))
Origination and reversal of temporary differences TR E ENEL RE D (83) 113
1,650 1,779

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) of
the estimated assessable profits for the year.

Taxation for overseas branches and subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate
current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

applicable tax rates:

EBTIEHH R EAEE BT RERFEF R
Fi%=16.5% (20134 : 16.5%)5% °

BINDIT R B A BB RIT R L R
BFEBITHEE -

(b) HIEX HEESTHENREABERHE

BUIRHEIAR ¢

Profit before tax BREE AT A 8,424 8,486
Notional tax on profit before tax, calculated at REAREREKER 2 S5

the rates applicable to profits in the tax Tt AR A AR E A

jurisdictions concerned BEBN 1,608 1,732
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR B 2 296 365
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BERRBMANT BT 2 (264) (302)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERNFRENTIETE 15 18
Recognition of deferred tax assets on prior year EEBBER BT

tax losses BE (15) (8)
Under-provision/(Write back of over-provision) TEERETR/

in respect of prior years (BEAFRERE) 14 (34)
Others Hith 4 8
Actual tax expense EBEFIE 1,650 1,779
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16.PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT 7] 5% 8 M 4< 55 B iR 3R 7

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent includes a profit of
HK$3,534 million (2013: HK$3,277 million) which has been dealt with in the

financial statements of the Bank.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Bank’s profit for the year

A BBRAEBBRREEHEFBEEE AL
1701 75 R 2k R 893 FI) A5 45 35.34 48 70 (2013
B3 778 °

AT E PR TRt S5 SRR

Amount of consolidated profit attributable to equity

BEIARTT Hﬁ%iﬁﬁz—liﬁgﬁé

holders dealt with in the Bank’s financial statements ~ AN&EBE IR R LR S HA 3,534 3,277
Final dividends from subsidiaries and associates

attributable to the profits of the previous REEFERB AR REE AT

financial year and general reserves, AR — R RERE

approved and paid during the year WHEFE Nk RIS 195 109
Bank’s profit for the year RITEE PR T 3,729 3,386

17.DIVIDENDS A2

(a) Dividends attributable to the year

(a) EEAFERE

Interim dividend declared and paid of
HK$0.43 per share on 2,329 million shares
(2013: HK$0.43 per share on 2,264 million shares)

EEMmRE RS HREBRET
23.29BR GRS 0.43T
(20134 : 22.6ABBREMBEE

(Note 40() 0.4370) (K1240()) 1,001 973
Second interim dividend paid in respect of the

previous financial year on shares issued under EXFEREHERBRERARIT

the share option schemes subsequent to the end IRERIBF &AL B ATIRE

of the reporting period and before the close of RRGTEBRTROB LFEER

the Register of Members of the Bank, of HBHE50.68THE R HRE

HK$0.68 per share (2013: HK$0.63 per share) (20134 : GRRAEE0.637T) - 1
Second interim dividend of HK$0.68 per share FRPHIRE F23.4718 K%

on 2,347 million shares (2013: HK$0.68 per share G E%0.687T(2013F :

on 2,290 million shares) 22.90f8 A E#0.687T) 1,59 1,557

2,597 2,531

The second interim dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the

reporting period.

RERER B RIREE —RF RS
RERRRIME -
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17.DIVIDENDS (conTINUED) J% B (an)

(b) Dividends attributable to the previous financial year, approved and  (b) AFEZERINBLFERE
paid during the year

Second interim dividend in respect of the previous & A& R F22.90E
financial year, approved and paid during the year, BE0.687T(20134F : 22.2718

of HK$0.68 per share on 2,290 million shares e AR0.63 )N EFE
(2013: HK$0.63 per share on 2,227 million shares) % = )R EARR S 1,557 1,403
(c) Distribution to holders of Hybrid Tier 1 capital instruments () RETEE—REATEIFEA

Interest payable on the Hybrid Tier 1 capital AT RAE—REATEFEGAN
instruments, the details of which are disclosed TS - FHEE M 37 Xt EE40()
in Note 37 and Note 40()) AR 330 330

18.EARNINGS PER SHARE &RZF|

(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREAZER
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on earnings of HK$6,331 BRERBFTDZRERE T RS —KREX
million (2013: HK$6,283 million) after the distribution of HK$330 million (2013: T EFH ABE3.3087m(20134F « B#¥3.30
HK$330 million) to Hybrid Tier 1 issue holders and on the weighted average of BIT) B2 A E#63.318 T (20134F « %
2,324 million (2013: 2,261 million) ordinary shares outstanding during the year, #62.83187C) RFENE HITEBRMHAM
calculated as follows: W19 8023.2418/% (20134F : 22.6118A%) -
FTEZ AT
Weighted average number of ordinary shares TR B IR T 28

Issued ordinary shares at 1st January M1 ATEMEBETEER 2,290 2,227
Effect of share options exercised and shares issued 21T SRR HE R AR (X B 39T

in lieu of dividends GG 34 34
Weighted average number of ordinary shares W12 A31 B L@/

at 31st December FHE 2,324 2,261
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(b) Diluted earnings per share
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on earnings of HK$6,331
million (2013: HK$6,283 million) after the distribution of HK$330 million (2013:
HK$330 million) to Hybrid Tier 1 issue holders and on 2,325 million (2013: 2,262
million) ordinary shares, being the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year, adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential shares.

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

BB R MEE (&)

(b) BREERF
BRESATDNIZREIRE TRE —REAR
TEFA ABEE330/8T(20134F : B%3.30
BT ) 18 2 % FI S #63.31 87T (20134 : 8
#62.831870) Rt AT ABETHELEDN
TR VR FAEEAS A T AR (D B0 N 19
23.25/8% (20134 : 22.6218MR)5HE

BB B0 AT ()

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 12 A31 B @R H hAE

at 31st December 5 2,324 2,261
Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares under the  fR:RIZRARE 2IFITE R HE R

Bank's share option schemes for nil consideration LA 2w E 1 1
Weighted average number of ordinary shares W12 A31 B L @AM T E

(diluted) at 31st December (B8) 2,325 2,262
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19.DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION EE#€

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 78 of Schedule 11 to the BEFCR ARG (F622F )X 11578
new Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with reference to Section 161 of the & WRRBAEB(AREANERE)E
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows: 161EZ RERBESMESNT ¢

Chairman and Chief Executive FERTHASR

Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po  ZEIEH+ 0.6 10.2 134 83 1.0 335
Executive Director and HTESHRE

Deputy Chief Executive THER
Mr. Adrian David LI Man-kiu' ZRIBALAE 0.2 15 12 1.2 0.1 42
Mr. Brian David LI Man-bun' BRI 0.2 15 12 1.2 0.1 42
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Prof. Arthur LI Kwok-cheung TEEHR 0.4 - - - - 0.4
Mr. Aubrey LI Kwok-sing FRERE 0.4 - - - - 0.4
Mr. Richard LI Tzar-kai TERLE 03 - - - - 03
Mr. Eric LI Fook-chuen FREAE 0.4 - - - - 0.4
Mr. Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze ~ ZEIf5 4 03 - - - - 0.3
Dr. Isidro FAINE CASAS EEEREL 03 - - - - 0.3
Mr. Peter LEE Ka-kit FRELE 03 - - - - 03

Independent Non-executive

Directors BIKHTES
Dr. Allan WONG Chi-yun BTREL 0.5 - - - - 0.5
Mr. WONG Chung-hin =RELAE 0.4 - - - - 0.4
Mr. Winston LO Yau-lai BRERE 0.6 - - - - 0.6
Tan Sri Dr. KHOO Kay-peng P =N A 0.3 - - - - 0.3
Dr. Thomas KWOK Ping-kwong DL+ 0.4 - - - - 0.4
Mr. Kenneth LO Chin-ming ERSRA e 0.4 - - - - 0.4
Mr. William DOO Wai-hoi HEEEE 0.4 - - - - 0.4
Mr. KUOK Khoon-ean BIIBESLE 03 - - - - 03
Mr. Valiant CHEUNG Kin-piu REREE 0.7 - - - - 0.7

14 13.2 15.8 10.7 1.2 48.3

1

Appointed Executive Director of the Bank with effect from 2nd August, 2014. " H201448 2 A EFEHTTEE -
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Chairman and Chief Executive TREHTHAH
Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po  ZHEE+ 0.5 9.8 22.1 7.5 1.0 40.9
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Prof. Arthur LI Kwok-cheung FEEHR 03 - - - = 03
Mr. Aubrey LI Kwok-sing FHEXE 04 = = - - 04
Mr. Richard LI Tzar-Kai FEREE 03 = = - - 03
Mr. Eric LI Fook-chuen TREEE 04 = = - - 04
Mr. Stephen Charles LI Kwok-sze ~ ZBIft54 03 - - - - 03
Dr. Isidro FAINE CASAS SHEEET 03 - - - - 03
Mr. Peter LEE Ka-kit FREEE 03 - = - - 03
Independent Non-executive
Directors BYFHTES
Dr. Allan WONG Chi-yun BETMREL 0.5 - = - - 0.5
Mr. WONG Chung-hin BEEEE 03 - - _ _ 03
Mr. Winston LO Yau-lai BRERE 0.5 - - _ _ 05
Tan Sri Dr. KHOO Kay-peng BB RET 0.3 _ _ _ _ 03
Dr. Thomas KWOK Ping-kwong ~ SBfETE L 0.3 = - _ _ 03
Mr. Kenneth LO Chin-ming ERSORA S A4 04 _ _ _ _ 04
Mr. William DOO Wai-hoi HRELE 0.4 = - - - 04
Mr. KUOK Khoon-ean B ERE 0.3 - - _ _ 03
Mr. Valiant CHEUNG Kin-piu REELE 0.6 = = - - 06
6.4 9.8 22.1 1.5 1.0 46.8

Included in the above remuneration were share options granted to ED under
the Bank’s Staff Share Option Schemes. The details of these benefits in kind are
disclosed under the paragraph “Information on Share Options” in the Report of

the Directors and Note 38.

& BAERAITE FIREBARTTHE 8RR
SRR TRIRE - ARALSEYRE
BENEZSREENRREER | REE
FiFE38A °
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20.FIVE TOP-PAID EMPLOYEES 5&F B &Z S MES

Salaries and other emoluments e RhEMME 26 25
Performance-related bonuses REVRENTEAL 25 41
Share options AR 19 17
Pension contributions BARESHR 3 2

73 85
The remuneration of the five top-paid employees is within the following bands: SEFHREHESNCESEENT

HK$&#

9,500,001 - 10,000,000
11,000,001 - 11,500,000
33,000,001 - 33,500,000
40,500,001 - 41,000,000

Included in the emoluments of the five top-paid employees were the emoluments
of 3 (2013: 1) Directors and 2 (2013: 4) senior management members. Their
director’s emoluments have been included in Note 19 above.

.SEGMENT REPORTING 7%

S5E &= 8 E 8 R IE3R(20134F 1 16L)
BENI(Q013F M) BEBEEAE - ftb
PIMESEE 2 IER LalkiE197A -

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised by a mixture
of both business lines and geography. In a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the Group’s senior management for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following nine reportable segments. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

(a) Business segments

The Group has identified the following nine reportable segments.

Personal banking, which includes branch operations, personal internet banking,
consumer finance, property loans and credit card business in Hong Kong.
Corporate banking, which includes corporate lending and loan syndication, asset

based lending, commercial lending and securities lending in Hong Kong.

Treasury markets, which include treasury operations and securities dealing in Hong
Kong.

AEBZEDREREER - Mo EAMES
RipRIRA AR o 2 BE R 5 H 8 A B E
BTAKENSEEEABERERSE K
REFZH AR —EH - AEBEJIFHAT
NETTER S FL o LED IR BIFELT
BRI ER S #EA o

BRoE
AEEEHBA T NETERS 2 -

BARTEBEETBZDTEE  BAET
WRIRIT  HBER  RBEXREARE
& o

TCERTEEAEEBZLEBERRER

METSBEEDE M EEER

BHEE -
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Wealth management, which includes private banking business and related assets
in Hong Kong.

Financial institutions, which includes trade financing activities with correspondent
banks in Hong Kong.

Other Hong Kong banking operations, which include insurance business, trust
business, securities & futures broking, money lender activities and corporate
financial advisory in Hong Kong.

China operations include the back office unit for China operations in Hong
Kong, all branches, subsidiaries and associates operated in China, except those
subsidiaries carrying out corporate services, data processing and other back office
operations in China.

Overseas operations include the back office unit for overseas banking operations in
Hong Kong, all branches, subsidiaries and associates operated in overseas, except
those subsidiaries carrying out corporate services in overseas.

Corporate services include company secretarial services, share registration and
business services, and offshore corporate and trust services.

Other businesses include property-related business, supporting units of Hong
Kong operations, investment properties, bank premises, the net results of other
subsidiaries in Hong Kong except for those subsidiaries which are included in other
Hong Kong banking operations.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group’s senior management monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets and financial assets
with the exception of interests in associates, deferred tax assets and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include deposits, financial liabilities and other
liabilities attributable to the individual segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with reference
to interest and fee and commission income generated by those segments and
the expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to those segments. Segment
revenue and expenses do not include the Group's share of revenue and expenses
arising from the activities of the Group’s associates. Other than reporting inter-
segment income, assistance provided by one segment to another, including sharing
of assets, is not measured.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning profit before taxation,
management is provided with segment information concerning revenue
(including inter-segment lending), interest expense, depreciation, amortisation
and impairment losses and additions to non-current segment assets used by the
segments in their operations.

BA RS $R AR MY AL (4R

MEEREERRETETEZAARITER
MIHEEE -

CREEEBRETBZEHRAERMNRITR
BOIRERESFER

Hth BB RITEBBRETEZRRES -
EREER B MMERLE MEAEBR
DERETEFEN o

FEXBERERAXETEERNEYE
I~ TEEFREKENSTT - WBARRE
ERF - BTERETFREECERBENE
g R EMR R ZMBAT -

B EBERET S RBRBITEBNER
HEMN - AEBIMEENSTT  MEBAF
KEERTR] - BETERESIMSEDCERE
ZIBRE]
CERBERARMERY  REELRE
IR - URBEFEEREFERE -

Hih X B R uERHNER  BEXK
ZRGEMN  KEME TUHREFEZHE
P E A M FRE (B D BRAEEMEBRT
EBRMBAR)

ERHED BRBARDE D HBENERE © &
BREEEABBEATEEERRE
RE—FIERD B FE  BEREE :

IHEERRMBENEE  BYEERS
BEE(BE QR ZESRIN)  BEHEBEE
EREMEREE - DHEEREFR - &
BaERARBRERN D BOEMEE

WA B3 12 B B3 BB AT EE A A A B R AR 75
ERMNASWA - kBB ED 5 B H
S HFEBNB D REL 2T ESEHK D
BT ATE SR 78 © 73 BRI A B S h3r TS 3
SEZBERRNESMELEBEHE I
A o BRESRD BRI MAN - A—2
BREBS TR — 08 BESIZEE ¥
RetEER -

BB BB ADEM A D AR - BED
BRA(BED BREZEZR) - MBS - 4
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21.SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 2 ZB3R &5 (@)

(a) Business segments (continued) (a) BEDEBE)

Net interest income{expense) ~ #H|SMA/(t) 251 2,168 {1} m 154 264 5981 1,017 6 12482 170 1 12,653
Non-interest income FEFEMA 53 669 4 354 25 635 1,436 19 114 5,258 667 (346) 5519
Operating income: HEON 3315 2831 38 625 1m 899 1417 1213 1147 17,740 81 (345) 18232
Operating expenses T (1,653) (201) (183) (193) 1) (607) (4,318) (484) (803) (8,415) (1,719 345 (9,849)

Operating profitloss) before B ERXZ
mpaiment losses et/ (B8) 1672 263 (105) 32 166 m 3,099 789 M| 935 (942) -,

(Charge for)MWrite back of ESRanRE
impaimentlossesonloansand ~ BUBEIHIER R
advances and other accounts  (788) /B (14 (14) 1 @ - 32) (877) 113 @ (989) ) - (990)

Impaiment losses on heldto- ~ EEFERERAR
maturity investments and HEGREAEL
avallable-for-sale financial assets & B - - () - - - - - - (1) - N (1

Operating proftloss)after BB HERAES
mpaiment losses et/ (B8) 1558 2562 (115) 830 166 % 0 2m 90 M| 835 (943) -m

ProfiLoss)on sale of feed assels, HEEFEE  $%
held-to-maturtyinvestments  B|ERARALE
and avalable-forsale financal ~ HESBEEL

assels i/ (58) - v 7 - - 4 69 - (1) 13 - - 1
loss on saleof subsidaris ~ HEMBATZ KR - - - - - - - (0] - (0 - - “
Valuation gains on investment

properties EfSRENZRR - - - - - - - - - - m - m
Share of profitslesslosses of ~ FEARBE A F

associates HEE - - - - - (5) m 426 1 645 - - 645
Profit(Loss) before taxation AT/ (58) 1,558 2,589 1) 430 166 259 2514 134 340 9,139 (715) - 8,424
Depreciaton for the year EfiiiE )] @ 4 4) (1) (28) (322) (20) (26) (478) (186) - (664)
Segment assets ABEE 58929 173050 140,170 29917 9813 175% 372623 102,380 2222 | 906,640 18030 (134862) 789,808
Investments in associates BENARE - - - - - 55 mn 5,036 0 6,083 - - 6,083
Total assets BEEE 58929 173050 140,170 29917 9,813 17591 313595 107,416 202 91213 18030 (134862)  795:891
Totalliabiities BEET 278,557 1,164 94,513 B8 4 1335 328698 91,134 387 831,030 2319 (110962) 72447

Capital expenditure incurred
during the year FEMELRRR i} 1 2 1 - B 116 9 1) 138 8 - n
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Netinteestncomellepense) ~ BAIEMA/ (%) 2130 24% /I B 058 9 50 1200 180 1M
Non-nteest ncome HARHA 0 620 80 313 2 % 101 79 1069 | 4689 68 3% 4%
Operatng income LN 280 305 53 608 115 7 69%6 1265 1004 | 16769 88 B 172
Operatng expenses et (15 (o (9 (79 (19 6o @63 w9 (8] MY (7 3 (958

Operating profitloss) before ~ AABBERRZ
mpairment osses FLEF/(BR) 1,242 2,861 (76) 49 101 248 2113 816 29 8,624 (954) - 7670
(Charge for)Wite back of EXRBRRE
impaiment losses onloansand  BEEATHEE.

advancesand otheraccounts (5238 /B2 o) (68) 1 (1) = (10 (@8 6) B e - - (653
Impaiment losses on avalable- I ESEEEL
for-sale financial assets HERX - - (68) - = 1) - - - (69 - - 6

Operating profitloss ater BB HERR %2
impairment losses FLEH/ (BR) 1,151 2,193 (142) 8 101 37 2433 811 285 8,097 (954) - 7143

Profiton saleof fxed assets and ~ HiEEFAER AL
avalable-for-sal financial HESREEY

assets il - 4 62 - - 7 131 2 - 26 18 - 24
Profiton sale of subsidiaries’ ~ H{EKBAT/

assodiates BENF 28R = - - - - - bl - - 7 = = bl
Valuation gains on investment

properties EfRENERR - - - - - - - 164 - 164 24 = 38
Share of profitsless losses of PR BE AR

ass0ciates HER - - - - - 1 18 502 (1) 684 - - 684
ProfitLoss) before taxation BaEN/ (B8 1,151 2,197 (80) 48 101 245 2113 1499 284 9,198 (112) - 8,486
Depreciation for the year EfiTE 1) 0 6) 0) (1) (22) (383) (19 (1) (499) (171) = (670)
Seqment assets AUEE 5808 163639 121,734 25,89 9,945 15801 357193 79518 298 | 829461 30334 (1106200 749,175
Investments in associates BENTRE - - - - - 59 536 4164 0 4779 - - 4719
Total assets BELE 52808 163639 121,734 25,89 9,945 1580 357,689 83,68 2988 | 834240 30334 (110620) 753954
Total liabllties Bfges 260517 1,631 75,166 ARl 1 11600 330958 67928 75 769,717 218 (86,215 685,720

Capital expenditure incurred
during the year EENERAY 3% 1 3 1 - 3 318 59 161 616 97 - 3
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21.SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 2 ZB3R &5 (@)

(b) Geographical segments (b) thE 2 =B
The information concerning geographical analysis has been classified by the Bit@E DA B ERBERBARNTEE
location of the principal operations of the subsidiaries, or in the case of the Bank FEETEH R, - AT E @ RIIRAB‘®RE
itself, by the location of the branches of the Bank responsible for reporting the HERBEEAREZDITHE T AZIS -

results or booking the assets.

The Group £8
Operating income BEWA 9,081 1,716 1,052 795 (412) 18,232
Profit before taxation BREAT& 4,130 2,735 847 712 - 8,424
Total assets BELE 465,465 361,094 58,701 46,233 (135,602) 795,891
Total liabilities aEeEE 413,374 328,728 52,201 39,462 (111,318) 722,447
Contingent liabilities and

commitments FAE B R A 71,153 168,579 4,808 4,028 - 248,568
Capital expenditure during the year  FEZRE A FH 7 158 129 29 7 - 323

The Group 3
Operating income LEPA 8,719 7,150 1,019 760 (395) 17,253
Profit before taxation BRE AR A 3,898 2,892 929 767 - 8,486
Total assets BEER 421,99 359,850 56,588 40,940 (125,420) 753,954
Total liabilities afElE 372,375 332,523 50,997 33,851 (104,026) 685,720
Contingent liabilities and

commitments AR B RAE 72,240 152,792 5,653 4,431 - 235,116
Capital expenditure during the year S E KRB A5z 229 332 93 59 - 713

22.CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (NOTE 45(b))
RERERTNHMSBBBNET (FHEE45(b))

Cash in hand e 1,597 1,714 1,203 1,201
Balances with central banks TERRBINEF 48274 50,553 8913 7,661
Balances with banks and other financial ~ ZESRTAE ML BEIEH)

institutions il 20,487 16,510 16,836 13,350

70,358 68,777 26,952 22,212
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23.PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (NOTE 45(b))
FEERAT R ELAth & RUHEAB A9 17 3K (Bt 3£45(b))

Placements with banks and authorised ~ 7E5R17 &R & RiikiEH)
institutions pex | 50,769 57,372 8,031 13,399
Placements with central banks TR RBITHER - - - -
50,769 57,372 8,031 13,399
Maturing FIEREAR
— within one month -1EAR 26,536 38,290 6,845 11,279
— between one month and one year - 1{AAZE1ER 24,233 19,082 1,186 2,120
50,769 57,372 8,031 13,399

24. TRADE BILLS B ZEiE

Gross trade bills BHERBE 60,679 59,936 51,613 52,743
Less: Individual impairment allowances  Ja : {ERIH{E%EE (4) (4) (4) (4)
60,675 59,932 51,609 52,739

Movement of individual impairment allowances ERIRELERE EE)
At 1st January R1A1H 4 4 4 4
Net provisions released back to BEEROEE

income statement ek (8) (1) - (1)
Recoveries WeEEE 8 1 - 1
At 31st December ®12A31R 4 4 4 4
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B R ¥R AR BT RE (4R

25. TRADING ASSETS X5 AREE

Treasury bills (including Exchange

BEEF(RENEEERE)

Fund Bills) (Note 45(b)) (Bi:450)) 78 26 78 26
Debt securities (Note 45(b)) BIEEH(H2450)) 1,412 3,876 169 470
Equity securities MR inaE 5 1,374 1,407 1,374 1,407
Investment funds REES 21 22 21 22

2,885 5,331 1,642 1,925
Issued by: BATHRE -

Central governments and central banks ~ FR R I AR R 5517 129 236 90 45

Public sector entities DEWE 52 58 52 7

Banks and other financial institutions 8847 R B & Ehi iR 1,170 2,864 329 309

Corporate entities rEER 1,501 2,117 1,138 1,508

Other entities Hin g 33 56 33 56

2,885 5,331 1,642 1,925
Analysed by place of listing: & EmitE A

Debt securities BBES
Listed in Hong Kong EBB LM 13 19 13 19
Listed outside Hong Kong EBBAINYE L 113 281 113 281
126 300 126 300
Unlisted JEEM 1,364 3,602 121 19
1,490 3,902 247 496

Equity securities RS
Listed in Hong Kong EEB L 1,131 1,119 1,131 1,119
Listed outside Hong Kong EBEBAINDE i 243 288 243 288
1,374 1,407 1374 1,407

Investment funds RERS
Listed in Hong Kong EEB LD 7 7 7 7
Listed outside Hong Kong TEARBNIMIE £ 14 15 14 15
21 22 21 22
2,885 5,331 1,642 1,925
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26.FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
EEABEBRRARRAFHEENEMERE

Certificates of deposit held (Note 45(b) FBMFHE (Hiit45(b)) 1,495 128 1,495 128
Debt securities (Note 45(b)) &S (H450)) 6,792 11,071 6,792 11,071
Equity securities WA 353 354 - -
Investment funds REES 73 53 - -
8,713 11,606 8,287 11,199
Issued by: BITHE
Central governments and central banks 5 REFF AR R3E4T 9% 355 9% 355
Banks and other financial institutions #8417 R E A1 BhiklE 5,072 5,894 5,048 5,868
Corporate entities TEER 3,474 5,303 3,145 4,976
Other entities HinEmeE 73 54 - -
8,713 11,606 8,287 11,199
Analysed by place of listing: R ETHE AT :
Debt securities BEBES
Listed in Hong Kong ERE LM 1,093 1,520 1,093 1,520
Listed outside Hong Kong HERBIMNEE T 3,597 5,887 3,597 5,887
4,690 7,407 4,690 7,407
Unlisted JE LT 3,597 3,792 3,597 3,792
8,287 11,199 8,287 11,199
Equity securities RinEH
Listed in Hong Kong ERE LM 128 115 - =
Listed outside Hong Kong ERBNIMNIE L 225 239 - =
353 354 - -
Investment funds REES
Listed outside Hong Kong ERBUAIMEE Eh 9 - - -
Unlisted LW 64 53 - -
73 53 - -

8,713 11,606 8,287 11,199
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B R ¥R AR BT RE (4R

27.ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS B F#3 & HitfR1E

(a) Advances to customers and other accounts

(a) EFER R AAMIRIA

()  Advances to customers ZEHI 443,287 405,357 292,365 259,483
Less: Impairment allowances B OREER
- Individual SN (419) (323) (188) (a71)
— Collective -2 (935) (699) (445) (450)
441,933 404,335 291,732 258,862
(i) Other accounts HifRIE
Advances to banks and other
financial institutions RITREM S BEESR 55 5 4 5
Less: Impairment allowances R ERERE
— Individual - {5l (1) @) U] @)
54 3 3 3
Notes and bonds (Note 45(b)) &5 (Wiz45(b)) 1 1 - -
Certificates of deposit held
(Note 45(b)) FEREREH7450) 116 116 116 116
Accrued interest FEAHFI & 2,904 2,641 1,512 1,404
Customer liability under acceptance A {EFE(E 26,460 31,393 359 312
Other accounts HifRIE 10,703 9,796 6,246 6,229
40,184 43,947 8,233 8,061
Less: Impairment allowances B OREERE
~ Individual ~ {5 (13) (13) (1) (1)
— Collective -2 (18) (17) - -
40,153 43,917 8,232 8,060
482,140 448,255 299,967 266,925
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B R R M E (F])

(b) Impairment allowances against advances and other accounts for  (b) 20145 £ % H {th BRIE 2 R{E X4
2014

At 1st January MAE 3 699 2 - 13 17 338 716
New provisions charged to income statement MR R R 863 403 - - 64 2 927 405
Net provisions released back to income statement BB EREVERETE (308) - (1) - () - (314) -
Amounts written off ikt (691) (153) - - (5 - (69) (153)
Recoveries ) EE 25 - - - 1 - 216 -
Efect of discounting (Note 4) SRS E (i) (20 - - - - - (20 -
Transfer &5 54 - - - (54) - - -
Exchange adjustments i (17 (14) - - (1) (1) (18) (15)
At 315t December #2318 419 935 1 - 13 18 433 953

At 1st January MA1R 1 450 2 - 1 - 174 450
New provisions charged to income statement WaRA L m 130 - - - - m 130
Net provisions released back to income statement ~ BEIMERMERLE (208) - (1 - - - (209) -
Amounts written off ik (199) (128) - - - - (199) (128)
Recoveries ] 174 - - - - - 174 -
Effect of discounting STEMINE2 (10) - - - - - (10) -
Exchange adjustments 3 (10) 1) - - - - (10) )]

At 315t December M2A318 188 45 1 - 1 - 190 445
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27.ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED) & F EAFh Iz H fth BRIE (@)

(b) Impairment allowances against advances and other accounts for
2013

(b) 2013 F AR K K RIE 2 B{E%EE

At 1t January MATR 238 681 4 - 8 3 20 684
New provisions charged to income statement WRRNZ AR 469 131 - - 3 1 49 142
Net provisions released back to income statement  BEE R4 EREFE (149) - 2 - (10) - (161) -
Amounts written off s (353) (115) - - (5 - (358) (115)
Recoveries h(EE 105 - - - - - 105 -
Effect of discounting (Note 4) STENRE ) (14) - - - - - (14) -
Transfer 25 2 - - - @) - - -
Exchange adjustments EH AR 5 2 - - (1) 3 4 5
At 315t December M2A318 33 699 2 - 13 17 338 716

At 1st January RMATR 128 474 4 = 3 - 135 474
New provisions charged to income statement WRRAT R ER 194 83 - - - - 194 83
Net provisions released back to income statement ~ BEMGREEE TR (99) - )] - %) - (103) -
Amounts written off e (110) (103) - - - - (110) (103)
Recoveries e 67 - - - - - 67 -
Effect of discounting HEfNgE @) - - - - = ] =
Exchange adjustments B (1) 4 - - - - (1) @
At 315t December RM2A318 1 450 2 = 1 - 174 450
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(c) Advances to customers — by industry sectors (c) BEEBR—1RIT£08E
The analysis of gross advances to customers and the percentage of secured BOT¥HBENE P BN EEREGERMBRN
advances by industry sector is based on the categories and definitions used by the BALRIRESE B ANERINES o
HKMA.

The Group 4]
Loans for use in Hong Kong EEBERNER
Industrial, commercial and financial TEse
— Property development - MEERE 17177 71.40 13,743 71.01
— Property investment - MERE 38,906 86.53 37,574 87.51
— Financial concerns - SRRE 15,562 82.32 13,780 81.80
~ Stockbrokers - RE& L 1,901 95.94 1,222 88.85
—Wholesale and retail trade - HERTER 21,070 56.15 14,296 34.11
— Manufacturing - BlEx 7,090 50.93 6,963 37.04
— Transport and transport equipment - iE k5 BB H R 1A 6,835 67.01 5,954 66.01
— Recreational activities - IREEE 138 56.53 96 33.02
~ Information technology - &R 836 15.53 1,063 8.88
- Others - Hity 19,113 69.23 10,189 50.34
- Sub-total — st 128,628 73.10 104,880 68.31
Individuals A
— Loans for the purchase of flats in
the Home Ownership Scheme, - BE[EZAEEE]
Private Sector Participation [FLA2EEEE]
Scheme and Tenants Purchase LI BEEEE S
Scheme EFHER 1,058 100.00 1,096 100.00
— Loans for the purchase of other - BEAMEENEN
residential properties B3 33,052 100.00 28,537 99.99
— Credit card advances - ERREN 5,079 0.00 4137 0.00
- Others - Hfh 19,181 82.12 19,453 68.64
- Sub-total — /st 58,370 85.42 53,223 80.76
Total loans for use in Hong Kong EEEFRNERER 186,998 76.95 158,103 72.50
Trade finance Eo5mE 5,527 59.14 5,895 39.60
Loans for use outside Hong Kong* TEARBAIMERRE > 250,762 71.38 241,359 71.02
Total advances to customers BFEATEE 443,287 73.57 405,357 71.14
*  Loans for use outside Hong Kong include the following loans for use in Mainland China. * EBEBLIMEREE R EIEUL TERE A

EAREL

Property development MEER 40,010 60.01 33,980 52.70
Property investment MERE 32,701 98.51 29,801 98.45
Wholesale and retail trade pERETER 32,072 80.53 35,088 79.84
Manufacturing BlE% 11,224 61.73 12,081 47.34
Others Hifh 73,200 61.45 68,844 66.67

189,207 70.80 179,794 70.57
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27.ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED) & F EAFh Iz H fth BRIE (@)

(c) Advances to customers — by industry sectors (continued) (0 BEFEX—IRITE28 @

The Bank 1T
Loans for use in Hong Kong ERBERANER
Industrial, commercial and financial THEem
— Property development -MEEE 17,167 71.45 13,733 71.06
— Property investment - MERE 38,811 86.50 37,491 87.49
— Financial concerns - SREE 15,561 82.32 13,779 81.80
— Stockbrokers - RE&L 1,901 95.94 1,222 88.85
- Wholesale and retail trade - EETEY 20,990 55.99 14,207 33.69
- Manufacturing Bl 7,080 50.85 6,926 36.70
—Transport and transport equipment - E# BB R & 6,835 67.01 5,930 65.87
— Recreational activities - IRELET) 138 56.53 9 33.02
- Information technology - BRI 836 15.53 1,062 8.88
- Others - Hith 18,396 68.03 9,473 46.59
- Sub-total —Nst 127,715 72.92 103,919 68.02
Individuals fAA
— Loans for the purchase of flats in
the Home Ownership Scheme, - BEB[EZAEE 2]
Private Sector Participation [FAAZZEREE
Scheme and Tenants Purchase RIBEEEE S
Scheme BFHER 1,058 100.00 1,096 100.00
— Loans for the purchase of other - BEAMEENEN
residential properties =N 33,049 100.00 28,533 99.99
— Credit card advances - ERR2R 5,079 0.00 4137 0.00
- Others - Hity 17,952 82.41 18,123 68.11
- Sub-total — N5t 57,138 85.58 51,889 80.88
Total loans for use in Hong Kong EEBERNEREE 184,853 76.83 155,808 72.31
Trade finance E5BE 5,429 59.52 5,504 36.19
Loans for use outside Hong Kong* ERBRIMER R ER 102,083 60.07 98,171 57.31
Total advances to customers BE ST AE 292,365 70.66 259,483 65.87
*  Loans for use outside Hong Kong include the following loans for use in Mainland China. * EEBLIME B E A EE L TR B

EABEFL -

Property development MEERE 13,807 8.81 15,603 8.80
Property investment MERE 2,050 79.36 803 49.75
Wholesale and retail trade HEETEZ 7374 75.06 7,561 93.70
Manufacturing ESiES 431 60.84 4,523 42.09
Others Hfh 13,454 43.69 10,321 11.58

41,056 41.20 38,811 30.81




Individually impaired loans, as well as relevant information, in respect of industry
sectors which constitute 10% or more of total advances to customers are as

follows:

(i) Property development
a. Individually impaired loans
b. Individual impairment allowance
¢. Collective impairment allowance

d. Provision charged to income
statement

- individual impairment loss
- collective impairment loss
e. Written off

(ii) Property investment
a. Individually impaired loans
b. Individual impairment allowance
¢. Collective impairment allowance

d. Provision charged to income
statement

- individual impairment loss
- collective impairment loss
e. Written off

(iii) Loans for purchase of residential
properties
a. Individually impaired loans
b. Individual impairment allowance
¢. Collective impairment allowance

d. Provision charged to income
statement

- individual impairment loss
- collective impairment loss
e. Written off

(iv)Wholesale and retail trade
a. Individually impaired loans
b. Individual impairment allowance
¢. Collective impairment allowance

d. Provision charged to income
statement

- individual impairment loss
- collective impairment loss
e. Written off
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27.ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED) & F EAFh Iz H fth BRIE (@)

(d) Advances to customers — by geographical areas
The information concerning the breakdown of the gross amount of advances to
customers by countries or geographical areas is derived according to the location
of the counterparties after taking into account any transfer of risk. In general, such
transfer of risk takes place if the claims are guaranteed by a party in a country
which is different from that of the counterparty or if the claims are on an overseas
branch of a bank whose head office is located in another country.

(d) EF2R - ZEEIE

EFBFEBRERKEENIE - TRE
REBEFHMED  YEEREZRARE
R —MRME  BRBROERESUIER
SEFRAEBNBERE — TR - IxER
HETTH RBRKBITAEIN DT - MZRTT
E AR E R IFR IR S F RN » B
BEERR/A —(ARRERI S —ERR -

Hong Kong & 186,000 226 404 95 248
People’s Republic of China % AR HHE 213,984 1,784 2,108 307 563
Other Asian Countries HihgmMER 20,813 79 143 17 68
Others il 22,490 7 81 - 56
Total pk] 443,287 2,096 2,736 419 935
% of total advances to HEE BB

customers Ao 0.62%
Market value of security held

against impaired advances

to customers RERFERRTE 4,680

Hong Kong B 172,436 188 384 81 210
People’s Republic of China & AR AAE 189,924 653 840 159 316
Other Asian Countries HnTiHBIR 22,124 18 120 72 106
Others Hith 20,873 65 237 11 67
Total ekl 405,357 924 1,581 323 699
% of total advances to BB PR EEER

customers B 0.39%
Market value of security held

against impaired advances

to customers RERFIEFRTE 3,779
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B R R M E (F])

Hong Kong B 174,774 221 387 85 214
People’s Republic of China & A R AR 75,459 119 144 86 1M
Other Asian Countries H g MER 20,413 79 143 17 67
Others Hi 21,719 7 81 - 53
Total = 292,365 426 755 188 445
% of total advances to HRPRFEEEN

customers Bkl 0.26%
Market value of security held

against impaired advances

to customers RESRSEARTE 1,063

Hong Kong BB 158,402 184 367 70 188
People’s Republic of China & A R AR 58,888 126 130 18 90
Other Asian Countries HIMER 21,838 18 120 72 106
Others Hth 20,355 64 237 1" 66
Total 4 259,483 392 854 171 450
% of total advances to HEPEUBEEN

customers Bt 0.33%
Market value of security held

against impaired advances

to customers RERFERRTE 2,312

Impaired loans and advances are individually assessed loans with objective evidence

of impairment on an individual basis. The above information by countries or

geographical areas is derived according to the location of the counterparties after

taking into account any transfer of risk.

BB B R & B RGR (8 B B R R (E B T
BERIFEER - A ERBERKEH DR
MER  EREBXZHFHOMEMLTDER
BERBEE -
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